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Preface

Volume 41 of the Collected Works of Marx and Engels contains
their letters to each other and to third persons from January 1860
to September 1864. This material provides an irreplaceable insight
into their life and work, enabling us to follow the composition of
their writings, and to build up a picture of their practical
revolutionary activities.

This period saw the continuous rise of the bourgeois democratic
and national liberation movements which had been growing in
Europe and America ever since the world economic crisis of 1857.
The rapid development of capitalism in Britain, France, Gerrhany
and some other European countries accelerated the liquidation of
the political and social survivals of feudalism. In Germany and
Italy, where the bourgeois revolution had not yet been completed,
the movement for national unification once more got into its
stride. In Russia, even after the abolition of serfdom in February
1861, peasant disturbances continued, and revolutionary tenden-
cies were growing among the progressive intelligentsia. In 1863, a
national liberation uprising began in Poland. In the USA, the Civil
War was being fought between the capitalist North and the
slave-owning South. There was growing opposition in France to
the Bonaparte regime. The struggle of the oppressed peoples
under the Austrian monarchy was gathering momentum. In
Mexico, the bourgeois revolution triumphed.

As a result of the industrial revolution, serious changes were
taking place in the proletariat’s numerical strength, composition
and class consciousness. In 1859-60 the London building workers’
strike, which had repercussions far beyond Britain, vividly
demonstrated the irreconcilability of proletarian and bourgeois class
interests. The working-class movement had set out on a
course of independent struggle, which testified to its gradual eman-
cipation from the ideological influence of the bourgeoisie. In
the first half of the 1860s, these processes became manifest, in
England, with the further growth of trade-unionism and the
workers’ awakening to political activity; in France, with the
growing class awareness of the proletariat; in Germany, with the
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establishment of the General Association of German Workers
(1863). In addition, there was the active participation by workers
of various nationalities in the revolutionary struggle for freedom
and democracy in the American Civil War and in Garibaldi’s
detachments in Italy. The realisation by progressive workers that
their interests ran counter to those of the ruling classes, the
increased feeling of class solidarity and the strengthening of
international contacts led to the foundation, on 28 September
1864, of the International Working Men’s Association (the First
International). .
In 1860-64, Marx and Engels regarded as the main task th
further elaboration of economic theory, which was of crucial
importance for the development of the working-class revolutionary
movement. They were also close followers of current events, which
they analysed in their articles for progressive bourgeois newspa-
pers. The rise of the working-class and democratic movement
highlighted the need for establishing a proletarian party and
promoting international contacts between proletarian rev-
olutionaries. ‘
Marx considered it his principal duty to write an economic
work which would arm the proletariat with a knowledge of the
laws of capitalist society’s development and would provide
economic proof of the historical necessity for a proletarian
revolution. On 15 September 1860, he wrote to Lassalle that his
work had an ‘expressly revolutionary function’ (p. 193). In June
1859, the first instalment of A Contribution to the Critique of Political
Economy was published (see present edition, Vol. 29). Early in
1860, Marx began preparing the second instalment which, in his
own words, was to contain the ‘quintessence’ of his economic theory
(p. 12).
pMarx wanted to finish this work as soon as possible. Engels, too,
considered the early appearance of Marx’s work ‘of paramount
importance’ (p. 14). However, Marx interrupted his work in
order to publish a repudiation of the libellous attacks on him
made by Karl Vogt. Not until a year and a half later, at the beginning
of June 1861, was he able to resume his economic studies (p. 292).
True, they were often interrupted subsequently because of recurring
material difficulties and ill health (see, e.g., pp. 353 and 435).
Moreover, Marx was constantly .widening the scope of his study,
perfecting its structure and developing its propositions. Although
Marx worked hard and with the utmost dedication, the project,
which was to be his masterpiece, Capital, stretched out over many
years.
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Marx’s and Engels letters make it possible to follow the
different stages in the writing of Capital and to see how, in the
process of preparing the second instalment of A Contribution to the
Critique of Political Economy, Marx exceeded the original planned
limits of the manuscript so that by the summer of 1863 he had
written a far bigger second rough draft of the future work (the
first version of Capital was the manuscript of 1857-58; see present
edition, Vols. 28 and 29). The manuscript of 1861-63, which
Marx called A Contribution to the Critique of Political Economy, consists
of 23 notebooks (present edition, Vols. 30-34). The problems
of the future Volume I of Capital are here worked out in
detail, and some important propositions in Volumes II and
III are expounded. The greater part of the manuscript is
taken up by a historical-critical section (Theories of Surplus
Value).

In a letter to Ludwig Kugelmann of 28 December 1862, Marx
mentions for the first time his intention of calling his work Capital
and of using the original title, A Contribution to the Critique of Political
Economy, solely as a subtitle. He decided to use the manuscript of
1861-63 for a book which was to deal with ‘capital in general’
(p- 435). Its new structure had, in the main, taken shape by January
1863. In a letter to Engels of 29 May 1863, he wrote that he intended
to ‘make a fair copy of the political economy for the printers (and give
it a final polish)’ (p. 474). Evaluating his own work, Marx noted in a
letter to Engels dated 15 August 1863 that he had ‘had to demolish
everything and even build up the historical section out of what was in
part quite unknown material’ (p. 488).

Late in July or in August 1863, the work on Capital entered a
new stage. Marx revised the manuscript of 1861-63, the result of
which was the third rough draft of the theoretical part of Capital,
consisting of three books (the manuscripts of 1863-65). He worked
on the first book (the future Volume I of Capital) until the
summer of 1864.

The letters reflect the titanic work done by Marx in those years:
the study and analysis of a mass of factual material (official
reports, press publications), and the critical interpretation of works
by the classic bourgeois political economists and by representatives
of vulgar political economy. In his letter to Lassalle of 16 June
1862, Marx attacks the eclecticism of the German vulgar economist
Roscher, who ‘merely goes snuffling round amidst the wealth of set
answers ... always with an eye to the prejudices and the interests of his
paymasters’ (p. 379).

Not only do the letters illustrate the various stages of Marx’s
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work on Capital; they also contain some of the conclusions at
which he was arriving in the course of his research. Thus, in his
letters to Engels of 2 and 9 August 1862, he outlines ‘a lengthy
and complex affair’ (p. 394)—the formation, as the result of
competition and the flow of capital from one branch to another,
of the average rate of profit, and the proof of the possibility of
absolute ground rent ‘without infringing the law of value’ (p. 403).
He also indicates the practical revolutionary significance of this
.problem for substantiating the need to abolish private landed
property from the viewpoint of the proletariat’s interests (p. 398).
Lenin commented that these letters give ‘a remarkably popular,
concise, and clear exposition of the theory of the average rate of
profit on capital and of absolute ground rent (V. 1. Lenin,
Collected Works, Vol. 21, p. 68).

In a letter to Engels of 28 January 1863, Marx mentions the
‘considerable controversy’ about the way in which the machine
differs from the tool (p. 449), gives a brief historical outline of the
growth of machine production and, finally, formulates the concept
of the industrial revolution: “The industrial revolution, he writes,
‘began as soon as mechanical means were employed in fields
where, from time immemorial, the final result had called for
human labour..., where, by the nature of things and from the
outset, man has not functioned purely as power’ (p. 451).

Worthy of special attention is the letter from Marx to Engels of
6 July 1863. In it, Marx formulates the basic theses of his theory
of social reproduction, which he also presents in the form of an
economic table (pp. 490-91). This analysis of the reproduction and
circulation of the aggregate social capital was to be expounded later
in detail and at a higher theoretical level in Section 111 of the second
volume of Capital.

Marx carried on his economic studies in close and fruitful
contact with his friend Engels. He not only obtained from him
data on the organisation of production, but also kept him advised
of the progress he was making in his research and consulted him
on many important matters. ‘Can’t you come down for a few
days?’ he wrote to Engels on 20 August 1862. ‘In my critique I
have demolished so much of the old stuff that there are a number
of points I should like to consult you about before I proceed’
(p. 411).

The letters in the present volume bear evidence to the
encyclopaedic knowledge of Marx and Engels and the vast scope
and diversity of their scientific interests. They enthusiastically
welcomed Charles Darwin’s On the Origin of Species, published in
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1859. Both Marx and Engels valued it highly as a work that
affirmed the idea of development in nature, refuted the idealistic
interpretation of its laws, and bore out materialist dialectics. In
1863-64, Marx and Engels read and exchanged views on books by
Sir Charles Lyell, Thomas Henry Huxley, Perceval Barton Lord,
Theodor Schwann, Mathias Jakob Schleiden and others. Marx was
also studying mathematics with a view to substantiating differential
and integral calculus in terms of dialectics.

A number of letters testify to the interest taken by Marx and
Engels in ancient history, the history of religion, and law. Marx
read in the original Greek, ‘for recreation’, Appian -on the civil
wars in Rome. Appian attracted him because ‘he probes the
material basis’ of those wars (p. 265). Marx liked the way Appian
described his favourite hero, Spartacus, as a ‘great general..., of
noble character’. Marx’s letters to Lassalle of 11 June and 22 July
1861, and Engels’ letter to Marx of 2 December 1861 contain a
critique of Lassalle’s work, Das System der erworbenen Rechte. In this
connection Marx and Engels discussed Roman law, particularly its
application in West European countries, and raised the general
philosophical problem of the relationship between form and
content (p. 318). Criticising Lassalle’s idealistic approach to the legal
categories, his faith ‘in the “idea of law”, absolute law’ (p. 330), they
demonstrated that the law is conditioned by the production and
property relations (pp. 294, 317-18).

As before, Engels pursued his special interest in languages (he
had resumed his studies of Russian and Serbian), and in the
theory and history of the art of war. The letters reflect the wide
range of military problems with which he concerned himself at the
time. Engels analysed, from the standpoint of historical material-
ism, the military aspects of current international affairs (with
special reference to the US Civil War), and also wrote about his
articles for newspapers and The New American Cyclopaedia.

The letters of Marx and Engels from 1860 to 1864 give a
detailed picture of their work as journalists. They continued
contributing, until March 1862, to the progressive American
newspaper, the New-York Daily Tribune, of which Marx was an
official correspondent for eleven years. At the beginning of the
1860s, it spoke for the Republican party and actively opposed slavery
in America. Although nominally only Marx was correspondent for
the Tribune, he continued writing for it in collaboration with
Engels. Engels also contributed to The Volunteer Journal, for
Lancashire and Cheshire and to the Allgemeine Militir-Zeitung in
Darmstadt.
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In May 1861, Marx was invited to write for the liberal Viennese
newspaper Die Presse, which was popular not only in Austria, but
also in Germany. Marx set great store by the opportunity to
publish articles in the European periodical press. He accepted the
offer of Die Presse and began, in October 1861, sending articles to
Vienna; however, for political reasons the editors did not always
publish them. ‘The rotten Presse is printing barely half my articles,”
he wrote to Engels on 27 December 1861. In December
1862, Marx had to give up contributing to this newspaper alto-
gether.

The letters of Marx and Engels are an important supplement to
their journalism, making it possible to reconstruct how the articles
were written and how, by exchanging opinions, they arrived at a
common view on various matters. The letters often contain more
abrasive, emotional judgments on various personalities than the
articles. They reflected the spontaneous reaction of Marx or
Engels to this or that instance of personal behaviour and were not
intended for publication.

Marx and Engels gave much attention at the time to the national
liberation movement in Italy. They followed in detail the heroic
campaign of Garibaldi’s “Thousand’ in Sicily and in South Italy in
1860 and had a high opinion of his revolutionary tactics (p. 205).
They identified themselves with the Italian people’s revolutionary
war, which was making possible the unification of the country by
revolutionary means, and attributed an all-European significance
to the Italian problem, as relevant to unmasking the true aims of
Napoleon III's European policy—the exploitation of the national
liberation struggle of the oppressed peoples in his own selfish
interests. ‘Garibaldi is a veritable godsend. Otherwise, Bonaparte
would have been restored to popularity and sustained by the
Russo-Prussian-Austrian Holy Alliance,” Marx wrote to Engels on
15 September 1860. The leaders of the working class exposed the
policy of the Piedmontese government of Cavour, who was trying
to unite Italy under the aegis of the Savoy dynasty. This was
objectively leading to the subordination of Italy to Bonapartist
France. ‘Cavour is actually Bonaparte’s tool,” Marx wrote to
Lassalle on 2 October 1860. Marx also noted the dangerous
flagging of the revolutionary spirit in Garibaldi’s army (pp. 203-04),
the causes of which he disclosed more fully in his articles on Italy (see
present edition, Vol. 19).

Marx and Engels also regarded the problem of Germany’s
unification as closely connected with the revolutionary struggle of
the Italian people. This struggle, in their opinion, was reducing
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the threat to Germany from Bonapartist France (p. 132). Two
factors, they believed, could create conditions for the unification
of Germany by revolutionary-democratic means in the first half of
the 1860s: first, the constitutional conflict that had developed in
1860 between the Prussian government and the bourgeois liberal
majority of the Diet (Landtag) over the problem of reorganising
the Prussian army; second, the national liberation struggle of
Schleswig and Holstein against Danish domination in 1863-64. His
visit to Germany in 1861 convinced Marx of the growing mood of
opposition, the revolutionary ferment and the disillusion of the
German people with the ‘new era’ proclaimed by ‘handsome William’
(p- 312).

Right up to the outbreak of the Austro-Prussian war in 1866,
Marx and Engels retained their hopes of the country’s unification
by revolutionary-democratic means. They severely criticised the
indecision and cowardice of the German liberal bourgeoisie and
the reactionary policy of Bismarck, who was using the Danish War
of 1864 as a first step on the road to the unification of Germany
‘from above’ by ‘iron and blood’.

With unfailing attention, Marx and Engels followed the matur-
ing crisis in the social and political system of the Second Empire in
France. They stressed in their letters that Napoleon III was
seeking a way out of it in foreign policy adventures and trying to
use in his own interests the aspirations of the Italian and German
peoples for unification. They denounced the demagogic subter-
fuges to which he was resorting in order to camouflage his
predatory policy. Bonaparte, wrote Marx on 29 March 1864 to
Lion Philips, ‘set his troupiers up in business as “freedom”
exporters’ (p. 513). In 1861, Britain, France and Spain launched
their armed intervention in Mexico, where the bourgeois revolu-
tion had triumphed. On the part of Napoleon I1I, the Mexican
expedition, openly colonial in character (pp. 349-50), was an attempt
to strengthen his position by victories overseas (p. 453). Marx
foresaw the inevitable failure of the expedition and the fall of
Napoleon’s empire. ‘I myself am in no doubt,” he wrote to Engels on
15 August 1863, ‘that Mexico will be the hurdle at which he’ll break
his neck’ (p. 489). Marx derided the Bonapartist methods of political
demagogy, which, under conditions of colonial war, had assumed
particularly grotesque forms. He also pointed out another danger of
the British-French-Spanish intervention. Napoleon III and Palmer-
ston wanted to use Mexico as a base for intervention in the US Civil
War on behalf of the slave-owning Confederacy (see, e.g.,
p- 489).
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One of the key issues in the correspondence between Marx and
Engels during this period was the US Civil War. In their letters, as
in their articles, they analysed its causes, disclosed its true nature
and motive forces and pointed out its significance not only for the
United States but for Europe. Marx and Engels were only able to
throw light in the press on the early stage of the war, as their
contributions to the New-York Daily Tribune and Die Presse ended
in 1862. The letters are particularly valuable, since they inter-
preted the course of the Civil War from beginning to end. They
furnish a methodological basis for studying the history of that war
and many problems of the United States’s subsequent development.

The letters show that, even before the outbreak of the Civil
War, Marx and Engels were following the growing antagonism
between North and South closely, and were aware that a clash was
unavoidable. They regarded it as a result of the irreconcilable
struggle between two social systems, capitalist production develop-
ing in the North and the plantation system in the South, based on
slave labour. The preservation of slavery was incompatible with
the capitalist development of the country as a whole. The problem
of whether the American farmers would be given access to land in
the West, or if slavery would spread all over the States, was at the
root of the Civil War. Realising that hostilities were already
imminent, Engels wrote to Marx on 7 January 1861: ‘The least
irruption of irregulars from the North might result in a general
conflagration. At all events, one way or another, slavery would
appear to be rapidly nearing its end’ (p. 242).

Marx and Engels regarded the Civil War in the USA as a
specific form of bourgeois-democratic revolution whose victory
would open the way to the rapid development of capitalism in
North America. They therefore vigorously supported the North,
objectively the vehicle of social progress. They assessed the
significance of the Civil War in the context of the overall outlook:
for the revolutionary movement in Europe and America, consider-
ing that it could give a powerful stimulus to social struggle and the
development of the working-class movement. ‘The slavery crisis in
the United States,” Marx wrote to Lassalle on 16 January 1861,
even before the beginning of the war, ‘will bring about a terrible
crisis in England...; the Manchester cotton lords are already
beginning to tremble’ (p. 246). Later, in a letter to Engels of
29 October 1862, Marx pointed out that events in America ‘are such
as to transform the world’ (p. 421).

As the letters show, Marx studied the history of the secession of
the Southern states very carefully and revealed its true nature and
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aims. Drawing on American sources, he refuted the claims of the
British bourgeois press about its ‘peaceful nature’. He demon-
strated that secession was not an act of self-defence, but a
predatory war for the expansion of slavery. For fifty years, the
slave-owners had been waging a steady offensive struggle against
the North. After the election of Abraham Lincoln as President in
1860, they went over to open military operations and on 12 April
1861 unleashed a war against the Union. Marx described secession
as ‘usurpations without exception’ by a handful of slave-owners, a
policy that was at odds with the interests of the vast majority of
the population even in the southern states and met the ‘strongest
opposition’ there (pp. 301, 305-09).

Marx, and especially Engels, followed the course of military
operations in-the USA. Engels summed up the major battles and
analysed the strategy and tactics of the two sides (see Engels’
letters to Marx of 12 June and 3 July 1861, 5 and 23 May and
30 July 1862, 11 June 1863, 9 June and 4 September 1864 and many
others). While noting the progressive nature of the war on the part
of the Northerners, Marx and Engels severely criticised the methods
of the Federal government, which was afraid to give the war a
nationwide revolutionary character and proclaim the abolition of
slavery. They also deplored the professional incompetence, indeci-
sion, cowardice and instances of outright treachery on the part of the
Federal government ministers and generals in the army of the North
who were associated, through material interests, with the
slaveowners of the South (pp. 307, 386-87, 414 and others).
Marx stressed in 1862 that ‘the way in which the North is waging
the war is none other than might be expected of a bourgeois
republic, where humbug has reigned supreme for so long’
(p. 416).

The military failures of the North sometimes made Engels
doubt the possibility of its winning, and he confided this to Marx
(pp. 386-88, 414-15 and others). Marx pointed out in his replies that,
in assessing the prospects of the war, consideration must be taken not
only of the strength of the armies on both sides, but of the totality of
economic, socio-political and military factors (pp. 400, 420-21). He
wrote to Engels on 10 September 1862: ‘It strikes me that you allow
yourself to be influenced by the military aspect of things a little too
much’ (p. 416).

In the letters of this period, the fundamental proposition of
Marxist military science is developed: that the character of a war
and the methods of its conduct are mutually determined. ‘...Unless
the North instantly adopts a revolutionary stance, it will get the
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terrible thrashing it deserves,” Engels wrote to Marx on 30 July
1862. Marx also emphasised that ‘wars of this kind ought to be
conducted along revolutionary lines, and the Yankees have so far
been trying to conduct it along constitutional ones’ (p. 400). He
was certain that sooner or later the people would compel the
government to change its mode of waging the war.

Subsequent events confirmed Marx’s predictions. In the middle
of 1862, having realised the need for decisive action, Lincoln put
through a series of revolutionary-democratic measures, the main
ones being the emancipation of the slaves, and the Homestead
Act, which gave great numbers of American farmers access to the
land. These measures, described by Marx as of ‘historical import’
(p- 421), became a turning-point in the history of the Civil War
and ensured the ultimate victory of the North. ‘The fury with
which the Southerners are greeting Lincoln’s acts is proof of the
importance of these measures,” Marx wrote to Engels on 29 October
1862.

As early as during the Civil War, Marx and Engels noted the
socio-economic factors that favoured the preservation of racial
discrimination and of national and social oppression in the USA
after the Republicans’ victory and the abolition of slavery. As
fighters for the proletarian revolution, they denounced American
bourgeois democracy, describing the USA as the ‘arche-
type of democratic humbug’ (p. 562). “The people have been
cheated,” wrote Engels, and the bourgeoisie is always ready to
compromise with the slave-owners for the sake of ‘the almighty
dollar’ (p. 457). The record of the Civil War bore out Marx’s and
Engels’ conclusion that the bourgeois-democratic republic was only
a stage on the road to proletarian revolution. As Engels wrote to
Marx on 15 November 1862, ‘..the bourgeois republic should be
utterly discredited..., so that ... it may never again be preached
on its own merits, but only as a means towards, and a form of
transition to social revolution’ (p. 428).

During the period in question, Marx and Engels were keeping a
close watch on the revolutionary events in Russia and Poland. As
can be seen from their letters, it was at this time that they began to
regard a peasant revolution in Russia as a potential stimulus to
proletarian revolution in Europe. They envisaged support for the
general European revolutionary movement in the campaign for
the abolition of serfdom in Russia which, in the late 1850s and
early 1860s, had produced a revolutionary situation there. ‘In my
view,” Marx wrote to Engels on 11 January 1860, ‘the most
momentous thing happening in the world today is the slave
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movement—on the one hand, in America, ... and in Russia, on the
other... Thus, a “social” movement has been started both in the
West and in the East. Together with the impending downbreak in
Central Europe, this promises great things’ (p. 4; see also
p- 7). Even after the abolition of serfdom, Marx and Engels
continued studying the unceasing actions of the peasants, robbed
by the 1861 reform.

Marx and Engels also discussed the implications of the peasant
movement in Russia for the national liberation struggle in Poland,
which they regarded as being of general European significance
and which, given the favourable development of events, could
become the starting-point of a revolution in Europe. They
considered that an uprising in Poland could call forth mass
peasant actions in Russia which, in their turn, would benefit the
movement in Poland. An alliance of the Russian and Polish
revolutionary movements could ensure the success of an uprising
in Poland. On learning of the Polish insurrection, which began in
January 1863, Marx wrote to Engels: ‘What do you think of the
Polish business? This much is certain, the era of revolution has
now fairly opened in Europe once more... This time, let us hope,
the lava will flow from East to West and not in the opposite
direction...”- (p. 453).

Marx and Engels also hoped that the Polish insurrection and the
peasant revolution in Russia would lead to a revolutionary upsurge
in Germany, and above all in Prussia, which was undergoing an
acute political crisis. Deprived of support from Russian tsarism,
the Prussian monarchy would lose its hegemony in Germany.
Engels wrote to Marx on 17 February 1863: ‘Monsieur Bismarck
knows that it will be a matter of life and death for him if there’s
revolution in Poland and Russia’ (p. 456).

In view of the vast importance of this question for Germany’s
future, Marx and Engels felt something had to be done to
stimulate democratic circles in Germany to take resolute action in
defence of the insurgent Poles and oppose the internal reaction.
With this aim in view, they decided, as early as in February 1863,
to write a pamphlet, Germany and Poland (pp. 455, 457-59), in which
they would trace, on the strength of concrete historical material,
Prussia’s predatory policy towards Poland and the rise of the
Hohenzollern dynasty. The idea was to demonstrate the absolute
incompatibility of Germany’s interests with those of ‘the Hohenzol-
lerns’ own state’ (p. 462), 1.e. of reactionary Prussia, which was the
main obstacle to the unification of Germany by democratic means.
Just as scathingly they denounced (also on the historical plane) the
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hypocritical policy of the British and French governments which,
while posing as Poland’s protectors, were pursuing their own selfish
ends (see, for example, pp. 462-63). Marx and Engels also disclosed
the treacherous role of the Polish nobility where their own people’s
interests were concerned (pp. 470-71).

In analysing the motive forces of the insurrection and its
prospects, Marx and Engels agreed that it could only succeed
given the broad participation of the peasant masses (p. 483). They
therefore attached special importance to the movement in
Lithuania, where an active part was being played by the
peasants-——a movement which extended beyond the bounds of the
Kingdom of Poland, to other provinces of the Russian empire
(p. 464). However, as early as in the summer of 1863 it was clear
that the chances of success were slight. The movement in Poland
did not develop into an agrarian revolution, and the struggle of
the peasants in Russia was by this time on the wane. The tsarist
government not only quelled the Polish insurrection but used it as
a pretext for suppressing the revolutionary movement at home,
thereby slowing down its further development.

The main cause of the insurrection’s failure, Marx and Engels
held, was that the leadership had been taken over by the
bourgeois-landowner party of ‘whites’. These were afraid to rely
on the popular masses and placed all their hopes on support from
the. government of Napoleon III and Palmerston. Marx and
Engels noted with alarm the growth of Bonapartist illusions
among the Polish democrats. On 15 August 1863 Marx wrote to
Engels: “The Polish affair has gone completely off the rails because
of ... Boustrapa [Napoleon III.—Fd], and the influence his
intrigues have given the Czartoryski party’ (p. 489). The same
social and political factors, in Engels’ opinion, were behind the
military failures of the insurgents. He also pointed out the weak
sides of their mijlitary organisation—the lack of experienced
commanders, the shortage of arms, and the low standard of
leadership, which led to considerable losses at the very beginning
of the uprising (pp. 461, 464, 466, 476, 483, 492).

Marx and Engels endeavoured to give practical support to the
Polish revolutionaries. They considered that sympathy for the
Polish liberation movement among the workers and democratic
circles in the West European countries should be used to organise
aid to the insurgents, and to strengthen the internationalism of the
workers of different countries. In their letters, Marx and Engels
wrote with outrage of the ‘foul conduct’ of the Prussian
government, which gave every possible assistance to Russian
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tsarism in crushing the insurrection. They-also denounced the
treacherous behaviour of the German liberal bourgeoisie, which
had become an accomplice of reaction. Marx wrote to Engels on
7 June 1864 that the ‘Prussian liberal press is too cowardly even so
much as to remark on the continued surrender of Polish refugees by
the Prussians’ (p. 538). '

The late 1850s and early 1860s marked a new stage in the
practical revolutionary activities of Marx and Engels, aimed at
setting up a revolutionary proletarian party. They had no plan
specifying the organisational forms of such a party as yet; the
structure of the Communist League was ill-suited for the needs of
a mass workers’ movement. During this period, Marx and Engels
were endeavouring to rally round them and educate the most
advanced representatives of the proletariat, and to protect them
from libel and harassment by class enemies.

The letters show how determinedly Marx and Engels sought
ways and means of influencing the working-class movement
(pp. 9, 13-14, 261, 455 and others). They widened their personal ties
with members of the working-class and democratic movements,
resuming old contacts and getting to know representatives of the
new generation of workers in Britain, Germany, Switzerland,
France, Belgium and the USA. Their closest associates were their old
comrades-in-arms, Johann Georg Eccarius, Wilhelm Wolff, Wil-
helm Liebknecht, Victor Schily, Wilhelm Eichhoff, Carl Pfinder
and others, many of whom had been members of the Com-
munist League. In 1859, Marx rejoined the German Workers’
Educational Society in London (p. 11); his lectures helped to
imbue its members with a spirit of proletarian solidarity and
taught them the rudiments of a revolutionary sciéntific world
outlook.

With great attention and hope, Marx and Engels followed the
renewed political activity of the British proletariat. As a result of
the blockade by the Northerners: navy of the Southern ports in
the USA, there was a ‘cotton famine’ in Europe, especially in
Britain. Closely connected with this was a crisis in the British
cotton industry, involving a sharp fall in- production and a
deterioration in the workers’ condition. British government circles,
which were planning armed intervention in the USA on the side
of the rebels, tried to win the support of the masses by trading on
the plight of the workers. The British proletariat, however, came
out resolutely against the bourgeoisie’s interventionist plans. Marx
and Engels approved of the mass meetings held by workers in
London, Manchester and other cities in 1862-63 to express their



XXXII Preface

solidarity with the opponents of slavery in the USA (pp. 440, 468).
On 26 March 1863, Marx attended one such meeting in St. James’
Hall, and in his letter of 9 April 1863 to Engels he commented with
satisfaction: “The working men themselves spoke very well indeed,
without a trace of bourgeois rhetoric or the faintest attempt to
conceal their opposition to the capitalists’ (p. 468). These meetings
did much towards educating English workers in the spirit of
internationalism. At the same time, Marx and Engels noted the
‘sheeplike attitude’ and ‘servile Christian nature’ of the majority of
the workers in England. They considered freeing these workers
from the influence of bourgeois ideology a primary task. Through
the German Workers’ Educational Society in London Marx
- established contacts with the English trades-union leaders who, in
acknowledgment of his services to the working class, invited him as
guest of honour to the inaugural meeting of the First Internation-
al on 28 September 1864.

Marx corresponded actively with his old colleague Joseph
Weydemeyer, whom he called ‘one of our best people’ (p. 117). He
helped Weydemeyer to organise Stimme des Volkes, the newspaper
of the Chicago Workers’ Society (pp. 115-19). Taking part in the
campaign for the defence of Auguste Blanqui, who was in prison,
Marx established ‘direct links with the decidedly revolutionary party
in France’ (p. 298). Marx and Engels saw that in France, as in
Britain, there was a noticeable growth of political activity by the

- working class, although its forces were still very weak (p. 477).

Marx and Engels were also keeping a finger on the pulse of the
working-class movement in Germany, drawing a great deal of
information, in particular, from the letters of Wilhelm Liebknecht,
who returned to his homeland in 1862. ‘... His continued sojourn
in Berlin is most important to us,” Marx wrote to Engels on 7 June
1864 (p. 537). Liebknecht’s activities in the General -Association of
German Workers, guided by the advice and directions of Marx
and Engels (pp. 537, 539), helped to disseminate the ideas of
scientific communism among the German workers. The establish-
ment of direct contacts with them was of great importance. In June
1864, a number of their representatives came from Solingen to visit
Marx in London. ‘...Now as ever,” he informed Engels after a talk
with them, ‘all were our resolute supporters’ (p. 533). At the end of
1862, Marx began corresponding with Ludwig Kugelmann, a
participant in the revolution of 1848-49, and with Johann Philipp
Becker, an eminent leader of the democratic and working-class
movement, whom he considered ‘one of the noblest German
revolutionaries’ (p. 356).
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A vita] task in the efforts to form a proletarian party was the
defence of the proletarian fighters, of the party ‘in the broad
historical sense’ (p. 87) from calumny and attacks by the
ideologists and agents of the bourgeoisie. In the late 18508, the
petty-bourgeois democrat Karl Vogt launched a smear campaign
against Marx and his associates. In December 1859, he brought
out a pamphlet, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, a piece
‘full of the most outrageous calumnies’ (p. 23). He resorted to
talsification of the facts and to barefaced lies to libel the
Communist League, portraying its members as conspirators in
secret contact with the police and accusing Marx of personal
motives. The libel was taken up by the European bourgeois press
and also by a number of German papers published in the USA.

Marx’s and Engels’ letters in 1860 testify to their correct
assessment of the ‘Vogt’s libellous work’ (p. 56) as an attempt to
discredit the nature and objectives of the battle being fought by the
proletarian revolutionaries. Marx’s steps against Vogt had ‘nothing
to do with private interests’, he wrote to Ferdinand Freiligrath on
23 February 1860. Vogt, he emphasised, was indiscriminately
slinging mud at the party (pp. 56, 57). Under these conditions
Marx and Engels considered a fitting rebuff to Vogt to be ‘crucial
to the historical vindication of the party and its subsequent
position in Germany’ (p. 54). The answer to his pamphlet
was Marx’s devastating exposé Herr Vogt (see present edition,
Vol. 17).

The correspondence enables us to trace step by step the
different. stages in the writing of this book. Marx spent nearly a
year on Herr Vogt, interrupting his economic research and the
work on Capital. To obtain the necessary information, he sent out
a great many letters to .friends, acquaintances and others who
could help in unmasking Vogt. He also consulted his personal
archives and studied a vast quantity of other material. Herr Vogt
was written in close collaboration with Engels, who helped Marx at
every stage of the work. The preparations for the writing and the
book itself played an important part in rallying the proletarian
revolutionaries, especially the German ones (in Germany and
Switzerland) and in consolidating their prestige with the masses.

When he began work on the pamphlet, Marx brought a lawsuit
against the Berlin National-Zeitung, a bourgeois daily which in
January 1860 had reproduced Vogt’s vilest insinuations in two
leading articles. Marx’s aim in instituting the proceedings was the
public unmasking of the libeller (pp. 21-22). However, as is clear
from Marx s correspondence with Weber (his lawyer in Berlin)

2—558
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and others, the suit was dismissed. Marx’s complaint was
successively rejected at four judicial levels on the pretext that ‘no
discernible public interest was involved’. In his letters, Marx
revealed the class nature of the Prussian legal system and the true
reasons why the Berlin courts had rejected his case. ‘It is, of
course, “an issue of public importance” to the Prussian govern-
ment that we should be traduced to the utmost, he wrote
sarcastically to Engels on 24 April 1860 (p. 129).

Marx’s Herr Vogt, which came out on 1 December 1860,
denounced Vogt as a paid Bonapartist agent (p. 132) and gave a
true picture of the views and activiies of the proletarian
revolutionaries. Engels greeted its appearance enthusiastically.
“The thing’s splendid,” he wrote to Marx on 3 December 1860
(p- 222), and in his letter of 19 December, he described it as Marx’s
‘best polemical work’ (p. 231).

The revolutionary theory of Marx and Engels affirmed its
influence within the working-class movement in struggle against
bourgeois ideology, reformism, opportunism and petty-bourgeois
socialism. During the period covered by this volume, Marx and
Engels considered that their main objective in this field was
criticism of the reformist theory and opportunist tactics of
Ferdinand Lassalle, who claimed the role of organiser and
theoretician of the working-class movement in Germany. Mean-
while, working out a truly scientific programme and tactics had
become a matter of cardinal importance to the German working-
class movement in the early 1860s as it had grown numerically and
adopted a course of independent political struggle, and needed, in
particular, to define its position on the most urgent problem
facing the country, that of unification.

Marx and Engels took a positive view of Lassalle’s efforts to free
the German proletariat from the influence of the bourgeois Party
of Progress and the cooperativistic ideas of Schulze-Delitzsch. It
was his practical activity that they approved of. ‘...It's quite a
good thing that an audience for anti-bourgeois stuff should be
recaptured in this way,’ Engels wrote to Marx on 20 May 1863
(p. 473). The foundation in May 1863, with Lassalle’s direct
participation, of the General Association of German Workers
initiated the recovery of the independent working-class movement
in Germany. Marx and Engels saw this as a service by Lassalle.

However, Lassalle’s programme for the working-class movement
encountered harsh criticism from Marx and Engels. In the
summer of 1862, as a result of discussions with Lassalle in
London, Marx became convinced that ‘all we had in common
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politically were a few remote objectives’ (p. 400). He severely
criticised ‘An Open Reply to the Central Committee on the
Convocation of the General German Workers’ Congress in
Leipzig’, drawn up by Lassalle as a platform for the Association.
Lassalle’s programme created the illusion that it was possible to
achieve socialism without a consistent revolutionary class struggle,
by agitation for universal suffrage and by setting up production
associations with state assistance. ‘He solves the wages v. capital
problem “with delightful ease”,” wrote Marx ironically (p. 467).

Marx and Engels stressed that Lassalle did not understand the
true conditions for the emancipation of the proletariat as set forth
and substantiated in their writings. On the subject of Lassalle’s
‘Workers' Programme’, Marx wrote to Engels on 28 January 1863:
‘...the thing’s no more nor less than a badly done vulgarisation of
the Manifesto and of other things we have advocated so often that
they have already become to a certain extent commonplace’
(p- 452). In their letters, Marx and Engels repeatedly criticised
Lassalle for his distortion of the ideas he had borrowed from them,
his ‘historical and theoretical blunders’ (p. 479), his boastfulness and
petty conceit (see pp. 389, 390, 440-41, 488-89, 534).

Marx and Engels were particularly worried by Lassalle’s tactics.
With the constitutional conflict deteriorating, Lassalle’s attacks
exclusively on the bourgeois-liberal Party of Progress were playing
into the hands of reaction. Condemning this flirting’ with the’
government (Marx and Engels did not yet know of Lassalle’s direct
negotiations with Bismarck), Engels wrote to Marx on 11 June
1863: “The chap’s now operating purely in the service of Bismarck’
(p- 478). As early as in the Manifesto of the Communist Party (1848),
Marx and Engels wrote that in fighting feudal reaction the German
workers should seek an alliance with the bourgeoisie, ‘whenever it
acts in a revolutionary way. They considered it necessary,
however, to encourage among the workers ‘the clearest possible
recognition of the hostile antagonism between bourgeoisie and
proletariat’ (present edition, Vol. 6, p. 519). Lassalle ‘could have
found out perfectly well from the Manifesto what attitude one
ought to adopt towards the bourgeoisie at times such as these’,
wrote Engels (p. 494).

The differences with Lassalle were over matters of principle,
which is why Marx and Engels avoided joint political actions with
him lest he compromise them (pp. 261, 399-400, 469-70). At the
same time, they considered that any public criticism of Lassalle
would be injudicious, since his agitation was contributing to the
political unification of the German working class. They foresaw,

2*
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however, that an open attack on his reformist and sectarian views was
unavoidable. This is shown by a letter from Marx to Engels of
12 June 1863, in which he wrote that he was only waiting for an
opportune moment to reply publicly to Lassalle in order ‘1) to show
the public how and where he had cribbed from us; 2) how and where
we differ from his stuff’ (p. 480). Meanwhile, however, having
realised the futility of trying to influence him, they virtually broke
with Lassalle in 1863-64 by gradually ceasing to correspond with
him. At this time, Marx and Engels considered that their task was
the theoretical elaboration and dissemination of a scientifically
based strategy and tactics for the German working-class move-
ment. They maintained a regular correspondence with their
supporters in Germany, who were carrying on active revolutionary
propaganda among the workers.

The letters that Marx and Engels wrote in September 1864 after
receiving the news of Lassalle’s death give an objective assessment
of his activity and his role in the German working-class movement.
Marx stressed that Lassalle ‘was one of the vieille souche [old stock]
and the foe of our foes’ (p. 560). In a letter to Marx of 4 September
Engels noted that as a political leader, Lassalle was undoubtedly ‘one
of the most significant men in Germany’, and by way of a
summing-up he continued: ‘For us he was a very uncertain friend
now and would, in future, most certainly have been our enemy’
(p. 558).

The letters in this volume show how, thanks to his theoretical
and journalistic activities and expanding contacts with the work-
ing-class movement, Marx’s name had become known to a new
generation by the time of the establishment of the International
Working Men’s Association. The services he had rendered
predetermined his role as leader of the First International, and its
development on a Marxist ideological platform.

The correspondence during the period covered by the present
volume is an important source of biographical information about
Marx and Engels. It reveals their nobility of character and gives an
insight into their domestic life and into their circle of friends.
Marx’s letters testify to his abiding love and respect for his wife.
Arriving in Trier in December 1863, he writes to her, remember-
ing events of thirty years ago: ‘I have made a daily pilgrimage to
the old Westphalen home (in the Neustrasse), which interested
me more than any Roman antiquities because it reminded me of
the happiest days of my youth and had harboured my greatest
treasure’ (p. 499).

The years 1860-64 were a difficult period for both men. Late in
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1860 Jenny Marx fell seriously ill, and illness struck Marx himself
down early in January 1861. These troubles were followed by
serious financial difficulties. Having ceased to contribute to the
New-York Tribune and Die Presse, he had lost a small but steady
source of income. To prevent himself and his family from ‘actually
being relegated to the streets’, as Marx wrote to Ludwig
Kugelmann on 28 December 1862 (pp. 435-36), he decided to work
in a railway office, but was rejected because of his bad handwriting.
He was rescued by Engels’ consideration, unselfishness, and constant
readiness to help a friend in need. ‘I can’t tell you how grateful I am;’
Marx wrote to Engels on 28 January 1863, ‘although I myself ... did
not require any fresh proof of your friendship to convince me of its
self-sacrificing nature’ (p. 448).

Meanwhile, Engels continued working in the offices of the
Ermen & Engels firm ‘as clerk with a percentage of the profits, in
return for a guarantee that I shall become a partner in a few
years’ time’ (p. 134). He regularly sent Marx part of his income,
also giving material aid to other comrades. In March 1860, Engels
received the news of his father’s death. A littde while later, his
mother, whom he loved very much, fell dangerously ill. ‘I might
acquire a hundred other businesses, but never a second mother,’
he wrote to her on 27 February 1861. A heavy loss to Engels was
the sudden death in January 1863 of Mary Burns, his faithful
companion in life. ‘I simply can’t convey what I feel,” he wrote to
Marx on 7 January 1863 (p. 441). ‘I felt as though with her I was
burying the last vestige of my youth’ (pp. 446-47).

Marx and Engels were always ready to come to the assistance of
friends and fellow fighters who were having a hard time in
emigration. In the summer of 1860, Marx, in spite of his own
personal circumstances, rented a room for Eccarius, who was
seriously ill, in an attempt to provide the conditions for his early
recovery. Subsequently, both Marx and Engels stepped in to help
their comrade and his family.

In May 1864, death claimed an old friend and close associate of
Marx and Engels—Wilhelm Wolff, who had been living in
Manchester since 1853. After Wolff’s death, Marx wrote to his
wife: ‘In him we have lost one of our few friends and fellow
fighters. He was a man in the best sense of the word’ (p. 523).

Marx and Engels bore their trials and tribulations with courage
and fortitude. They were helped in this by their great friendship
and their implicit faith in the historical justice of the cause of the
working class. It was from this that they drew the strength to
continue the struggle.



XXXVIIE Preface

Volume 41 contains 340 letters written by Marx and Engels.
Most of them were written in German, 17 were in English, 2 in
French, and a number were written in two languages (9 in
German and English, and one in German and Danish). The
majority of these letters are being published in English for the
first time. Only 114 have already appeared in English, of which 87
were abridged. All these publications are mentioned in the notes.
The letters of Jenny and Laura Marx in the Appendices are being
published in English for the first ume.

Obvious slips of the pen have been corrected without comment.
Proper names, geographical names and words abbreviated by the
authors have been expanded, also without comment. Passages
struck out by the authors are reproduced in footnotes only when
they contain an important idea or shade of meaning.

Defects in the manuscript are explained in the footnotes, and
passages in which the text has been lost or is indecipherable are
indicated by three dots in square brackets. Wherever a presumable
reconstruction has been possible, the restored passages have been
enclosed in square brackets.

Foreign words and expressions have been retained in the
language of the original, the translation being given in footnotes
where necessary. Small caps have been used to indicate English
words and expressions occurring in German-language letters.
Longer passages written in English in the original are placed in
asterisks. C

The volume was compiled, the text prepared and the notes
written by Galina Kostryukova (letters from January 1860 to
mid-June 1861) and Galina Voitenkova (letters from mid-June
1861 to mid-September 1864). They also jointly wrote the Preface.
Valentina Smirnova was the editor.Yelena Makarova in conjunction
with Andrei Pozdnyakov prepared the indexes of names, quoted and
mentioned literature, and periodicals (Institute of Marxism-
Leninism of the CC CPSU).

The translations were made by Peter and Betty Ross and edited
by E. ]J. Hobsbawm and Nicholas Jacobs (Lawrence & Wishart),
Glenys Ann Kozlov, Yelena Kalinina, Margarita Lopukhina, Mzia
Pitskhelauri, Victor Schnittke and Andrei Skvarsky (Progress
Publishers) and Norire Ter-Akopyan, scientific editor (USSR
Academy of Sciences).

The volume was prepared for the press by the editors Nadezhda
Rudenko and Anna Vladimirova.
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1
MARX TO ENGELS

IN.MANCHESTER!
[London, after 11 January 1860]

11 January 1860

Dear Marx,

Today I am sending you, under separate cover, a copy. of the supplement to
No. 349 of last year’s Kolnische Zeitung.
The Wilhelm Joseph Reiff mentioned therein as having a warrant out against

him for “immoral conduct” is, so I am told, none other than the Reiff who

appeared at the trial of the Communists in Cologne and who is presently over here
and living off the party.

Now I have written to Reiff today (care of Liebknecht, not knowing how else to
get in touch with him), infofming him that I can no longer take any interest in
him —that I forbid him to continue to use me as a reference—and that I will not
tolerate his visits!

Thus, for my part, I have acted as I thought fit. What attitude the party will
wish to adopt towards this dirty business is its own affair. You are now in
possession of the facts!

Your
F. Freiligrath

I had never received the said ‘Reiff’ at my house because the
fellow was suspect, and more than suspect, on account of his
conduct at the communist trial,” whereas the ‘fat rhymester’* had
taken him under his protection and saddled Liebknecht with him.
Since then, the fellow has been living off Liebknecht, the
Laplander,” Lessner, Schroder, etc., and other poor devils, besides
having the hat passed round at the Workers’ Society,® etc.

The above letter from Freiligrath is all the news of the Teuton
that I have had since the great retreat.* And what an absurd letter
it is. How grotesque the grandeur behind which there lurks the

a Freiligrath - * Anders
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mentality of a cringing cur. F. seems to think that prose can be
put to rights with the help of exclamation marks. “The party’ is to
‘adopt an attitude’. Towards what? Towards Wilhelm Joseph
Reiff’s ‘immoral conduct’'—or ‘this dirty business’, as Beta’s friend
describes it. What an imposition. By the way, I might mention en
passant that the ‘Association of German Men’,” founded by an
equivocal compositor called Zinn, has nominated Prince Albert,
Gottfried Kinkel, K. Blind and F. Freiligrath as its ‘honorary
freemen’. The Cheruscan® has, of course, accepted the charter.

Next Monday I have to pay a £1 instalment at the Marylebone
countTy-courT.” At the same time, I have received from the
Westminster counTy-courT (ON BEHALF OF A Bakir) the enclosed scrap of
paper, which you must return to me. What I foresaw is coming to
pass. No sooner has one philistine found his way to the
county-court than he is followed by another. If things go on like
this, I really don’t know how I can keep my head above water.
What is so disastrous about these constant interruptions is that I
simply cannot get on with my work.?

The review in the Darmstadt Militir-Zeitung is most weLCOME.
Your recent pamphlet® has assured you a position as a military
critic in Germany. As soon as you get the opportunity, you must
publish something under your own name, adding beneath it
‘Author of Po and Rhine’. Our rascally enemies shall see sy and sy that
we're able simply to impress the public without first seeking
permission from it or its Betas.

In my view, the most momentous thing happening in the world
today is the slave movement—on the one hand, in America,
started by the death of Brown,'” and ir Russia, on the other. You
will have read that the aristocracy in Russia literally threw
themselves into constitutional agitation and that two or three
members of leading families have already found their way to
Siberia.'" At the same time, Alexander has displeased the peasants,
for the recent manifesto declares outright that, with emancipation,
‘THE COMMUNISTIC princiLE must be abandoned.” Thus, a ‘social’
movement has been started both in the West and in the East.
Together with the impending pownereak in Central Europe, this
promises great things.

I have just seen in the Tribune that there’s been another slave
revolt in Missouri, which was put down, needless to say.'? But the

9

2 Po and Rhine - ® This refers to the item ‘Progress and Final Issue of the Peasantry
Question. A Memorial submitted to the consideration of the Chief Peasantry Question
Committee by the President, Adjutant-General Rostoffzeff in The Daily Telegraph,
No. 1417, 11 January 1860.
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signal has now been given. Should the affair grow serious sy and
sv, what will become of Manchester?

Leonard Horner has resigned his post. His last brief report is
replete with bitter irony.* Could you possibly find out whether the
Manchester miowners had a hand in his resignation?

It appears from the ‘Facrory Insrectors’ Revorrs’ (of ‘18551859
first six months’) that, since 1850, industry in England has made
miraculous progress. The state of health of the workers (apuvirs)
has improved since your Condition of the Working-Class (which I
have reread at the Museum?”), whereas that of the children
(mortality) has deteriorated.

Salut.

Your
K. M.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

Published in English in tull for the
first time

2
MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE

IN PARIS
London, 12 January 1860

My dear Sir,

Thanks for the point you have in my affair.’ This letter has
been delayed, because I had entered into negotiations, on behalf
of your publication, with a publisher who, having put me off from
day to day, withdrew at last.'*

Bentley is not your man. Try once with John Murray. In writing
to those fellows, never forget to sign as ancient Minister. This is
something with those flunkeys.

Yours truly
AL WE

2 Report of Leonard Horner, Esq., Inspector of Factories, for the Half Year ended the 31st
October 1859, dated 14 November 1859, in Reports of the Inspectors of Factories to Her
Majesty’s Principal Secretary of State for the Home Department, for the Half Year Ending 3 1st
October 1859, London, 1860. - P the British Museum Library - ¢ A. Williams, an alias
used by Marx in some of his letters.
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Would you be so kind to inform me, in your next letter, of the
real state of things in Hungary?

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English), in Revue d’histoire com-
parée, t. IV, No. 1-2, Budapest, 1946

3
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 25 January 1860

Dear Engels,

Have you already heard about Vogt's pamphlet,® in which there
are the most horrible scurrilities concerning me? And, what is
more, the thing is being jubilantly acclaimed by the Teutonic®
bourgeoisie. The first edition has already been sold out. Yesterday,
a reaper in the National-Zeitung contained a long defamatory
passage from it.° (Any chance of your laying hands on this
particular number of the Nai.-Zeit.? 1 haven’t been able to get hold
of it here.) Now, what ought I to do? Mr Lassalle would seem to
have taken such umbrage at my last letter that there hasn’t been a
word from him since.'

I should be grateful if you could have an article reapy for Friday
or Saturday? (there is a ship sailing via Cork).

Salut.
Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first

time

a C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859, - b Marx uses
the archaic form ‘teutschen’ instead of the standard ‘‘deutschen’ (German,
Germanic). - ¢ ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’, National-Zeitung, No. 37,
22 January 1860. - 4 27 and 28 January
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4
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

Manchester, 26 January 1860

Dear Moor,

Tomorrow being Tribune day,” I'm sorry that there should
again be no material to hand; the few notes on Morocco in The
Times* don’t even run to the engagement at Cabo-Negro," nor
has anything else happened. However, you’ll have enough material
with the parliamentary stuff.” I am still waiting to hear about the
reform of the Prussian army as well."

Your opinton of the importance of the slave movement in
America and Russia‘ is already being confirmed. The Harpers-
Ferry affair,'” with its sequel in Missouri,'” is bearing fruit.
Everywhere the free niccers® in the South are being hounded out
of the states, and I have just seen from the first New York cotton
report (W. P. Wright & Co of 10 January 1860)° that the planters
HURRIED theil‘ COtton ON TO THE PORTS TN ORDER TO GUARD AGAINST ANY PROBABLE
CONSEQUENCES ARISING OUT OF THE HARPERS-FERRY AFFAIR. In Russia, tOO, the
confusion is growing admirably; the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung’s
St. Petersburg correspondent is very goord on this subject, though
he pays more attention to the constitutional movement among the
aristocracy,’ which, however, also provides a certain impetus for
the peasants, of course.

In India we have the makings of a tremendous crisis. As far as
the views of the local philistines on the subject are concerned,
conrer the enclosed marker rerorts. Now yarn prices are mostly so
high, almost higher than the peak in 1857, and yet cotton is 2%/
to 2'/sd cheaper. Twenty-six new mills are under construction in
Burnley alone, and a proportionate number in other places.

4 ‘Spain and Morocco’, The Times, Nos. 23523, 23524 and 23526, 23, 24 and 26
January 1860. - » See Marx’s article ‘English Politics’ in Vol. 17 of the present
edition. - ¢ See this volume, p. 4. - 4 Engels, who uses the English word, may have
been unaware of its racist connotations. - ¢ ‘Commercial Matters’, New-York Daily
Tribune, No. 5839, 11 January 1860. - ‘Zur russischen Leibeigenschaftsfrage
und die Finanz-Verhilinisse des Staats’, Allgemeine Zeitung, Nos. 3 and 5
(supplement), 3 and 5 January 1860; ‘Die Bauern-Emancipation in Russland’,
Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 16 (supplement), 16 January 1860; ‘Die russische
Leibeigenschaft  und der Adel’, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 18 (supplement),
18 January 1860.
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Everywhere, by degrees, the workers are getting a 10% rise in
wages and will shortly receive even more. In my view, the practice
of operating on fictitious capital is again just as wrie in Indian
business as it was in 1846/47, and most people are buying only
because they have to, and cannot stop. But, even if that were not
so, the increase in production alone will bring about a colossal
cortarse this autumn or in the spring of 1861 at the latest.

Already these idiotic English believe that they will shortly
inundate. France.** A jackass of a calico printer—onr or rHe
suarpesT—says that, with a 30% protective tariff in France, the
business he could do there would be 15% more profitable than on
any other market. The fool imagines that monopoly prices will
continue to obtain in France, even if the monopoly is abolished. It
has occurred to no one that the whole thing is a piece of sharp
practice, the aim being to get at John Bull where he is notoriously
vulnerable, and ultimately to fleece him good and proper.

Who, actually, is the Mr Fischel who wrote the Duke of
Coburg’s* pamphlet for him?*' and now writes for The Free Press?
Even from the excerpts from his pamphlet I could see that the-
Coburg chap has Urquhartite rLeaxings. ’

Dronke is now in Liverpool and holds a very good agency for a
Franco-Spanish copper mining company—£500 guaranteed and
the possibility of earning up to £1,000, or so I'm told.
Garnier-Pages got it for him. He comes here quite often, but
always steers clear of me, sending me his regards post festum.

Lupus has had a bad bout of bronchitis but is better now
though still very anxious about himself and not yet fully
recovered. Once again he has so arranged matters as to be in a
chronic state of strife with his ravpLapy.

I have a great deal to do at the office just now, hence the
irregularity of my correspondence. Nor, for the time being, do 1
see that anything can be done about this excessive drudgery
unless, as 1 hope, there is a crisis.

Many regards to your wife and the vouxc rapis ",

Your
F. E.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . o
1913 Published in English m full for the

first time

a Ernst II - b Marx’s daughters— Jenny, Laura and Eleanor
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5
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 28 January [1860]
Dear Engels,

I have ordered Vogt’s pamphlet® and shall also have one sent to
you. It is the record (or first complete version) of his ineffectual
lawsuit in Augsburg, together with an introduction. The latter is
directed especially against myself and would seem to be a second
and amended edition of Muller-Tellering.” As soon as the stuff
arrives, we must see what we can do. Faucher told me wirn an
INTENSE PLEASURE that Vogt treats me pretty well en canaille® and with
exuisite  contempt. The scoundrel tries to make the German
philistine believe I am living here like a Dr Kuhimann at the
workers’ expense, etc. (Needless to say, I have kept the whole
squalid business from my wife.)

A new military weekly has come out in Berlin.© It seems to me
that, on pretext of asking him about this paper’s wuereasouTs, you
should mmepiateLy write to Lassalle. It is essential for us to have
some sort of connection in Berlin just now. L.s reply to you will
show whether we can carry on with him or not. In the latter
case—which, all things considered, would not be pleasant—I
should have to have recourse to Dr Fischel (Prussian assessor),
about whom more anon. There is no reason why, in your letter to
L., you should not let fall the remark that I consider the obstacles
(or at least his warnings i~ ThaT recarp) he placed in the way of my
publishing a statement on Vogt in the Volks-Zeitung (the same,
that is, as appeared in the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung®), to be a
kind of conseiracy with Vogt on his and Duncker’s part. Then, of
course, you might drop a word or two to the effect that, in view of
the ambiguous attitude of sundry old party friends (a few
incidental urrs veon Freiligrath®), the difficulty of my position and
the infamies I have to contend with, my Temeer is, at times, a trifle
frayed; further, that I have mentioned to you a letter I wrote to L.
which the latter has apparently taken amiss.® You, for your part,
will naturally suggest that L. knows me too well not to overlook an

a C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - ® as less than
nothing - ¢ Militdrische Bldtter - 4 K. Marx, ‘Declaration’, 15 November 1859. -
€ Marx to Lassalle, 22 November 1859 (see present edition, Vol. 40).
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occasional brusque remark, etc. Then he will at least cease to beat
about the bush. I am altogether of the opinion that a certain
amount of diplomacy is now called for—if only to find out just
where we stand. After all, compared with the others, L. is still a
HORSE-POWER. )

The fact is the various gangs—first the imperial rascals,”
secondly the German National Association® and, lastly, the
liberals, are presently doing everything in their power to destroy
us morally in the eyes of the German philistines. There can hardly
be any doubt that, despite all the clamour for peace, THere wiLL BE &
NEw waR, probably within the year, very probably before the advent
of summer. In any case, the international situation is so complex
that it is .of the utmost importance to vulgar democracy and
liberalism to stop us obtaining a hearing from, or access to,
German philistia (i.e. the public). There comes a point when one
can no longer turn a blind eye—i.e. show indifference—in
personal and party matters. Vogt's case does not lend itself to
exactly the same treatment as that of a Tellering, a Heinzen or
tutti quanti® In Germany this same ventriloquist is looked on as a
scientific celebrity; he was imperial regent and is financed by
Bonaparte. You might also—just, as it were, en passant—ask the
noble Lassalle what action he thinks appropriate in the matter of
V. In his letters to me, L. has committed himself too deeply to
perform a complete volte face. At all events, an attempt must be
made to force the fellow to adopt a definite position— aut, aut”*

Fischel is a Prussian Urquhartite. In the Berlin Porifolio, of
which he is the publisher, he has alluded to my ant-Pam*®
pamphlets and printed some extracts from them.” (On Urquhart’s
express instructions.) He had been invited by the Urquhartites to
come to England where he was paraded before the Foreion Arramrs
Commrrress?’ as evidence of the triumphant ‘belief’ (in Urquhart)
on the Continent. I met him while he was over here. He offered
me his good services, should I require them in the North German
press.

Hip-hip-hurray and away to Italy® (by that louse Bamberger in
Paris) is said to contain attacks on your articles in the Volk?®

What did Mr Orges say in his statement?® I missed it.

If possible, write something for Tuesday* (it doesn’t have to be
long) on the military 1mportance of Savoy (and Nice) to France
Cf. Times or Topay, Normanby in the Housk or Lorbs.

2 all the rest - b either or - ¢ anti-Palinerston - ¢ [L. Bamberger,] Juchhe nach Italia!,
Bern and Geneva, 1859. - ¢ 31 January - ! Engels wrote the article ‘Savoy and Nice’.
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Apropos! ‘In recognition of my services to the development of
communistic principles’, I have received an invitation to the
anniversary celebrations on 6 February of the ‘Workers’ Educa-
tional Society’ down here. (For these chaps still regard themselves
as heirs to the old Windmill Association.)® Similar invitations, if
for different reasons, have gone out to Schapper, Pfinder and
Eccarius. Circumstances being what they arve, 1 have, of course,
accepted the invitation, thus wiping out all traces of the old
quarrel with the working men’s bunch. Mr F. Freiligrath has not
been invited. Indeed, I must now take care not to run into
Potbelly. For in my present state of fury over the filthy Vogt
affair—and F. F.’s magna pars® therein*—fearful eruptions might
well ensue. Regards to Lupus.

Salut.
Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN
London, 30 January 1860

Dear Lassalle,

I was very glad to get your letter. For I had believed—and had
written to tell Engels so®—that your reason for not writing was
pique at my last letter."

I can only spare a minute or two since I have a leader to write
today for the New-York Tribune. Quite briefly then:

1. I shall send you the pamphlet on the ‘Communist Trial™
straight away. So far as I am aware, you have already had one
from me.

4 large part - ® See this volume, p. 6.- ¢ K. Marx, Revelations Concerning the
Communist Trial in Cologne.
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2. Vogt has been careful not to let his Telleringian concoction—
i.e. the first version® —reach us here. Neither Freiligrath (whom I
have just seen) nor Kinkel, nor the Hermann, nor any of the
booksellers over here have had it. The imperial rascal® wishes, or
course, to steal a march on me.

What I know, I have learned from the National-Zeitung* A pack
of Stieberian lies. 1 have written and told my lawyer in Berlin® to
sue the N.-Z. for libel. What do you think of this? Let me know by
return.

From your letter I see that Vogt himself admits having been
bought indirectly by Bonaparte,” for I know about the manoeuvres
of your revolutionary Hungarians. I denounced them in London
in an English paper® and had five corirs sent to Mr Kossuth. He
kept his trap shut. In New York, and elsewhere, Hungarian
refugees have adopted resolutions censuring him.

Your reasoning ad vocem Vogt eludes me. 1 shall write a
pamphlet as soon as I get hold of his rubbish. But I shall begin by
saying in the foreword that 1 don’t give a damn about the opinion
of your German public.

Liebknecht is an upright man. The Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung
is—to my mind—just as good as the N.-Z. and the Volks-Zeitung™

To judge by the excerpts I have seen in the N.-Zeitung, Vogt is
some kind of Chenu or de la Hodde.*

3. About my work on political economy—the second instalment,
when it appears, will contain only the conclusion of section I,
Book I, and there are six books.” Hence you cannot wait until it is
finished.”® However, you would, in your own interests, be well-advised
to await the next instalment which contains the quintessence.
Appalling circumstances are to blame for the fact that it isn’t yet in
Berlin.

Salut.
K. M.
First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachge- Printed according to the original‘
lassene Briefe und Schriften, Bd. III, . . . .
Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Published in English for the first

time

2 ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’, National-Zeitung, No. 37, 22 January
1860. - ® Eduard Fischel - ¢ K. Marx, ‘Particulars of Kossuth’s transaction with Louis
Napoleon’, The Free Press, No. 10, 28 September 1859. It was an abridged version
of Marx’s article ‘Kossuth and Louis Napoleon’, published in the New-York Daily
Tribune, No. 5748, 24 September 1859.
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7
ENGELS TO MARX
IN LONDON

Manchester, 31 January 1860

Dear Moor,

I intend to write to Ephraim Artful® tomorrow; a diplomatic
missive such as this ought not to be sent off without due
reflection. For a day or two now, I have been mulling over Savoy,
Nice and the Rhine, a kind of sequel to Po and Rhine. 1 have made
up my mind to offer the thing to Duncker; it won’t be more than
2 sheets long and might provide a good pretext for getting in
touch with Ephraim. At all events, 1 shall write the thing in the
course of next week, after which I shall immediately send the
manuscript to Berlih. Apart from one or two matters concerning
the French revolutionary campaigns in Nice and Savoy, no
preparatory work is called for, so it will be soon done.

Obviously Mr Vogt must be given a thorough lambasting; but
it’s difficult to say anything until we know what the fellow has
actually published.” At all events, you might just as well use
Fischel as anyone else, provided he really does have connections.
Moreover, little Jew Braun® will now see that the significance of
your statement® and of the whole set-to between Vogt and the
Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung® is of quite a different order to what
the Berlin philistine at first imagined. As things stand, we must
maintain all these connections, while the conspiration du silence and
other intrigues, to which we must meanwhile turn a blind eye, will
subsequently release us from all obligations as soon as some crisis
necessitates a breach on genuinely political grounds.

As to the chances of a fresh set-to, I am entrely of your
opinion.! But I believe that if, despite Vogt and Co., we are to
keep our end up so far as the public is concerned, we shall have to
do it through our scientific work. We haven’t the money to
organise the émigré press and several times we have seen that an
émigré paper or German pamphlets printed in London never

4 Ferdinand Lassalle - ¥ This refers to Carl Vogis pamphlet, Mein Prozess gegen die
Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - < See this volume, p. 10. -9 Lassalle -
¢ K. Marx, ‘Declaration’, 15 November 1859. - f See this volume, p. 9.
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command a public (in Germany) unless the thing can be kept
going for a year at least. In Germany itself direct political and
polemical action, as our party understands it, is a sheer
impossibility. So, what remains? Either we hold our tongues or we
make Errorts that are known only to the emigration and the
American Germans but not to anyone in Germany, or else we go
on as we have begun, you in your first instalment® and I in Po and
Rhine. That, 1 think, is the main thing just now and, if we act
accordingly, no matter how much Vogt may howl, we shall scon be
back on a roorine such as will enable us (WHENEVER REQUIRED) tO
publish the necessary personal statements in one German paper or
another. The early appearance of your 2nd instalment® is
obviously of paramount importance in this connection and 1 hope
that you won'’t let the Vogt affair stop you from getting on with it.
Do try for once to be a little less conscientious with regard to your
own stuff; it is, in any case, far too good for the wretched public.
The main thing is that it should be written and published; the
shortcomings that catch your eye certainly won’t be apparent to
the jackasses; and, when times become turbulent, what will it avail
you to have broken off the whole thing before you have even
finished the section on capital in general?® I am very well aware of
all the other interruptions that crop up, but I also know that the
delay is due mainly to your own scruples. Come to that, it’s surely
better that the thing should appear, rather than that doubts like
these should prevent its appearing at all.

Mr Orges has issued a pur personal statement” which reveals
who this queer fish is. Originally a Prussian lieutenant of artillery
at the military college in Berlin (1845-48), at the same time, he
pursued his studies and obtained his doctorate; he left the service
in March 1848 (his application to resign is dated 19 March 48)
and went to Schleswig-Holstein where he joined the artillery; in
1850, he joined the crew of a merchant vessel, in which he ‘served’
and sailed round the world; in 1851, he attended the Exhibition in
London,*® which he reported for the A. A. Z; he was then
consorting with Schimmelpfennig, Willich, Techow, etc., and,
subsequently, became the A. A. Z’s military editor. At all events,
there’s more to the man than anyone else on the paper, which he
has set on its feet again. The leaders I attributed to Heilbronner
are all by him. Nevertheless, I'll still be able to deal with him good
and proper.

a K. Marx, A Contribution to the Critique of Political Economy. - » See this volume,
p. 10.
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The invitation from the louts® has come at a fairly opportune
moment. But I trust that you won’t, of course, allow yourself to be
drawn into anything else, for this is ground we know only too
well; fortunately you live some distance away.

Many regards,

Your
F. E.

The Prussians have approached my old man® with the intention
of confiscating my assets to the tune of 1,005 talers, 20 [silver
groschen] 6 pfennigs*® because of my dlleged desertion from the
Landwehr.*’ My old man told them that he had no access to my
assets, whereupon they calmed down. I am to be sentenced on
18 February.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original,
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,

Stuttgart, 1913 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 31 January 1860

Dear Engels,

Your article® received. Very good.

Herewith a letter from Lassalle which arrived yesterday and to
which I replied immediately, if briefly. Only a pamphlet written
by us jointly will get us out of this business. I have also written
secretly to Fischel in Berlin, asking whether it is feasible to bring a
libel suit against the National-Zeitung.** Vogt’s piece ¢ (not to be had
at any booksellers in London; he has sent it neither to Freiligrath
nor to Kinkel, nor to any of his other acquaintances over here.
Obviousty he wished to steal a march on us. I have thus had to
order it) is, so far as we are concerned, clearly a de Ia
Hodde-Chenusian concoction.® 1 have read the second article in

2 See this volume, p. 9. - P Friedrich Engels, Sr., Frederick Engels’ father - < ‘Savoy
and Nice’ - 4 See this volume, pp. 11-12. - € Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung,
Geneva, 1859.
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the Nat.-Z? from which I see inter alia that Lupus (described as
Casemate Wolff, Parliamentary Wolff) is alleged to have sent a
circular to a reactionary Hanoverian paper in 1850.* It gives a
réchauffé of all the foul refugee gossip of 1850-52. The jubilation
of the bourgeois press is, of course, unbounded, and the tone of
Lassalle’s letter—kindly show it to Lupus and then file it—clearly
betrays the impression it has made on the public.

Yesterday 1 saw Freiligrath for a moment. I approached him
very ceremoniously (f he has the slightest sense of honour he
must make an ant-Vogt statement), and all our entreview "
amounted to was the following: ‘I: I've come to ask you to lend
me the pamphlet on the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung lawsuit
which I've been seeking in vain at all the booksellers and must
certainly have been sent you by your friend Vogt. F. (very
melodramatically): Vogt is not my friend. I: Lassalle has written to
me that I must reply at once. You haven’t got the pamphlet, then?
F. No. I: Good evening.” (He held out his honest right hand and
shook mine Westphalian-fashion.) Voila tout’

I was assured by Juch (owner and present editor of the
Hermann, whose acquaintance I made in connection with the
Stieber affair and Eichhoff’s trial** in Berlin), that Kinkel hadn’t
yet had a copy from Vogt either. This same Juch had, however,
been sent numerous Vogtian tirades against us which he did not
print. This chap—who is, incidentally, quite honest in his own
way-—has got to be kept mellow for the time being. Since only the
Hermann is now appearing in London, it would have been
dreadful to have to confront Vogt’s gang unarmed, here on our
own ground.

Apropos! As a result of my first meeting with Juch,' on my
advice, Eichhoff cited friend Hirsch, who is doing time in
Hamburg for forgery, as a witness for the defence. Consequently,
the trial, due to begin on 26 January (I read about this in the
Publicist), -was again adjourned after a heated argument. Stieber
has now done with Hirsch.

Salut. Your
K. M.
Imandt has just told me that Heise is dead.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engel d K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, X R X .
lglgnges e s near Published in English for the first

time

3 ‘Wie man radikale Flugblitter macht, National-Zeitung, No. 41, 25 January
1860. - P Thus in the original. - ¢ That’s all. - ¢ in December 1859, after the 13th
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9
MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE

IN PARIS

London, 31 January 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

My dear Sir,

I conclude from your silence, that you have taken offence at my
last letter,** but I dare say, without any sufficient reason. You will
not deny that by your own letter, the last but one, you did release
me from the promise I had made to you.*® On the other hand,
you may any day write to Berlin, and ascertain from Mr Duncker,
the publisher, that he has called upon me not any longer to delay
the sending of the manuscript due to him.® Lastly, my proposal of
Mr Kavannagh was, of course, meant to serve you, not me, and-1
proposed it only as a pis-aller?

Meanwhile, I took care to have a notice of your pamphlet (or
rather of its impending appearance) inserted in the Weser-Zeitung,
by a friend of mine. So soon as your pamphlet has come to my
hands, I shall feel happy to give a large article on the same in the
New-York Tribune. Kossuth has tried, by another letter to
McAdam, at Glasgow, to attract public attention in England. This
time his effort has proved a complete failure.

There is one affair, in which I require information on your
part, and think myself justified to ask it from you.

Prof. Vogt (the tool of James Fazy at Genf,” who is iritimately
connected, as Vogt is, with Klapka and Kossuth) has published a
pamphlet on his lawsuit with the A. A. Zeitung. This pamphlet
contains the most absurd calumnies against myself, so that I
cannot but reply to the scandalous libel, though I regret the time
to be applied to so mean a subject. Well. He now contends that he
received the money for his propaganda from revolutionary
Hungarians, and, half and half, insinuates, that the money came
directly from Hungary. How incredible, since Kossuth -himself
could get none from that source. Can you inform me somewhat
exactly about Klapka’s circumstances at the time before the

a last resort - P Geneva - © C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung,
Geneva, 1859.
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outbreak of the Italian war?*® Since 1 shall be forced, in the
pamphlet I intend writing,* to speak of Kossuth et Co., somewhat
largely, you will oblige me by adding what new points you have
found out regarding his recent transactions. Has he, out of the
3 millions, spent any part for paying or for arming a Hungarian
corps? (I mean apart from the money given to military and civil
dignitaries.")

The time becomes very critical, and, I hope, no misunderstand-
ing shall prevent our common action.

“Yours truly
AL We

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English), in Revue d’histoire com-
parée, t. IV, No. 1-2, Budapest, 1946
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
[Manchester,] 1 February 1860

. Dear Moor,

This time, then, the business is growing more serious every day.
Mr Altenhofer and the devious Hifner in Paris have each
published personal, if somewhat vague, statements in the
Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung.”” Now we get Lassalle’s sagacious
letter.*® The chap is himself already almost a Bonapartist, at a time
when coquetting with Bonapartism seems to be the order of the
day in Berlin, so Mr Vogt will undoubtedly find the ground
favourable there. A fine notion of Lassalle’s, that one shouldn’t use
one’s connection with the Augsburg A. Z. against Vogt and
Bonaparte, yet Vogt can use Bonapartist money for Bonapartist
ends and keep his hands perfectly clean! In the eyes of these folk,
it is actually meritorious of Bonap. to have beaten the Austrians;
the specific Prussian spirit and Berlin punditry are again in the

4 Herr Vogt - » See K. Marx, ‘Kossuth and Louis Napoleon’, present edition, Vol. 16,
pp- 502-03. - < A. Williams, an alias used by Marx in some of his letters.
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ascendant and things in that city must look almost as they did
after the peace of Basle.* There’s no reasoning with such people.
Lassalle seems to excrete this paltry, niggling pap as naturally as
his turds, and maybe a good deal more easily—what answer can
one give to such inanities and facile wisdom! Extraordinary advice,
the chap doles out!

Let’s wait until we’ve got the pamphlet,® and in the meantime
cast round for somewhere to print and someone to publish our
riposte. If possible, Germany and the opposing party’s headquar-
ters, Berlin. The business of the 3,000 copies is plainly a lie of
Vogt’s.”” However, there’s scandal enough and to spare. I shall go
and see Lupus today and tell him to rack his brains for all the
material he can lay hands on concerning Vogt. In the meantime, I
shall sort through the papers dealing with 1850/52 and you must
look out our old manuscript about the émigrés.” So far, I have no
idea of what the fellow actually says.

Regards to the ramuy.

Your

F. E.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII,

Moscow, 1929 Published in English for the first

time
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

Manchester, 2 February 1860

Dear Moor,

Conferred with Lupus last night. It was only while reading
Lassalle’s letter out to him that T became fully aware not only of
the chap’s philistinism and arrogance, but also of his ‘method’.
Even in the paltriest of trifles, the fellow is Absolute Spirit Old
Hegelian style and, just as he proposes in economics to assume the

4 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - P K. Marx and
F. Engels, The Great Men of the Exile. - ¢ See this volume, pp. 16 and 19.
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role of a higher unity between you and the economists, the finite
contradiction,” so too he is already assuming the role of a higher
unity between you and Vogt. Yours, the ‘principle’, Vogt's the
‘Italian policy’**—and very nice too! What egregious schoolmaster
presumption to start off by telling us we should declare Vogt
hadn’t been bribed, and then to proceed to take seriously, and
thus reduce to absurdity, the one good joke in Frébel’s state-
ment! %

Lupus wonders whether, under Prussian law, the National-
Zeitung mightn’t be compelled to accept a statement from you. I,
too, believe the Press Law contains some such article. Ir so, we
should invoke it immediately on receipt of the pamphlet?; for, as
Lassalle rightly remarks, habent sua fata libelli®; what that will be in
the pampbhlet’s case one cannot tell, and the quicker the rejoinder,
the surer will be its effect.

Quoad® our pamphlet, we are at a disadvantage in being
personally on the defensive and unable to return lies for lies.
Then there’s another disadvantage—namely, that the public=
Philistia already detests us in advance, for while we do not actually
stand convicted of odium generis humani® we are guilty of odium
generis bourgeois, and that amounts to exactly the same thing.

On the other hand, we are at an advantage in being able to
provide an exposé of our Italian policy which puts the matter on a
totally different plane, leaves aside the personal aspect and places
us in a favourable position, not perhaps in the eyes of the Berlin
liberals, but in those of the greater part of Germany, in that we
stand for the popular, national side. The Savoy affair in particular
is something of a godsend to us.”*

Now it seemss to me that, as soon as the pamphlet arrives
(couldn’t Lass. send it by post?), you should pack your bags and
come up here, when we can decide once and for all what to do
and how and where. I should gladly seize on the opportunity to
come to London, but, as your wife is to be kept in the dark, it
would be better if you were to come up here, the more so since, if
any work is to be done, I couldn’t stay so long in London. Another
thing to be decided is whether I should appear on the title page;
there’s only one reason I can see against it, which, however, seems
to me quite conclusive; but we’ll discuss that when we meet.

2 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Aligemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - » Books have
their fate (Terentianus Maurus, De litteris, syllabis et metris, ‘Carmen heroicum’,
258). - < As regards - 4 hatred of the human race - ¢ hatred of the bourgeois
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The Savoy piece shall be done® and Lassalle and Duncker
written to tomorrow. The epistle destined for L.> had, of course,
not yet been sent.

It is extraordinary that I should have first learned of Heise’s
death via Dundee and London. After all, the little chap was here
last Thursday or Friday and came to see me. I was out, however,
and he also missed me at the club that evening. But, if he’d known
about it, he’d surely have got someone else to tell me, as he usually
does. He saw Charles,® too.

Salut.
Your
F. E.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, i . . : .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, time

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 3 February 1860

Dear Engels,

After one minor alteration, or rather the deletion of one
sentence, C. D. Collet yesterday declared himself willing, but, at
the same time, said that, as Urquhart was the actual editor, he
must first submit the thing to him, which means a delay of 24
hours.?® Collet admitted that 1 could, of course, publish the
statement malgré eux, but, if it was done the way he suggested, I
could subsequently, To a certav pecrer, fall back on him and Urq.
Wrew. 1 conceded this and intend to see what Father U. has to say.
(For the sequel see immediately below.)

Incidentally, it’s no go either with a pamphlet or a statement in
the newspapers— just now. The pamphlet would se xien by the
Self-same prCSS WHICH NOW TRUMPETS THE GRANDEUR OF V()(QT. The latter’s

2 F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine. - b See this volume, p. 13. - ¢ A reference to
Peter Imandt, who lived in' Dundee, Scotland. See this volume, p. 16. - 4 Ernst
Dronke - ¢ Charles Roesgen - f despite them
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attack on me-—he is obviously seeking to represent me as an
insignificant and rascally bourgeois blackguard—(this - emerges
from everything I've learnt from hearsay up till now) is intended
to be the grand coup of bourgeois vulgar democracy—and likewise
of the Russo-Bonapartist riff-raff —against the party as a whole.
Hence it must likewise be countered with a grand coup. Further-
more, the defensive does not suit our purpose. I shall sue the
National-Zeitung. I've now made up my mind to do so. Not a great
deal of money will be required for the time being—1I am referring
to the preliminary deposition in court. But lawyers will be
exceptionally keen to make themselves available for, whatever
happens, the lawsuit will make a great noise throughout the length
and breadth of Germany. As soon as I have Fischel’s letter® (it will
arrive, 1 think, tomorrow) I shall issue a brief statement to the
various German newspapers announcing that I am instituting an
action for libel against the N.-Z. in Berlin. In its second article,’
which I have got, I have already discovered items so actionable as to
bring about its immediate undoing in a legal sense.® This lawsuit will
be the peg on which we can hang the whole of our riposte to the public
at large in court. Later on, we can turn our attention to that bastard
Vogt.

When you consider that in a week or two, in connection with
Stieber, the Cologne communist trial® will be re-enacted all over
again,** this vile attack could, if skilfully exploited, help rather
than hinder us, for this will ar once enable us to state our case
forcefully to the mass of the workers.

On the other hand, what evidence can Vogt or the National-
Zeitung produce against us? At the most, there is Techow’s
gossip®® and, perhaps (in Tue worst case), some not altogether
pleasant reviews by Liining®” but, these apart, the fact that Vogt
knows nothing of conditions here and makes the most absurd
mistakes is apparent if only from his article in the Biel
Handels-Courier.®

So my plan is this: Next week, as soon as Vogt’s rubbish © arrives,
I shall come and visit you for a few days in order to talk the whole
thing over.”® As to the costs of the action, Dronke (who, by the by,
owes me money) must also bear his share. (Whatever happens you
must come here a few days at Easter.)

2 See this volume, p. 15. - * ‘Wie man radikale Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung,
No. 41, 25 January 1860. - ¢ See this volume, pp. 40-45. -4 (K. Vogt,] “Zur
Warnung’, Schweizer Handels-Courier, No. 150 (extraordinary supplement), 2 June
1859. - ¢ C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859.
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For the rest (I have already written to everyone imaginable), in
addition to procuring the necessary material for the action, I'm
working on my Capital” If 1 set about it with determination, it will
be finished in 6 weeks and, after the lawsuit, it will be a success.

A fine thing it would be—with a crisis in the offing, with the
King or Prussia® at death’s door, etc.—if we were to allow ourselves
to be finished off in this way by Imperial Vogt® et cie, or
even— autore Lassallo®’—to cut our own throats.

The enclosed piece of paper will tell you wruar Mr Voot 15 now
asour and how, in your pamphlet, you can deal him a contemptu-
ous kick, if only by way of a marginal note.”

Your
K. M.

As you will see from the contents of my letter, the anti-Blind
operation ® is proceeding independently of the German operation,
but will be used to further the latter.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, . i i .
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO JOACHIM LELEWEL

IN BRUSSELS
[ Draft]

London, 3 February 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

My dear Lelewel,

I have not had the pleasure of corresponding with you since
1848 when a letter of recommendation from you was brought to
me in Cologne by a Pole. I am writing to you today on a personal
matter.

One Vogt, a professor at Geneva, has published a pamphlet*
full of the most outrageous calumnies against my person and my

2 Frederick-William IV - » on Lassalle’s advice - ¢ Presumably Wiadystaw Kosciel-
ski -4 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859.
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political life. On the one hand, he represents me as a man of no
account and on the other imputes to me the most infamous
motives. He falsifies my entire past. Having had the privilege of
enjoying a close relationship with you during my stay in
Brussels—I shall never forget the embrace with which you
honoured me on the occasion of the anniversary of the Polish
Revolution on 22 February 1848° -—1 would request you to
address me a private letter in which you assure me of your
friendship and testify to the nature of the honourable relations I
maintained in Brussels with the Polish emigiation.®
Fraternal greetings,

Yours
Charles Marx

Mrs Marx, who asks to be remembered to you, has made a copy
of this letter for your benefit, my handwriting being illegible.

Written in French Printed according to the original
First published in: Marx and Engels, Published in English for the first
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, time

Moscow, 1934
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

[Manchester,] 4 February 1860

D. M,

One keeps changing one’s mind every night as is inevitable,
since we’ve not yet set eyes on the stuff.®

The Hirsch affair is truly splendid.’

The lawsuit in Berlin also strikes me as a very good idea, always
assuming they allow it, though I don’t see how they can deny you
Justice.”

Re Lupus® and the affair in general, I waded through the

2 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung - b See this volume,
p. 16 - € This refers to the lawsuit Marx intended to bring against thé National-
Zeitung (see this volume, p. 22). - 4 See this volume, pp. 15-16.
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better part of the records for 1850/52 yesterday evening. Lupus
cannot recollect anything at all and I have to keep jogging his
memory. Not that I'm much better; since those days so much
srrrer Bekr has flowed down my gullet that many things are difficult
to ascertain. As regards Lupus the following emerges:

1. In 1851, not 1850, when the document appeared in the
Karlsruher Zeitung (our plan of campaign against the democrats®),
Lupus was still in Zurich” and was attacked by the fellows as one
who happened to be in their midst and was a member of our
League.®®

2. Another document, however, had appeared previously in, if
I'm not mistaken, the Hannoversche Zeitung, namely a circular from
the Cologne Central Authority composed by Biirgers.*”* But I can’t
ascertain exactly whether it happened in the Hann. Ztg. You must
go into this.

3. Vogt has jumbled all of this up and has Lupus writing a
document in London in 1850 which was produced in Cologne at a
time when Lupus was still in Zurich. (L. came to London after
5 May and before 21 July 1851.) All that remains to be ascertained
is whether Biirgers’ document really did appear in the Hann.
Zeitung, and how it fell into the hands of the Hanover police. The
letters I wrote you between February and April 1851 are bound to
contain some mention of it.° Let me have particulars about this;
without them I hardly imagine that Lupus’ statement? will suffice.

The item in The Times (original source Augsburg Allgemeine
Zeitung) had already been noted.”

I am starting on my thing® today. Up till now, the Vogt rumpus
has prevented me from doing so. This tie I shall again describe
myself as the ‘author of Po and Rhine’ so as to get that personage
all the more firmly established in the field of military literature—
if 1 put my own name to it the immediate vesult would be a
conspiration du silence. At the same time, however, ie. about a
fortnight after it comes out, I shall get Siebel to arrange for an
appropriate review to appear in the papers. In general, this fellow

a K. Marx and F. Engels, ‘Address of the Central Authority to the League, June
1850". - b Wolff lived in exile in Zurich from August 1849 to May 1851. - ¢ See
Engels’ letter to Marx of 27 June 1851 (present edition, Vol. 38). - d W, Wolff,
‘Erklirung’, Die Reform, No. 18, 11 February 1860; Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 44
(supplement), 13 February 1860, and Volks-Zeitung, No. 47, 24 February 1860. -
¢ F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine.
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could be very useful to us in the Vogt rumpus; he has masses of
connections.
Many regards to the ramiy.

Your
F. E.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . R X
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,} 4 February 1860

Dear Engels,

Nothing from Berlin yet.* If Izzy weren’t a knave, incidentally,
he would have sent me the National-Zeitung of his own accord,
if nothing else, as soon as it came out.

Now, as regards the extract from the N.-Z. for Lupus,” what I
wrote, on the first occasion, was from memory and was not
intended as a basis for a public statement. On the second occasion,
I was copying, and to avoid misunderstanding, am doing so again.
I can’t send the original as I haven’t a second one to spare.

Extract from No. 41 of the N.-Z., dated 25 January. (It is the
concluding passage in the Leanexr):

‘Only one further thing is worthy of note: The open letter to the National
Association immediately fell into the hands of the Hanoverian reactionary party
and was made known by this last; in 1850 another “circular” (as Vogt recollects,
"written by Parliamentary Wolff alias Casemate Wolff) was sent from London to the
“proletarians” in Germany, and simultaneously allowed to fall into the hands of the
Hanoverian police.’

No answer as yet from that bloody Urquhart.©
I have carefully gone through all the old letters and newspapers
and put on one side what we may need 'in due course’. You must

@ See this volume, pp. 12 and 22. - b This refers to the item ‘Wie man radikale
Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, No. 41, 25 January 1860. - ¢ See this volume,
p- 21.
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see to it that I find ‘the whole lot’ (letters, newspapers, etc.) at
your place in Manchester, so that I can get together what is
relevant. We really mustn’t allow those blackguardly democrats—
now, of course, gloating over our discomfiture—to make us
accountable for their revolutionary travel plans, revolutionary
paper money, revolutionary gossip, etc. And, starting with
Gotttried Kinkel, Vogt's secret correspondent over here, they have
got to be shown up in the eyes of Germany.

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, ) . . .
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO FRANZ DUNCKER

IN BERLIN

London, 6 February 1860
Dear Sir,

Would you very kindly arrange to print the enclosed wriiten
statement,” which I am sending simultaneously to the National-
Zeitung and the Publicist (what its politics are I do not know, but it
would appear to be widely read over here) in Berlin; likewise, to
the Kéalnische Zeitung, the Frankfurter Journal, the Hamburg ‘Reform
and the Augsburg ‘Allgemeine Zeitung’

I should be much obliged if you would pass the following on to
Lassalle:

Time does not permit my replying to him today.

The article on Kossuth,” which I sent Szemere in Paris o~ 7THE
Express conprrion that it be returned immediately, has been in his
hands for months now. I shall now hold a pistol to his
head —allegorically speaking, or coursk.

I should be most grateful if Lassalle would send Vogt’s book ¢ by
post direct to Engels at his private address, 6 Thorncliffe Grove,

’

4 K. Marx, ‘To the Editors of the Volks-Zeitung. Declaration’. - P K. Marx, ‘Kossuth
and Louis Napoleon'. - ¢ C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva,
1859.

3558
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Oxford Road, Manchester, where I am going to stay.” Finally, I
should be glad if he would send to the same address copies of
such Berlin papers as accept the statement.

I am, Sir, your most obedient servant,

K. Marx

First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original

sene  Briefe und  Schriften, Bd. III, . . . .
Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 I?ubhshed in English for the first
time
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
Manchester, 7 February 1860

Dear Moor,

Received the circular addressed to Collet.* Comes altogether a
propos, yesterday’s Daily Telegraph having carried two columns
about Vogt’s shit® and the Brimstone Gang.” If it amounts to no
more than what’s in the Telegr., then Izzy has been frightened by a
fart. To ‘parry the thrust, all one has to do is hold one’s nose.

Mr Ronge is up here. He hurried along to Siebel, saying he
wished to be introduced to me!! Furthermore, he asked whether 1
also belonged to the Brimstone Gang-—i~ ract, if it weren’t for
him, S., and if it weren’t for S., I myself, wouldn’t have heard
about the nonsense in the Telegr.

S., who’s an out-and-out charlatan and knows it, is dead keen to
be of service to us in this business. He’s got masses of connections
and, best of all, is quite above suspicion. The fellow knows that the
whole robber band, Kinkel and Co., are just as much humbugs as
he is, and in us he has at last found people who are totally
impervious to his humbug, inde‘ an unbounded admiration.

2 K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette.’ - b [K. Abel,] “The Journalistic
Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February 1860. See also
this volume, pp. 74-76. - ¢ hence



18. Marx to Engels. 7 February 1860 29

Oughtn’t we to scan the daily press for the circular tomor-
row?’

Vale.
Your
F. E.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . R 3 §
Moscow, 1929 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 7 February 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, etc.

Dear Engels,

Of the cories despatched to you,” send 1 to Dronke, 1 to
Dr Bronner in Bradford. I have sent one to Borchardt myself.

The D. T. (Daily Telegraph), Monday’s issue, p. 5, contained a
filthy article (ixv ract, from Berlin, but dated Frankfurt a. M.)"
based on the two in the National-Zeitung. I instantly threatened the
dogs with a e action, and they will open their traps and
apologise.

Letters from Fischel (there’s another way of bringing a lawsuit,
which actually involves no money), Lassalle (absurd in the
extreme), Schily (interesting), etc. More details tomorrow.

I now have to pay the printing costs (will be asout £1), £1 to be
paid next Monday at the Counry-Court, and shall need something,
partly to get to Manchester with and partly so as to leave a
modicum here. At the same time, before departing hence, 1 shall
have to make, and get others to make, all manner of arFpaviTs.

a K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette’. - ® [K. Abel,] “The Journalistic
Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February 1860. See also
this volume, pp. 74-76. - ¢ K. Marx, ‘To the Editor of The Daily Telegraph’.

3*
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Apropos. Wiehe is now going to state before the magistrate that
he signed a false pecLaraTion at the insistent request of Blind and
Hollinger.®

Salut.

Your
K. M.

Statements® sent off yesterday to Nat.-Zeit., Kélnische Zeitung,
Volks-Zeitung, Publicist (Berlin), Reform, Augsburg Allgemeine
Zeitung, Frankfurter Journal. The statement was a brief one. Firstly,
that 1 shall take legal proceedings against the N.-Z.; secondly, a
reference to the English anti-Blind ‘uisei’® enslosed with the

statement.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, ume

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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MARX TO FERDINAND FREILIGRATH

IN LONDON

London, 8 February 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Dear Freiligrath,

As an old party friend and an old personal friend, I consider it
my duty to keep you informed of the steps I have taken in the
furtherance of the Berlin lawsuit, by reason of which they must
soon, though not immediately, become known to the public.

You will recall or have seen from the printed English circular®
sent you that, besides Hollinger’s written statement, Blind cited
that of certain compositor, Wiehe, in the Augsburg Allgemeine
Zeitung® (etc.) as evidence that I had been guilty of ‘a plain

2 K. Marx, ‘To the Editors of the Volks-Zeitung. Declaration’. - ® K. Marx,
‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette’. - ¢ K. Blind’s statement in the Allgemeine
Zeitung, No. 313, 9 November 1859. See this volume, pp. 60-62.
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falsehood’ and that ‘the imputation’ that he, Blind, was the author
of the pamphlet Zur Warnung, and that the latter had been
printed for him by Hollinger or, indeed, had come off Hollinger’s
printing-press ‘was a lie’. 1 am now sending you an exact copy of
the sworn statement made by this man Wiehe before the
magistrate in Bow Street. Of that statement I received an officially
attested duplicate. One copy of the same is already on its way to
Berlin for the Public Prosecutor’s dossier.

It would, I think, be superfluous were I at this point to add a
single word of comment to the document.

Your
K. M.

‘One of che first days of November last—1I do not recollect the exact date—in
the evening between 9 and 10 o’clock I was taken out of bed by Mr F. Hollinger, in
whose house (3, Litchfield Street, Soho) I was then living, and by whom I was
employed as compositor. He ptresented to me a paper to the effect that I had been
continuously employed by him during the! preceding 11 months, and that during
all that time a certain German flysheet “Zur Warnung” (A Warning) had not been
composed and printed in Mr Hollinger’s Office, 3, Litchfield Street, Soho. In my
perplexed state,—and not aware of the importance of the transaction I complied
with his wish, and copied and signed the document. He promised me money, but I
never received anything. During that transaction Mr Charles Blind, as my wife told
me at the time, was waiting in Mr Hollinger’s room. A few days later Mrs Hollinger
(Mr F. Hollinger’s wife) called me down from dinner and led me into her
husband’s room, where I found Mr Charles Blind alone. He presented me the
same paper which Mr Hollinger had presented me before, and entreated me to
write and sign a second copy, as he wanted two, the one for himself, the other for
publication in the Press. He added that he would show himself grateful to me. I
copied and signed again the paper.

‘I herewith declare the truth of the above statements and that:

‘1. During the eleven months, mentioned in the document, I was for six weeks
not employed by Mr Hollinger, but by a Mr Ermani.

‘2. 1 did net work in Mr Hollinger’s Office just at the time, when the flysheet
“Zur Warnung” (A Warning) was published.

‘3. 1 heard at the time from Mr Voegele, who then worked for Mr Hollinger,
that he, Voegele, had together with Mr Hollinger himself composed the flysheet in
question, and that the manuscript was in Mr Blind’s handwriting.

‘4. The types of the pamphlet- were still standing, when I returned into
Mr Hollinger’s service. I myself broke them into columns for the reprint of the
flysheet (or pamphlet) “Zur Warnung” (A Warning) in the German paper “Das
Volk”, published at London by Mr Fidelio Hollinger, 3 Litchfield Street, Soho. The
flysheet appeared in No. 7, d. d. 18 June 1859 of “Das Volk”.

‘5. I saw Mr Hollinger give to Mr William Liebknecht, of 14, Church Street,
Soho, London, the proofsheet of the pamphlet “Zur Warnung”, on which
proofsheet Mr Charles Blind with his own hand had corrected 4 or 5 mistakes.
Mr Hollinger hesitated at first giving the proofsheet to Mr Liebknecht, and when
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Mr Liebknecht had withdrawn, he, F. Hollinger, expressed to me and my fellow
workman Voegele his regret for having given the proofsheet out of his hands.

‘Johann Friedrich Wiehe.

‘Declared and signed by the said Johann Friedrich Police Court

Wicehe at the Police Court Bow Street, London, this Royal Coat of Arms
8th day of February, 1860, before me Th.” Henry. Bow Street¢
Magistrate of the said Court.’?

I would beg you, for the time being, not to show this copy of
the affidavit to anyone. What the consequences would be under
English c¢riminal law will not escape you.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS¥

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 9 February 1860

Dear Engels,

To have offered your pamphlet? at two louis d’or per sheet is
suamerur. Pamphlets of this kind ought to be sold, not by the sheet,
but as a whole. Even 40 talers per sheet would be too little.
Incidentally, Campe is better than Duncker. The publisher¢ who
brings out the Darmstadt Militir-Zeitung' would gladly take the
pamphlet, too. Actually, the main thing is that it should come out
quickly and, if I were you, I would settle this matter, at least, by
telegraph with that louse, Duncker.®

I have been v a secreT and conrFipENTIAL corrESPONDENCE With ‘ The
Daily Telegraph’ since the day the shit® appeared. For before
making amende honorable, the fellow"—1I was as rude as hell to him

3T in the manuscript. “Th’ is correct. - ® Marx gives the document in English. -
¢ Marx drew a circle round the words representing the stamp. - ¢ F. Engels, Savoy,
Nice and the Rhine. - ¢ Eduard Zernin - f Allgemeine Militir-Zeitung - 8 [K. Abel,]
‘The Journalistic Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February
1860. See this volume, pp. 74-76. - b the Editor of The Daily Telegraph
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in my letter **—wants to await his correspondent’s reply, whereas 1
demanded the immediate insertion of at least a brief note.
Whatever he does or does not insert, I shall now bring down a
uBeL actioN on his head. The circumstances of the case being what
they are, any lawyer would happily undertake the thing on spec.,
as did, for instance, Edwin James, who voiunteerep in Ernest
Jones’s wuBeL action against Reynolds.”” 1 wrote to Ernest Jones
about this yesterday.” On the same Tuesday as the thing
appeared,” by the by, I wrote to the Eprror of Palmerston’s
MOB-PAPER ~ $aying, inter alia: “THaT LETTER PURPORTING TO HAVE BEEN WRITTEN
FROM FRANKFOR'I‘-ON-THE-MAIN, BUT WHICH WAS IN FACT INDITED AT BERLIN, 18
NOTHING BUT A CLUMSY AMPLIFICATION OF TWO LEADERs ETC. ETc.” In the Berlin
National-Zeitung® The writer, i.e. The Daily Telegraph's swine of a
Berlin correspondent, is a Jew by the name of Meier,” a relative
of the Cirv-Proprieror’s who is an English Jew by the name of Levy.
Hence, both these fellows rightly accuse Heine— juvante® Vogt—
of beirig a baptised Jew. Herewith Izzy’s last letter, which you
should retain as a curiosity. Calls himself objective, does he?
Inimitable, the plasticity of this most unhellenic of all Wasser-
polack” Jews! My only reply to the fellow was an immediate
announcement in the papers—including the Volks-Zeitung—rto the
effect that I was bringing a libel action against the N.-Z° (In each
case I enclosed the circular about Blind,' although, according to
the great Izzy, I ought ‘not to delude myself as to the force of that
argument’.)

All this week, by the by, I've been prevented from writing
anything for the Tribune. I have had to send out fifty letters at
least,”” running round to see Collet and God knows who else not
consipered. And on top of that there was the correspondence with
the beastly Telegraph and the correspondence with the Starf to
which T sent the whole of my correspondence with the Telegraph.
The enclosed letter from the Star is to be put on your files. I have
also written to Reynolds.*? Shall see what he does. Then there was
the running in connection with Wiehe and going to the police.
The result you will find below. Two replies so far to my letters to
the Continent—in so far as they weren’t just to newspapers. One
from Schily. Priceless. Contains the whole Brimstone Gang® and

4 In fact it appeared on Monday, 6 February 1860. - K. Marx, ‘“To the Editor of The
Daily Telegraph’. - ¢ ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’ and ‘Wie man radikale
Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, Nos. 37 and 41, 22 and 25 January 1860
respectively. - @ with the help of - ¢ K. Marx, ‘To the Editors .of the Volks-Zeitung.
Declaration’. - f K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette’. - 8 The Morning
Star
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Bristlers® story. Another letter from Szemere. Most valuable on
account of disclosures about, the revolutionary Hungarians’ ‘own’
(excluding Bonapartist) funds out of which, so Vogt maintains, his
money was received. A letter from Imandt, not so bad.” One or two
points, at any rate. I am still awaiting an answer, notably from Mr
Reinach in Neuchitel, who is said to be a walking chronique
scandaleuse* on the subject of the imperial bailiff.?® (Apropos. What
address did the spy Hifner give in the Augsburg Allgemeine
Zeitung?'” There’s a roinvt 1 want to verify with him.) Have also
written to Borkheim* (whom I have never met personally). Was
cuier of the Brimstone Gang in Geneva who hung out at the Café
de la Couronne and with whom on your occasional excursions you
sometimes used to get tipsy, or so Schily tells me in his letter.

I have drawn up the indictment against the Nat.-Zeit. for the
public prosecutor’s office at the Berlin municipal court. It will go
off before I come up to you. But I must wait until I have Fischel’s
answer with regard to the commencement and conclusion, the
prescribed form of address, etc. Should 1 send the package (since
it has to include all manner of manuscripts, documents) to Berlin
by post or by rarcel comrany? It should at all events be recisyeren.

I have rummaged through everything I have here in London in
the way of letters and newspapers for the period 1848-59, and
sorted out and put in order what we need. Now you must get
things ready so that I find everything that’s available in one ‘great
pile’ when I get to Manchester.

Well, on Monday there was the working-men’s banquet,d
attended by eighty people. An indignant anti-Vogt resolution was
unanimously adopted by ‘the proletarians’. The beastly Hermann
asked me to report on it. This I refused to do, but told them to
obtain a brief account from Papa Liebknecht.

Apropos, to rerurn @ nos moutons, i.e. Lassalle. Not knowing,
when I got his first letter, whether you had written to him as we
had originally agreed (when circumstances were otherwise), I told
him in a couple of lines that I had thought the only explanation
for his many-month-long silence must be annoyance at my last,
somewhat rude (in fact excessively rude), letter. I said that I was
glad this was not the case, and also that I had informed you of my

2 See this volume, pp. 70-71 and Marx’s Herr Vogt (present edition, Vol. 17,
pp. 38-47). - b See Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, p. 41. - ¢ gossip column -
4 See this volume, p. 11. - ¢ The phrase ‘revenons 4 nos moutons’ (literally, ‘to retirn
to our sheep’) occurs in a mediaeval French farce about the lawyer Patelin. In a
figurative sense it means ‘to return to the matter in question’.
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misgivings.® WeL! What a russ the brute goes and makes about it!
How presumptuous the moral attitude adopted by the chap
towards Liebknecht!”™ And this is the fellow who resorted to the
most impudent means and consorted with the most impudent
individuals au service de la comtesse de Haizfeldt! Has the brute
forgotten that, though I wanted to have him admitted to the
League, he was rejected on account of his ill-repute by the
unanimous decision of the Central Authority in Cologne? In racr, 1
believe, delicacy impelled me to keep the fellow in the dark about
all this, as also about the working men’s deputation sent over to
see me a few years ago from Disseldorf, which adduced the most
scandalous and in part irrefutable allegations against him!™ And
now just look at the pretentious ape! No sooner—looking through
his Bonapartist-tinted spectacles—does he think to descry some
weak point in us, than he puffs himself up, pontificates, and
strikes an—absurd, need one say?—attitude! And contrariwise,
how completely do his legal instincts desert him for fear that I
should not, ro The BENERIT OF My TENDER FrIEND Lassalle, allow myself
without more ado to be pushed into the background by Vogt.
How he contradicts himself! How mean he becomes! One
shouldn’t ‘stir things up even more’. ‘They” wouldn’t ‘take it
kindly’. Not take it kindly! They! For the sake of his pale-ale
Berlin philistines, I am to let myself be browbeaten by schoolmas-
ter Squeers, alias Zabel! Now I know just what to think of Mr
Lassalle.

I immediately wrote to Blind—or perhaps, I should say, put into
an envelope the circular, which affects him so very closely.” He has
kept his trap shut, of course. Instead, the brute goes running
around town in the hope that things can be sorted out by
tittle-tattle (vide below how much good that will do him). For the
past few weeks the man’s been indulging in feverish activity,
publishing pamphlet after pamphlet, blowing his own trumpet in
the Hermann for all he’s worth, sucking up, fore and aft, to the
few bourgeois whose acquaintance he made on the Schiller
committee,”” pressing his own candidature as secretary of the
recently conceived Schiller Association,” now denying his ‘Pat-
riots’,”” now making himself important in their eyes by means of
semicovert, statesmanlike allusions, etc. Well, all this amounts to,
as you will instanty realise, is a drowning man clutching at a
straw.

No one has behaved so abjectly as that potbellied philistine
Freiligrath. 1 sent him the circular.® He didn’t so much as

4 See this volume, p. 11. - ® K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette’.
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acknowledge its receipt. Does the brute believe that 1 couldn’t, if
so minded, immerse him up to the eyebrows in the lake of
brimstone®? Has he forgotten that I possess a hundred or more of
his letters? Does he imagine that I don’t see him because he shows
me his backside? Yesterday, I also sent the philistine the ensuing
palliative, o~ THE Exeress conprrion that he should not say a word
about it to anyone, including his friend the crypto-democrat Karl
Blind. That will tickle him, and ere long he’ll begin to feel uneasy
at the undue proximity of the felonious friend in whose company
he appeared before the public (as I reminded him quiTe en passant
in my last letter®) in the pages of the A. A. Z° Almost everyone,
except for Freiligrath, even distant acquaintances, are behaving
decently to me at this time of crisis.

But to come to essentials. Firstly, I discovered through Juch that
Wiehe once committed a theft in Bremen, which was why he had
to come to London. Secondly, I learnt through Schapper that
Wiehe introduced himself to him as a compositor on the Volk, and
it was he who had obtained the fellow’s present job for him. I
briefed Schapper, who quietly intimated to Wiehe that he knew
about the Bremen affair, but then proceeded to read my circular
aloud in the presence of his rmpeLover and to cross examive him. The
fellow admitted everything. What the outcome was, you will see
from the following document of which I possess an officially
authenticated duplicate. One is going to Berlin. The other I shall
keep here and employ in no uncertain manner against the
nay-sayer.® One further point. This will show you the kind of
people these ‘honest fellows’ consort with. I had, of course, let
Wiehe know that I would compensate him for the loss of half a
working day, the time he would have to spend with me at the
police court. When all had been done, I gave him 2/6d. He
remonstrated. Well, how much a day do you earn? 1 asked. Asour
3/-, said he, but I want five from you. After all, I ought to get
something for telling the truth.

But the best is yet to come. I:* You have declined the money offer
made by Blind: and Hollinger in order to bribe you? He: Why
decline! The rogues promised, but never gave me anything.* That’s
compositor Wiehe for you. But Hollinger is a villain of far deeper
dye. Vigele, whom I had arranged to see yesterday, did not turn up.
Doubtless Blind-Hollinger made it worth his while to keep away. But

2 The word used is ‘Schwefelpfuhl’, perhaps by analogy with ‘Schwefelbande’—
Brimstone Gang. Cf. Revelation, 20:10. -  See this volume, pp. 30-32. - ¢ K. Marx,
‘Declaration’; 15 November 1859. - ¢ Karl Blind
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they’ll have thrown their money down the drain. For I know that this
chap has still got a conscience, and so I shall work on him.”® My
circular misled them into approaching the wrong man. They
believed it meant that I wouldn’t be able to get at Wiehe himself.
Well, now ad rem?:

‘One of the first days of November last—I do not recollect the exact date—in
the evening between 9 and 10 o’clock 1 was taken out of bed by Mr F. Hollinger, in
whose house I then lived, and by whom I was employed as compositor. He
presented to me a paper to the effect that during the preceding 11 months I had
been continuously employed by him, and that during all that time a certain
German flysheet “Zur Warnung” (A Warning) had not been composed and printed
in Mr Hollinger’s Office, 3, Litchfield Street, Soho. In my perplexed state, and not
aware of the importance of the transaction, I complied with his wish, and copied,
and signed the document. Mr Hollinger promised me money, but I never received
anything. During that transaction Mr. Charles Blind, as my wife informed me at
the time, was waiting in Mr Hollinger’s room. A few days later, Mrs Hollinger
called me down from dinner and led me into her husband’s room, where I found
Mr Charles Blind alone. He presented me the same paper which Mr Hollinger had
presented me before, and entreated me to write, and sign a second copy, as he
wanted two, the one for himself, and the other for publication in the Press. He
added that he would show himself grateful to me. I copied and signed again the
paper.

‘I herewith declare—upon my oath—the truth of the above statements and
that:

‘l. During the 11 months mentioned in the document I was for six monthsb not
employed by Mr Hollinger, but by a Mr Ermani.

2. 1 did not work in Mr Hollinger’s Office just at that time when the flysheet
“Zur Warnung” was published.

‘3. Iheard at the time from Mr Voegele, who then worked for Mr Hollinger,
that he, Voegele, had, together with Mr Hollinger himself, composed the flysheet
in question, and that the manuscript was in Mr Blind’s handwriting.

‘4. The types of the pamphlet were stll standing when I returned to
Mr Hollinger’s service. I myself broke them into columns for the reprint of the
flysheet “Zur Warnung’" in the German paper “Das Volk” published at London, by
Mr Fidelio Hollinger, 3, Litchfield Street, Soho. The flysheet appeared in No. 7,
d. d. 18th June, 1859, of “Das Volk”. '

‘5. I saw Mr Holiinger give to Mr William Liebknecht, of 14, Church Street,
Soho, London, the proofsheet of the pamphlet “Zur Warnung”, on which
proofsheet Mr Charles Blind with his own hand had corrected 4 or 5 mistakes.
Mr Hollinger hesitated at first giving the proofsheet to Mr Liebknecht, and when
Mr Liebknecht had withdrawn, he, F. Hollinger, expressed to me and my fellow
workman Voegele his regret for having given the proofsheet out of his hands.

Johann Friedrich Wiehe
Police Court, Bow Street¢

4 to the matter in hand - ® The original of the letter says ‘six weeks’. See this volume,
p- 31, and also p. 129 in Vol. 17 of the present edition. - ¢ Marx drew a circle round
the words representing the stamp.
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‘Declared and signed by the said Johann Friedrich Wiehe at the Police Court,
Bow Street, this 8th day of February, 1860, before me Th.? Henry, Magistrate of the
said court.’®

I deliberately brought the matter before Henry, he being the
GOVERNMENT's MacisTRaTE who attends to all the political cases. The -
brand of English found in the above is not my responsibility,
unlike the precise enumeration of the racrs. WhaAT po You say Now, Sir!
‘The argument lacks force’, says Izzy. Vive® Izzy! For conserracy
against myself, combined with arTeEmpr AT BRIBERY OF WiTNESSES, SO the
MaGISTRATE says, I could now get Mr Blind run out of town. So much
for petty bourgeois artfulness!

Your
K. M.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . o .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, ume

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

[Manchester,] 9 February 1860

Dear Moor,

As soon as I have Dronke’s address, he shall receive a copy.
Meanwhile, one will go off today to Dr Bronner.?

So the Telegraph is going to apologise?© Most gratifying; up till
today nothing has appeared.

I am very much looking forward to hearing further details.

Make sure that Wiehe and Vogele don’t slip out of your hands.
Cela se pourrait’; when a few pounds are being offered, there is
always the fear that something of the kind may happen.

Enclosed fiver D/M 34115, Manchester, 4 January 1859; if it’s
not enough, let me know and I'll send you another £ or two.

2°']" in the manuscript. ‘Th’ is correct. - ® Marx quotes the document in
English. - ¢ Long live - 4 Engels means Marx’s statement ‘Prosecution of the
Augsburg Gazette’. See this volume, p. 29. - © See this volume, pp. 32-33. - f It
would be quite possible



22. Engels to Marx. 12 February 1860 39

Because of the office boys I don’t care to send out to the Plostar]
Ofroer] Orrice unnecessarily and hence would rather put it off
until 'm able to lay hands on another fiver. However, you can
send your wife the money from here,” or else have it beforehand,
comme il te plaira®

Still no sign either of the National-Zeitung® or of Vogt<?

I'm leaving now and intend to finish at least the rough draft of
the manuscript? today and tomorrow.

Vale.
Your
F. E.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . . . .
Moscow, 1929 Published in English for the first

time
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
[Manchester,] 12 February 1860

Dear Moor,

You will have had the £5, or at least I hope so.

The Wiehe document® is most welcome. Aprés ¢a' our shinish-
ter® Blind will doubtless tuck his tail between his legs. In the
meantime, you have, I trust, obtained one from V('igele.78 The
more evidence the better.

So, the Kolnische Zeitung has, after all, published your de-
claration” and, at the same time, taken another swipe at Blind? So
much the better.

? as you wish - P This refers to the issues containing the items ‘Karl Vogt und die
Allgemeine Zeitung' and ‘Wie.man radikale Flugblitter macht’, Nos 37 and 41, 22
and 25 January 1860. - ¢ C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva,
1859. - d F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - € See this volume, p. 37. - ¥ After
that - ¢ Engels writes ‘finschtre’ (instead of ‘finstre’), presumably mimicking Blind’s
articulation. - b K. Marx, ‘To the Editors of the Volks-Zeitung. Declaration’.
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Strohn is in Hamburg and behaving very well over this
particular affair, or so I hear. I shall write to him. He too can
prove useful.

Saludi.
Your
F. E.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ]J. M. WEBER
IN BERLIN
London, 13 February 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill
Dear Sir,

Last week I wrote to a friend® in Berlin requesting him to
recommend a lawyer for a libel action, which 1 am compelled to
bring against the Berlin National-Zeitung** Today I have received
a reply in which my friend names you, Sir, as the most eminent
lawyer in Berlin.

I am therefore taking the liberty of asking whether you will
agree to act as my lawyer in the libel action, further information
concerning which is given below. :

Should the provisional retaining fee of 15 talers herewith
enclosed not sutfice, kindly telegraph me. I shall then immediately
despatch whatever additional sum may be required.

I enclose herewith the power of attorney and trust that this
instrument will suffice. I would earnestly beg you to institute the
action forthwith, lest it become statute-barrved, and should be much
obliged if you would inform me by telegraphic despatch that you are
taking the necessary steps.

2 Fduard Fischel
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I have simultaneously begun an acrion ror LiBeL against The Daily
Telegraph here in London, which paper printed an English
version® of the National-Zeitung’s calumnious articles.”

I am, Sir, your most obedient servant,

Dr Karl Marx
(verte®)

The articles in the National-Zeitung alluded to in the preceding
letter are to be found in No. 37 (dated Sunday, 22 January 1860)
and No. 41 (dated Wednesday, 25 January 1860), both of them
leaders. In subsequent letters I shall take occasion to characterise
the animus by which these articles were inspired. But the specific
points on which I wish to bring an action for libel, and which seem
to me the most cogent from the legal point of view, are the
following: )

1. In No. 41 (article is headed ‘Wie man vadikale Flugblitter.
macht’), column 3 (towards the bottom) reads:

‘In the Allgemeine Zeitung Blind has twice declared ¢ outright that he is not the
author’ (i.e. of the flysheet Zur Warnung); ‘nor does he say this to exculpate Vogt,
with whom he does not agree, but simply for the benefit of the Marx-Liebknecht-
Biscamp camp ... he’ (Blind) ‘is obviously not a member of the Marx party in the
narrower sense. It appears to us that the latter did not find it too difficult to turn
him into a scapegoat, and if the charges levelled at Vogt were to carry any weight, they
had to be attributed to a definite person who would have to be responsible for
them. The Marx party could very easily saddle Blind with the authorship of the pamphlet
because and after he had expressed similar views to those contained in it in
conversation with Marx and in an article in The Free Press© By making use of Blind’s
assertions and turns of phrase the pamphlet could be fabricated and made to look as if
he’ (i.e. Blind) ‘had concocted it

Here, then, I am actually accused of having ‘fabricated’ a
pamphlet in another man’s name. Furthermore, in the same article
(same column, further up), the National-Zeitung itself informs its
readers that I had sent the A. A. Z. a ‘deposition by the compositor
Vagele’,™ in which the latter said that ‘he knew Blind’s handwriting
from previous manuscripts; he himself had set the first part of the
pamphlet on Hollinger’s press, and Hollinger himself had set the
rest’; thus, in the passage quoted above, the National-Zeitung

a [K. Abel,] ‘The Journalistic Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily Telegraph, No. 1439,
6 February 1860. - P ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’ and ‘Wie man radikale
Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, Nos. 37 and 41, 22 and 25 January 1860. -
¢ PTO - 4 Blind’s statements in the Allgemeine Zeitung, Nos. 313 and 345,
9 November and 11 December 1859. - ¢ [K. Blind,] ‘“The Grand Duke Constantine
to Be King of Hungary’, The Free Press, No. 5, 27 May 1859.
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insinuates not only that I fabricaied a pamphlet and fraudulendy
made it appear to be a ‘concoction’ of Blind’s. It insinuates outright
that I had wittingly sent the Augsb. Allg. Zeitung a spurious
document. And, to crown its animus calumniandi® it goes on:

‘Thereupon, on 2 November, Hollinger declared that it was a malicious
invention to say that the pamphiet had been printed in his workshop or that Blind
was its author, adding that his compositor, Wiehe, who had worked for him for 11
months, concurred with this statement. Marx, always ready with an answer, replied
in the Allgemeine Zeitung on November 15b:

‘“Hollinger’s declaration is simply ridiculous. Hollinger is aware that he has
formally infringed English law by publishing the pamphlet without declaring the
place of publication.” In addition, Marx several times insists that, before the
pamphlet came out, Blind had communicated its contents to him verbally and had
put down in writing exactly what later appeared in the pamphlet; hence, because of
the similarity in content and form, Blind had, de prime abord, been regarded as the
author.’

Here, in order to introduce the passage cited above, which is
defamatory to myself, the National-Zeitung omits deliberately that
part of my statement in the supplement to the Augsburg A. Z. of
21 November 1859 which is of most significance to lawyers, and
to English lawyers in particular. I enclose the cutting from the
Augsburg A. Z.,, in which I have underlined for your benefit what
was deliberately omitted from my statement by the National-
Zeitung®

In accordance with universal legal usage, it should now be
incumbent on the Nat.-Zeit. to prove that its defamatory charge
against me is true. But I shall let you have legal evidence to the
effect that it is false. You will even see that under English law I am
now in a position, should I so wish, to have Mr Blind consigned to
the galleys for conspiracy against me.

2. No. 37 of the Nat.-Zeit., the leading article entitled Karl Vogt
und die ‘Allgemeine Zeitung’, column 2, reads (I quote):

‘Vogt reports on p. 136 et. seq.: Among the refugees of 1849 the term
Brimstone Gang®b%; or the name of the Bristlers,® referred to a number of people
who, originally scattered throughout Switzerland, France and England, gradually
congregated in London, where they revered Herr Marx as their visible leader.

4 deliberate libel - b This refers to Marx’s ‘Declaration’ of 15 November, published
in the supplement to the Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 325, 21 November 1859. - ¢ from
the very start - 9 Marx presumably refers to point 2 of his ‘Declaration’. - ¢ See this
volume, p. 70, and Marx’s Herr Vogt (present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 38-47).
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I shall let you have evidence to the effect that in this passage
two quite distinct Genevan societies have been lumped together,
neither of which ever had, or sought to make, any connection
with me. But this I consider to be of no more than secondary
importance. The actual passage upon which 1 wish the second
point in the libel action to be based is one that occurs
subsequently and which I shall now quote:

One of the chief occupations of the Brimstone Gang’ (ostensibly under my
comnumd, wos lo compromise people at home in Germany in such a way that they were
forced to pay money so that the gang should preserve their secret without compromising them.

Not just one, but hundreds of letters were written to people in Germany threatening
to denounce them for complicity in this or that act of revolution unless a certain
sum of money had been received at a specified address by a certain date.’

It will now be incumbent on the National-Zeitung to substantiate
the charge of boundless depravity it brings against me by
producing in court, not hundreds of letters, not one letter, but one
single line contdining infamous blackmail of this nature, and of
which it can be proved that it emanated, I won’t say from myself,
but from any person with whom I have ever had anything to do.
The passage cited above continues as follows:

u

‘Following the principle that “whoever is not unconditionally for us, is against
us”, the reputation of anyone who opposed these intrigues’ (i.e. the blackmailing
letters previously described) ‘was ruined, not just among the refugees, but also
by means of the press. The “proletarians”’ (as whose chief I am portrayed) ‘filled
the columns of the reactionary press in Germany with their denunciations of those
democrats who did not subscribe to their views; they became the confederates of the
secret police in France and Germany.’

It will, of course, be easy for the Nat.-Zeit. to find in the ‘columns
of the reactionary press’ thus filled, one single line emanating
from myself or friends of mine which contains ‘denunciations’
against any ‘democrat’ whomsoever.

It is absolutely correct—and this is the only racr—that
Ferdinand Freiligrath wrote a satirical poem?® about Mr Kinkel’s
revolutionary loan and his revolutionary tour of the United States®' a
poem which was first published by my friend Weydemeyer in a
journal appearing in New York,” and subsequently printed in the

2 F. Freiligrath, ‘An Josef Weydemeyer. Zwei poetische Episteln’, Epistel 1.- b Die
Revolution }
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Morgenblatt® But that could certainly not be described as a
‘denunciation’. In actual fact, the so-called democratic emigration
(German) filled the German press with the most inane tittle-tattle
about myself. There was only one instance which I felt merited the
trouble of a reply, but the paper to which I sent the rectifying
statement did not print it.”

The only German paper for which 1 have written since going
into exile has been the Neue Oder-Zeitung. I was its correspondent
from about the beginning of January until July 1855. Not once
did 1 devote a single line to the émigrés.

As regards Liebknecht's articles for the Augsb. Allg. Zeitung
which likewise never contained a line about émigrés—and which,
by the by, reflect great credit to him (their content, I mean)—
these have nothing whatever to do with me. I shall be writing to
you about this at greater length.

Needless to say, my alliance with the secret police in Germany and
France has for me the spice of novelty.

3. In the above cited No. 41, ‘Wie man radikale Flugblatter
macht’, the National-Zeitung identifies the ‘party of the proletariat’,
as whose chief it describes me, and hence myself, with ‘a conspiracy
of the most infamous sort, with the manufacturing of counterfeit
paper-money on a massive scale, cte.” which purportedly took
place in Switzerland in 1852, and likewise with similar ‘machina-
tions’ in 1859 which purportedly caused the German states, ‘after
the Peace of Villafranca’, to raise the matter with the Swiss
‘Federal Council’.

Later, I shall show in greater detail that I had nothing whatever
to do with these matters having, indeed, abandoned all agitation
since September 1850, and that, while the Cologne communist trial
was pending (1851-52),° 1 disbanded the communist society to
which I belonged,* nor have 1 since that time belonged either to a
secret or to a public society. That the Nat.-Zeit. was deliberately
libellous on this point, too, may be deduced from the fact that it
must have known from the communist irial in Cologne that I myself,
through counsel there, denounced as a police agent the fellow said
to have been active in Switzerland in 1852, and that Stieber
himself was forced to admit that this fellow had been my enemy
since 1850. If necessary, I can provide you with evidence to the

2 Morgenblatt fiir gebildete Leser - ® This presumably refers to the ‘Statement’ by Marx
and Engels which was to be published in the Weser-Zeitung and the New-Yorker
Staatszeitung in early 1851 (present edition, Vol. 10, pp. 535-36). - ¢ See this volume,
pp. 66-67.
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effect that this fellow (Cherval, real name Crimer) never had any
connection with me, even before 1850.

4. The final point in the libel action should be based on the
following passage in No. 41, ‘Wie man radikale Flugblitter macht’,
column 2, which runs:

*Where the money for this generously distributed paper’ (i.e. the Volk, published
in London) ‘came from, is known to the gods; men, however, are well aware that
Marx and Biscamp have no money to spare.’

Taken in conjunction with the animus of the two leading
articles, with the way I am lumped together with secret police,
reactionaries and a Brimstone Gang extorting money through
chantage and revolutionary threats, this sentence can only imply
that 1 obtained money for the Volk in a dishonest fashion or by
underhand means. It is now up to the National-Zeitung to
substantiate this libel. I, for my part, shall provide you with
information, not only about the financial contributions obtained by
me for the Volk, but also, in so far as this is necessary, about my
own—in Mr Zabel’s eyes,” dubious—financial circumstances; and
that information will be such as will enable you to prove the very
opposite of the defamatory insinuation put forward by the
Nat.-Zeut.

I would beg you, when you reply to this letter, to let me know
upon which points you require further elucidation.?

P. S. Since it would otherwise be too late to post this letter, I
shall send on the power of attorney tomorrow. If at all possible, this
evening under separate cover. '

First published in: Marx and Fngels, " Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time

4 There follow, in Jenny Marx’s handwriting, the date and address, reproduced in
this edition at the beginning of the letter.
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24
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 13 February 1860

Dear Freperick,

The book*® arrived today. Nothing but shit. Sheer tripe. Luckily,
the worthy National-Zeitung has reprinted in its two leaders
(No. 37 and No. 41) all the passages which are actionable and in
which all the scurrilities are concentrated.

Today (on receiving a second letter from Fischel), 1 at once sent
Legal Counsellor Weber (the leading lawyer in Berlin) an
indictment together with a retaining fee of 15 talers (£2 10sh).
The case would have cost me nothing if, instead of instituting a
private action for libel, I had had recourse to the Royal Prussian
Public Prosecutor, but as I wrote and told Fischel,* I could not
expect the Royal Prussian Public Prosecutor to ‘display especial
zeal in upholding the honour of my name’. Moreover, the whole
procedure costs very little.

Of the £5 you sent me, £2 10 has therefore gone to Weber, £1
today to the Countv.Courr, b/—to Vogele and 2/—on the two
aFrpavits he made; also a ror on stamps for letters. Before going
to the Crry today I had to borrow a fturther £1 from a baker,
repayable on Wednesday.

Luckily, Urquhart has written Collet a rude letter in which he
lashes out at him for sending me the rrivrer’s s’ This (l.e. my
publication) was, he said, an expense chargeable to his agitational
activities. So I don’t have to pay him.

Temorrow I shall be faced with yet another expense and I don’t
know how I'm going to meet it. For I have got to call on that
bastard Zimmermann (from Spandau, a Vogtian and, at the same
time, an advocate to the Austrian Embassy) so that he can supply me
with the wording for the power of attorney which must go off to
Weber without delay. There’s no time to be lost, you see, because
actions of this kind become ‘statute-barred’ remarkably quickly in
Prussia.

4 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - b See this
volume, pp. 40-45. - ¢ ibid., p. 40. - 4 ibid., p. 37
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In addition to the Volks-Zeitung, the Berlin Publicist has
published my statement,* the latter having placed it alongside an
extract from the English anti-Blind circular.” This last I have today
sent to Louis Blanc and Félix Pyat, together with the arrmavits of
Wiehe© and Végele.

The Kolnische Zeitung and the N.-Z. did not publish my
statement.”

Mr F. Freiligrath—whom (with seeming benevolence) 1 shall
compromise in no mean fashion—did not even acknowledge
receipt of thé things I sent him.

You must surely have got my last important communication? ¢

After I've settled the matter of the power of attorney tomorrow,
I shall leave on Wednesday® (having notified you beforehand) for
Manchester where, in addition to our indispensable meeting, I
have business connected with Roberts.

You will have gathered from the foregoing that I'm now
stone-broke.

Your
K. M.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

Published in English for the first
time

25
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 14 February 1860

Dear Freperick,

Enclosed cory of Vogele’s affidavit™ which I thought I had sent
you on Saturday.’

4 ‘To the Editors of the Volks-Zeitung. Declaration’. - b K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the
Augsburg Gazette’. - < See this volume, pp. 31-32 and 37. - 9 ibid., pp. 32-38. -
¢ 15 February - f 11 February. Marx probably sent the affidavit without a covering
letter, or the letter is no longer extant.
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Borkheim has handed me the manuscript of his narrative The
RISE, PROGRESS AND DECLINE Of the Brimstone Gang.’“ He is, as I've
already told you, rrst clerk of a firm in Mark Lane; earns between
£600 and £700 a year.

My correspondence with Schily is still going on, of course, since
I have to crossexamine him on specific roinTs.

- Did Lassalle post you Vogt’s book*? In reply to his letter, I told
the fool to address the thing to you.”

I expect to have an answer by telegraphic despatch tomorrow
from Legal Counsellor Weber.*

There are a number of matters still to be settded tomorrow.

If means are available, I may possibly depart some time tomorrow.
I can't say for certain, as unforeseen events may detain me a day
longer. At any rate, make sure that I find all the letters and parers
thrown together in ‘one great pile’.

The pitiable Hermann (apparently at the instigation of Kinkel,
WHO 1S ABOUT MARRYING AN EncLisuwoman with £2-3000 a vear) did not
publish the resolution adopted by the Workers’ Society.! Mais ces
messieurs y penseront.

. The beastly Telegraph’ wrote to me again today and referred me
to yesterday’s piece by their beastly correspondent.® T'll play the
scoundrel a merry tune.

Salut.
Your
K. M.
Have not yet heard anything from Papa Blind.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, X X . .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, time

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

2 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - b See this
volume, p. 27 (Marx’s letter to Franz Duncker of 6 February 1860). - < ibid.,
p. 40. - 9 ibid., p. 34. - ¢ But these gentlemen will have cause to think itover. - f The
Daily Telegraph. - 8 This refers to K. Abel, author of the note published in The Daily
Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February 1860. See this volume, pp. 74-76.
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 15 February 1860

Dear Engels,

£5 received.

I shall be leaving tomorrow at asour 7.30 a.m. (Euston Street®).

From Schaible’s statement® enclosed herewith (this cutting is
from The Daily Telegraph) you will see that the powder I
administered has proved effective. Faicrs prejudicial to the
Genevan advocatus imperii® will now emerge.

I at once wrote a brief note to Schaible, the contents of which
were as follows:

His statement was important in being anti-Vogt and hence
pro-main issue. It did nothing to alter Blind’s ‘wiLrurey Facser and in
no way ‘erroneous’ staTeMment in the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung®
Still less his conspiracy, of which he could, I said, convince himself
by reference to the cory I enclosed of Wiehe’s arrpavir,® which has
yet to play its public role. You will observe that, i~ orper To save Brinp
rroM THE worsT, the fellows will come out with genuine racts against
Vogt and actually grovel in the dust at our feet.

Salut.

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, i X i §
1913 Published in English for the first

time

a Ch. Schaible, “The Vogt Pamphlet. To the Editor of The Daily Telegraph’. In this
statement, published in The Daily Telegraph, No. 1447, 15 February 1860, Schaible
claimed to be the author of the pamphlet Zur Warnung (see present edition,
Vol. 17, pp. 130-31). - b imperial advocate (a reference to Vogt) - < No. 313,
9 November 1859 - 4 See this volume, p. 37.
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27
ENGELS TO FRANZ DUNCKER
IN BERLIN

Manchester, 20 February 1860

. 6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road
Dear Sir,

I am in receipt of your note of the 13th and regret that I am
only now able to send the manuscript enclosed herewith.* I hardly
imagine that it will run to more than 3 printed sheets.

I don’t quite understand the provisos you make concerning
considerations of principle, unless you wished to make a general
proviso to the effect that you must see the manuscript be-
forehand.® I cannot believe that you wish to assume moral, logical
and aesthetic responsibility for everything you publish, from Marx
to Jacobus Venedey and from Lassalle to Palleske, or to associate
your publishing house with the line of the Volks-Zeitung, on which
I cannot comment since it is not to be had in Manchester. If,
however, the considerations of principle are connected with
Lassalle’s pamphlet on Italy,” which admittedly does not tally with
my views on the subject, I do, of course, respect such reservations
on your part, but I also know that Lassalle is certainly the last
person who would wish this to be taken into account. I am
therefore writing to Lassalle® in the firm conviction that he would
consider it an insult, were he thought capable of doing the
slightest thing to obstruct the publication of a piece that differed
from his own views on the subject.

[Should]? you feel, however, that the pamphlet is unacceptable
to your publishing house by reason of its length or its principles, I
would request you to deliver it within twenty-four hours of receipt to
Mr B. Afinger (Sculptor),

Linienstrasse 173, Berlin.
I have sent the letter to Borkheim.

I remain,
Yours truly,
Friedrich Engels
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time

2 F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine. - b [F. Lassalle,] Der italienische Krieg und die
Aufgabe Preussens. Eine Stimme aus der Demokratie, Berlin, 1859. - ¢ See this volume,
pp- 51-52. - 4 Illegible.
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ENGELS TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 20 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Lassalle,

Many thanks for sending me Vogt's concoction.* More about this
below.

As Duncker has doubtless told you, I have offered him a sort of
sequel to Po and Rhine® which he accepts subject to the proviso
‘considerations of principle’. Even though I find it somewhat
surprising that the publisher and not the author should be
responsible for the principles advanced in a work, I have,
nevertheless, tried in vain to discover what can be meant by this.
Surely D. isn’t claiming that his publishing house is simply an
extension of the Volks-Zeitung, which, by the way, I never see up
here. Finally, it occurred to me that D. may have got wind of the
fact that my views on the Italian question are different from yours
and made this proviso out of excessive concern for your
pamphlet.d I'm convinced that, should this be the case, I would
only have to draw your attention to it, for you to reassure D. on
this score. In view of your objectivity, you would, I know, consider
it an insult, were anyone to suppose you capable of even remotely
desiring the suppression of a work because it was opposed to your
own views on a question of this kind. In fact, I had to spend a
long time thinking things over before I could make up my mind
to raise this point with you, being afraid you might be offended
with me for assuming such -imputations to be possible, even at
third hand. But since there seems no other explanation for D.’s
‘considerations’, I have no choice.

Settling Vogt’s hash will be mere child’s play. We dealt with this
ancient, warmed-up drivel as much as eight years ago® (though
the little Genevan philistine in his secluded corner doesn’t know it)
and we’ll jolly well demolish it so that nothing’s left but the stench,

a C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - b F. Engels,
Savoy, Nice and the Rhine. - < See this volume, p. 50. - 4 [F. Lassalle,] Der italienische
Krieg und die Aufgabe Preussens, Eine Stimme aus der Demokratie, Berlin, 1859.
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peculiar to Vogt, which he has injected into it. Incidentally, the
statements of Blind,* Biscamp® and, in particular, Lupus® have
compromised the fellow to such an extent that, if things go on like
this, there’ll be literally nothing left to do. And now we have
Schaible’s statement about the provenance of the pamphlet Zur
Warnung® which completely nullifies the legal proceedings in
Augsburg® and will ultimately compel Vogt, should he wish to
demonstrate the contrary, to do so in London. All this has, of
course, meant our rummaging through the whole of our archives,
in which we have the life histories of the entire democratic gang;
we can do for every one of them. This ignoramus Vogt, with his
letter from Techow ™ (which Vogt stole, to boot) and his paltry,
parochial Genevan gossip, imagines that we others are just as
ignorant, just as low and just as cowardly as he. He is in for a
surprise.
Most cordially,

Yours,
Engels

First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- ‘Printed according to the original
sene  Briefe und Schriften, Bd. 111,

Stuttgart-Berlin, 1992 Published in English for the first

time

29
MARX TO ]J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 21 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Sir,

The power of attorney was not sent off to you immediately after
my first letter® because, further on in that same letter, I had
requested you to telegraph me. Having waited a few days, it

2 K. Blind, ‘Gegen Karl Vogt', Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 44 (supplement), 13 February
1860. - b [E. Biskamp,] ‘Erklirung’, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 46 (supplement),
15 February 1860. - < W. Wolff, ‘Erklirung’, Die Reform, No. 18, 11 February 1860,
Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 44 (supplement), 13 February 1860, and Volks-Zeitung,
No. 47, 24 February 1860. - ¢ See this volume, p. 49. - € ibid., pp. 40-45.
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seemed to me best to wait until the latest date (namely yesterday,
20 February) by which your written reply might be expected to
reach London from Berlin.

Since this did not arrive and since, on the other hand, you did
not reject by telegraph my request that you should act as my
lawyer, 1 assume that you have accepted my brief. To avoid
further loss of time, I am therefore sending you the following in
this registered letter:

1. The power of attorney;

2. 7 enclosures, together with translations where the original is in
English.

These enclosures comprise:

1. A. Végele’s affidavit”™;

2. J. F. Wiehe’s affidavit®;

3. My English ant-Blind circular.”

4. and 5. Two letters concerning this matter from the Augsburg
Allgemeine Zeitung to me.*

6. Dr Schaible’s statement in the London ‘Daily Telegraph’ of
15th February 1860, page 5, column 5, paragraph headed ‘The
Vogt Pamphlet’.

7. A letter from K. Blind to Liebknecht dated 8 September
1859.%

Tomorrow, by which time I shall, perhaps, have received a letter
from you, I shall take the liberty of sending you some comments
on these documents. However, you will see at first glance that the
infamous conduct attributed to me in No. 41 of the National-
Zeitung, where I am portrayed as the anonymous fabricator of
papers allegedly circulating in other people’s names, is irrefutably
shown in law to be an infamous libel.

As regards the affidavits (statements made in court in lieu of an
oath), all I would say is this: .

You will note that in affidavit enclosure II, the words wron oats’
have been deleted by the magistrate. For he explained to us that a
statement made before him was the equivalent of a sworn
statement, that a false statement was a felony and hence punishable
with TransrorTATION but that, under English law, an oath could
properly be administered only in the presence of the defendant.

The rest I shall leave for tomorrow, pending which I remain,
Sir, Your very obedient Servant,

Dr. K. Marx

4 See this volume, pp. 31 32 and 37.- b K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg
Gazette’.
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I am not certain how long I shall be staying up here and hence
would request that all letters be sent to my home address,

9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park, Haverstock Hill, London.

On the power of attorney 1 have left a space for the names of the
National-Zeitung’s editors.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
Mg:cow, 128934 ussian Edion, Vo Ifubhshed in English for the first
time
30

MARX TO FERDINAND FREILIGRATH
IN LONDON

Manchester, 23 February 1860°?
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Freiligrath,

I am writing to you again and, indeed, for the last time, about
the Vogt affair. You have not so much as acknowrepcep receipt of
my first two communications,” a courtesy you would have
extended to any philistine. I cannot possibly surmise that you
imagine I am trying to extort a letter from you for any public
purpose. As you are aware, I possess at least 200 letters of yours,
in which there is more than enough material to establish your
relations with me and with the party, should it prove necessary.

I am writing to you because, as a poet and a man up to his eyes
in business, you would seem to misconceive the significance of the
lawsuits I am conducting in Berlin and London.”” They are crucial
to the historical vindication of the party and its subsequent position
in Germany; this applies all the more to the lawsuit in Berlin in
that it is taking place at the same time as the Eichhoff-Stieber
case,* which turns mainly on the Cologne communist trial.?

The crievances you may perhaps be nourishing against me are
the following:

1. That I abused your name (or so you told Faucher).

2. The kind of ‘scene’ I made you in your orrick.

2 1850 in the original. - » See this volume, pp. 30-32.
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Re 1. T personally have never mentioned your name, except for
saying in the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung that Blind had told you
much the same as he told me.* This is a ract. From the first I
realised how important it was to call attention to the real origins of
the pamphlet,” and 1 had the right to cite a witness in connection
with what Blind had said.

As for Liebknecht’s letter to the editor of the A. A. Z., in which
he mentions your name and mine (with reference to Blind **), he
will, if necessary, confirm on oath that this was done without my
knowledge, just as he sent the Augsb. Allg. Zeit. the pamphlet Zur
Warnung’ without my knowledge and during my absence in Manchester.
When Vogt sued the A. A. Z and the latter turned to him
[Liebknecht], he was still in doubt as to whether or not I should
disavow him, as I could have done, and was in fact surprised when
I immediately said I would do all I could to help him.

If—in the letter I wrote you‘—I took his side in the matter of
your letter to him, this was simply because it seemed ungenerous,
in a man of your repute and social standing, to write so harshly to
an obscure party member living in a garret and one with whom
you had hitherto been on friendly terms.

As regards the irritable tone of my own letter, there were
various reasons for that.

Firstly, I was deeply wounded by the fact that you seemed more
inclined to believe Blind than myself.

Secondly, from a letter you wrote me in a very irritable vein
regarding The Morning Advertiser (Schiller Festival article?) you
would seem to consider me capable of the enormity, not only of
surreptitiously introducing into Blind’s article something injurious
to yourself, but of actually denouncing this to you as Blind’s
handiwork.” I was at a complete loss to imagine what I could have
done to deserve such injurious suspicions.

Thirdly, you showed Blind a private letter I had written you.

Finally, I had the right to expect—and all the more so after the
‘Gartenlaube’ article,® that you should include in your statement in
the A. A. Z.¢ some allusion, however faint, that would obviate any
appearance of its being a personal breach with myself and a public

a K. Marx, ‘Declaration’, 15 November 1859. - b Zur Warnung - < on 23 November
1859 (present edition, Vol. 40) - 4 [K. Blind,] ‘Crystal Palace.—The Schiller
Commemoration’, The Morning Advertiser, No. 21344, 11 November 1859. -
¢ F. Freiligrath. ‘Erkldrung’, Aligemeine Zeitung, No. 319 (supplement), 15 November
1859.
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repudiation of the party. The fact that your second statement®
actually appeared alongside Blind’s” and your name served as a
screen for his lying and fraudulence could hardly be expected to
delight me. Incidentally, I give you my word of honour that, prior to
their publication, I had no knowledge whatsoever of any of the
statements made by Liebknecht in the A. A. Z.*°

Re 2. The day I came to your office, the two issues of the
National-Zeitung® (the first contained the libellous excerpts and
comments later reprinted in the Telegraph®) had just reached me
from Berlin. There was utter commotion at home, and my poor
wife was in a truly pitiful state. At the same time, I received a
letter from Germany informing me that, besides your statements
published in the A. A. Z., Vogt’s libellous work included a letter
of yours, from which your close relationship with Vogt was all too
apparent,” and that, in particular, your name was the only one of
any note out of which Vogt made political capital and which lent
plausibility to his infamies in the eyes of the public. Imagine
yourself in similar circumstances and then ask yourself whether, in
your own case, spleen might not momentarily have prevailed over
reason.

Let me repeat once again that this letter has nothing to do with
private interests. In the London lawsuit I could have you susroenaen
as a witness without your prior permission. As regards the Berlin
lawsuit, I am in possession of letters from you which, if required, I
could place on the record. Nor do I stand alone in this matter.
From every side—Belgium, Switzerland, France and England—
Vogt's libellous attack has brought me unexpected allies, even
from among people who belong to quite a different school of
thought.

But in the first place it would anyhow be better for both parties,
as for the cause, to act en entente.

In the second, I must tell you frankly that I cannot resign
myself to losing, as a result of irrelevant misunderstandings, one
of the few men whom I have loved as friends, in the eminent
sense of the word.

a F. Freiligrath, ‘Erklirung’, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 345 (supplement), 11 December
1859. - » K. Blind, ‘Erklirung’, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 345 (supplement), 11 De-
cember 1859. - ¢ containing the items ‘Karl Vogt und die Aligemeine Zeitung’, N.-Z,,
No. 37, 22 January, and ‘Wie man radikale Fiugblitter macht’, N.-Z, No. 41,
25 January 1860 - 4 [K. Abel,] ‘The Journalistic Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily
Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February 1860.
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If T have failed you in any way, I am at all times ready to admit
to my error. Nihil humani a me alienum puto?

Finally, I understand very well that, in your present position,
any affair such as the one under consideration could only be
obnoxious to you.

You, for your part, will realise that it is impossible to count you
out altogether.

Firstly, because Vogt is making political capltal out of your name
and pretending to have your approval in his indiscriminate
mudslinging at a party which prides itself on countmg you as one
of its number.

Moreover, you happen to be the only member of the former
Cologne Central Authority” who, between the end of 1849 and
the spring of 1851, lived in Cologne and has since that time lived
in London.

Inasmuch as we have both consciously, each in his own way, out
of the purest of motives and with an utter disregard for private
interests, been flourishing the banner for ‘la classe la plus laborieuse
et la plus misérable™™ high above the heads of the philistines for
years now, I should regard it as a contemptible offence against
history, were we to fall out over trifles, all of them attributable to
misunderstandings.

In sincere friendship

Your
Karl Marx

First published in Die Neue Zeit, Ergan- Printed according to the original

hefte, No. 12, Stuttgart, 1911-1912 . . . .
zungshefte, No. 12, Stuttgart Published in English for the first

time

2 Nothing human is alien to me—an allusion to Terence’s Heautontimorumenos, 1, 1,
25. - P of the Communist League
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31
MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 23 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Lassalle,

I am at present having to conduct two lawsuits, one in Berlin
and another in London,” while, at the same time, simply working
for a living, and am unable to write you more than a few lines.

I must say that, having seen the book, I'm astonished at the
‘great deal of truth’ you discovered in Vogt's romance,” no less
than at the pusillanimous advice you gave me.

As for the only part that wasn’t pure invention—Techow’s letter,”
or rather the substance thereof-—1 refuted this 7 years ago in a
pamphlet which appeared in New York under the title The Knight
of the Noble Consciousness, and to such good effect that all the
yapping curs, who then still all belonged to the same pack, held
their tongues and dared not utter a single word in reply.

What I should like you to do and what would be of inestimable
use to me, would be to find out who is the Daily Telegraph’s
correspondent in Berlin and where the brute lives, the number of
the house and the name of the street. I believe he’s a Jew called
Meier.” It shouldn’t be at all difficult for you, in view of the
position you occupy in Berlin, to find this out. Please advise me of
it forthwith.

I enclose the pamphlet on the communist trial.”

Your
K. M.

P. 8. As for my mistrust (you compel me to talk like statesman
Blind, vide the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung®®), that's something at
least you can’t complain of. Take, for instance, the enclosed note
from Baltimore (United States). That note was sent to me in
confidence.'” The official allegations against you (among them the
assertions of a workers’ deputation from Diisseldorf®) are in the

a C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - b K. Marx,
Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne. - ¢ See this volume,

p. 35.
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League’s® files, which are neither in my possession nor am I
authorised to use them.

First published in: F. Lassalie. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene  Briefe und Schriften, Bd. [III,

Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 24 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Sir,

I find it surprising that as late as yesterday I should still have
been without an acknowledgment from Berlin of the registered
letter despatched to you on 13 February."

Yesterday I mailed you from here—Manchester—in a second
registered letter, the power of attorney together with seven other
enclosures and, with reference to the said (numbered) enclosures,
am today taking the liberty of sending a few additional notes on
the chief points which I consider it necessary to stress in the action
for libel against the Berlin National-Zeitung. At the same time, I
enclose a letter of 19 November 1852, and a copy of the
Revelations published by me in 1853.¢

L a) The anonymous pamphlet "Zur Warnung’.

In No. 41 of the Berlin National-Zeitung, leading article, ‘Wie
man radikale Flugblitter macht’, .page 1, column 3, there is a
passage which runs as follows:

‘The Marx party could very easily saddle Blind with the authorship of the
pamphlet because and after he had expressed similar views to those contained in it
in conversation with Marx and in an article in The Free Press” By making use of
Blind’s assertions and turns of phrase the pamphlet could be fabricated and made
to look as it he’ (i.e. Blind) ‘had concocted it

4 the Communist League’s - ® See this volume, pp. 40-45. - © ibid., p. 53. -
4 Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne - ¢ [K. Blind,] “The Grand
Duke Constantine to be King of Hungary’, The Free Press, No. 5, 27 May 1859.

4—558
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Altogether the whole intent of this column is to depict me as the
fabricator of the said flysheet and, at the same time, to charge me
with the infamy of having made it look as though it had been
concocted by Blind.
Before dealing with the evidence provided in the enclosures 1
sent you yesterday, it would, I think, be pertinent to give you a
concise history of this controversy.
In the course of its lawsuit with Vogt, the Augsburg Allgemeine
Zeitung printed amongst other documents the following letter
from me*:
‘October 19, 1859
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill, London

‘Sir,

‘As long as 1 had a hand in the German Press I attacked the
Allgem. Zeitung and the Allgem. Zeiwtung attacked me. However,
this does not of course prevent me from assisting the Allgem.
Zeitung, as far as it lies in my power, in a case in which it has in
my view fulfilled the primary duty of the press: that of the
denunciation of numsucs. The enclosed document would be a legal
document here in London. I do not know whether it is the same
in Augsburg. I have procured the said document because Blind
refused to stand by statements which he had made to me and
others, which 1 passed on to Liebknecht, and which allowed the
latter no doubts about the denunciation contained in the
anonymous pamphlet.

‘Yours very sincerely, Dr K. Marx.’

The document enclosed in the letter to the Allg. Zeit. and also
printed by the latter, runs:

‘I hereby declare in the presence of Dr Karl Marx and Wilhelm Liebknecht that
the flysheet published anonymously and without indication of the place of printing
under the utle Zur Warnung, which was reproduced in No. 7 of the Volk, had been

‘1. composed and printed in the printshop of Fidelio Hollinger, 3 Litchfield
Street, Soho, I myself composing part of the manuscript and F. Hollinger the other
part; 2. that it was written in Karl Blind’s hand, which was known to me from Karl
Blind’s manuscripts for the Hermann. and from anonymous flysheets written by
Karl Blind, ostensibly printed at “Frankfurt am Main”, but in fact composed and
printed at F. Hollinger’s, 3 Litchfield Street, Soho; 3. that Fidelio Hollinger in
person told me Karl Blind was the author of the flysheet Zur Warnung, directed
against Prof. Vogt August Vigele, Compositor. The authenticity of the above
signature is attested by W. Liebknechi, Dr. K. Marx. London, 17 September 1859."

“ K. Marx, [Letter 1o the Editor of the Allgemeine Zeitung]. - » See also Marx’s Herr
Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 124-25.
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(See Vogt's piece, ‘Mein Prozess gegen die “Alg. Zeitung”;Documents,
pp. 30, 31.)

In reply, the following letter from Karl Blind, together with the
depasitions of Hollinger and Wiehe, appeared in No. 313 of the
Allgem. Zeitung and in the. Kélnische Zeitung:

‘London, 23 Townshead Road, St John’s Wood, 3 November 1859. In order to
refute the allegation that 1 am the author of the flysheet Zur Warnung, 1 need do
no more than make public the following document. This only in self-defence-—not
as a vindication of Karl Vogt, whose mode of action I and my friends of the
republican party must unconditionally condemn in view of all that we have learned
over the past six months. I can testify to the accuracy of the information provided
by Mr Julius Frébel o the effect that offers of money emanating from Vogt did,
beyond doubt, arrive here, for the purpose of persuading Germans over here to
influence the Press at home in the sense already mooted. Karl Blind.

a) ‘1 hereby declare that the assertion of the compositor Vogele printed in the
Allg. Z., No. 300, to the effect that the pamphlet Zur Warnung mentioned there
was printed in my printshop or that Herr Karl Blind was its author, is a malicious
fabrication. Fideliv Hollinger. 3 Litchfield Street, Soho, London, November 2, 1859

b) “The undersigned, who has lived and worked in No. 3 Litchfield Street for
the past 11 months, for his part testifies to the correctness of Herr Hollinger’s
statement. London, November 2, 1859. J. F. Wiehe, Compositor.’

(Cf. Vogt’s book, Documents, pp. 37 and 38.)*

To this 1 replied in No. 325 of the Allg. Zeit,” the relevant
cutting from the A. A. Z. having been sent you in my first letter
from London.

Kari Blind, for his part, published a further rejoinder in the
supplement to the Allg. Zeit. of 11 December, in which the editors
declare:

“The ftollowing is the substance of Mr Karl Blind’s statement: Having repeatedly
based my testimony on the documents signed by Herr Hollinger, the printer, and Herr
Wiehe, compositor, 1 declare here for the last time that the allegation (which is
latterly put forward merely as an insinuation) that [ am the author of the pamphlet
frequently referred to is a downright untruth. The more recent statements about
me comtain distortions of the crudest sort. Let me repeat: I say this merely in
self-defence against the Marx-Biscamp-Liebknecht camp, and not as a vindication
of Vogt, my opposition to whom I have already voiced.’

The editors of the Allgem. Zeit. commented on this statement as
follows:

‘Since the further elucidation in these pages of the above circumstances, or the
controversy over them, has long ceased to be of any interest to the public at large,
we would request the gentlemen concerned to desist from any further exchanges.’d

* Marx also quotes these documents in Herr Vogt, p. 126. - b K. Marx, ‘Declara-
tior’, 15 November 1859, - ¢ See this volume, p. 42. - ¢ See also Marx’s Herr Vogt,
pp- 126-27.

4*
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(CI. Vogt’s book, Documents, pp. 41, 42.)

Thus, the files were closed for the time being. No sooner had 1
got hold of the articles in the National-Zeitung containing the
excerpt from Vogt's pamphlet and the commentary thereon, than
I brought out the English circular (enclosure I1I), addressed to the
Editor of the London Free Press.* The aim was to impel K. Blind to
bring an action for injuria against me, thus atfording me the
opportunity, first of providing legal proof in London as to the
printing and provenance of the pamphlet Zur Warnung, and
secondly of compelling its real author to produce incriminating
evidence against Vogt in an English court of law.

The immediate consequence of this circular (enclosure 111),
which 1 sent to Karl Blind as soon as it came off the press, was
K. Blind’s statement, which appeared in the Allgem. Zeitung of
13 February, in the supplement to No. 44. In this statement, entitled
Against Karl Vogt, while reiterating that he was not the ‘author’ of the
anti-Vogt flysheet Zur Warnung, Blind was, nevertheless, forced by
my circular to come out with sundry arguments to the effect that
Vogt was an agent for Bonapartist propaganda in London. This was
the immediate consequence of my first move, namely the publication
of the circular (enclosure III).

In the meantime, I had procured the two affidavits of the
compositors Vogele and Wiehe (enclosures I and II). These
affidavits proved, firstly that my cdaim that the flysheet Zur
Warnung had been printed in Hollinger’s printshop and written in
Blind’s hand, was true. Secondly. that Hollinger’s and Wiehe’s
depositions, published by Blind both in No. 313 of the Allg. Zeit.
and in the Kélnische Zeitung, and again cited by him in the Allg.
Zeit’s supplement of 11 December, were false. Thirdly, that Blind
and Hollinger (see enclosure II, the compositor Wiehe’s affidavit)
entered into a conseiracy In order to obtain false evidence against
me and disparage me as a liar and slanderer in the eyes of the
public. A consriracy of this nature is a criminal offence under
English law. Only one circumstance has restrained me from
prosecuting Hollinger and Blind, and that is consideration for
Blind’s family.

I sent copies of the affidavits of the two compositors Vagele and
Wicehe (enclosures I and H) to several refugees who consort with
Blind, to whom they showed them. The immediate consequence was
Dr Schaible’s statement in The Daily Telegraph of 15 February 1860,

4 K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazette'.
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in which Schaible declares himself to be the author of the {lysheet
Zur Warnung, and accepts responsibility for the imputations
against Vogt contained therein. (See enclosure Vi.) Hence, if Vogt
wishes to prove his innocence, he will have to begin his lawsuit all
over again——in London. Schaible’s statement to the effect that he
is the author of the flysheet Zur Warnung in no way alters the fact
that the flysheet was printed in Hollinger’s printshop, that Blind
caused it to be printed, that it was written in Blind’s hand,that the
depositions of Hollinger and Wiéhe cited by him were false and,
finally, that Hollinger and Blind were trying to extricate them-
selves from the snare and compromise me by giving false
evidence.

I need hardly point out that the two affidavits of Végele and
Wiehe (enclosures I and 1I) and Dr Schaible’s statement in
The Daily Telegraph of 15 February (enclosure VI) put you in
possession of positive evidence as to the falsity of the National-
Zeitung'’s libel* adduced by me under Iaj of this letter.

b) My relations with the ‘Allgemeine Zeitung'.

The two letters from the Editor of the Allgem. Zeitung to me
dated 16 October 1859 (enclosures IV and V),* and my reply to
the same, dated 19 October 1859, quoted above under Ia),
represent my entire correspondence with the All. Zeitung. Hence, all
this amounted to was my placing at the disposal of the Allgem.
Zeit. a written document which could not fail to throw light on the
prrovenance of the flysheet, the publication of which had led to
Vogt’s prosecution of the Allgem. Zeit.

On 9 May 1859, on the occasion of a public meeting held by
David Urquhart, K. Blind informed me of all those allegations
against Vogt which were later repeated in Zur Warnung, although
that pamphlet did not appear until the following June. He assured me
that he was in possession of the evidence. I did not attach much
importance to this information, as I had already been convinced
by Vogt's pamphlet entitled Studien zur gegenwdrtigen Lage Europas,
as well as by his association with Fazy, the ‘tyrant of Geneva’, and
Fazy’s association with Llouis] Bonaparte, that Vogt was a
Bonapartist agent. It was all the same to me, whether it was with
good or evil intent, whether paid or unpaid. Two or three days
after Blind had told me this, Mr Biscamp, with whom I had never
been connected in any way, either personally or politically, was
brought to my house by Liebknecht. Biscamp suggested that my

a ‘Wie man radikale Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, No. 41, 25 January 1860.
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friends and I might care to support Das Volk, the paper he had
founded, by making financial and literary contributions to it
Initially, 1 rejected his proposition, firstly because my time was in
fact very much taken up, and secondly because I needed to learn
more about Das Volk, of which there had so far been only one
issue, before I could invite my friends to contribute to it. In this
connection, I stressed that T had so far eschewed on principle any
kind of participation in German newspapers published in London.
During this talk I repeated to Liebknecht, in the presence of
Biscamp, what Blind had told me at Urquhart’s meeting. At the
same time, 1 also mentioned the tendency of South Germans to
exaggerate out of an inflated sense of their own importance.
Subsequently, in No. 2 of the Volk of 14 May, under the heading
‘Der Reichsregent als Reichsverriter’, Mr Biscamp published, on
his own responsibility and with his own interpolations, an article
that is quoted in Vogt's piece, Mein Prozess, etc., Documents,
pp- 17, 18, 19./

Later, about the middle of June, at a time when I was away from
London and staying in Manchester,'"” Liebknecht received from
Hollinger, in the latter’s printshop, the proofsheet of the flysheet
Zur Warnung, which he instantly [recognised] as being a reproduc-
tion of the information transmitted to me verbally by Blind, and
the manuscript of which, as he learnt from the compositor Vogele,
Blind had entrusted to Hollinger for printing. Liebknecht sent this
proofsheet to the All Zeit., which published it, thus laying itself
open to Vogt’s libel action. Liebknecht was all the more justified in
taking this step (about which I knew nothing, since I was not then
in London) because he knew that Blind, Vogt's accuser, had been
personally invited by Vogt to collaborate in the proposed work of
propaganda. Vis-a-vis someone who took it upon himself to pay a
premium for all articles in the German press favourable to
Bonaparte’s plans (see Vogt’s admission to that effect in his book,?
letter to Dr Loening, Documents, p. 36), duty demanded that such
widely read newspapers as the Allgem. Zeit. be utilised as ‘a
warning’.

As soon as Vogt brought his libel action against the A. A. Z. for
reproducing the flysheet Zur Warnung, the Editor of the Allg. Zeit.
wrote to Liebknecht urgently requesting that he produce proof.
Liebknecht appealed to me. 1T referred him to Blind and, on his
request, went with him to see the latter, as you will perceive from

2 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859.
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Blind’s letter (enclosure VII). We failed to find Blind, who was at
the seaside resort of St Leonards. Liebknecht wrote to him twice.
His letters remained unanswered for weeks until, perhaps, Blind
thought that the Augsburg lawsuit was nearing its end. (His
calculations were thrown out by the fact that the Allg. Zeit. had
meanwhile succeeded in getting the case adjourned.) Eventually,
Blind replied to Liebknecht in a letter dated 8 September
(enclosure VII), in which he says with the most barefaced
effrontery that, ‘as already remarked’, he had had ‘no share
whatever in the said affair’, and that he might, ‘on some future
occasion, be willing to discuss verbally ... the observations made in
the course of private conversation’. Liebknecht brought this letter
to me.

I now perceived that, if Blind’s tongue was to be loosened,
torceful measures were needed. I recalled having read in the
London Free Press of 27 May an anonymous article (“The Grand
Duke Constantine to be King of Hungary’)* which contained the
substance of the flysheet Zur Warnung and of Blind’s verbal
communications to me. The style and content of the article never
for a moment left me in doubt that Blind was the author of it. To
make quite sure, I went with Liebknecht to see Mr Collet, the
responsible editor of The Free Press. After some prevarication, he
declared Blind to be the author of the article in question. Shortly
afterwards, [ obtained the written statement of the compositor
Vogele to the effect that the flysheet had been composed in
Hollinger’s printshop and that the manuscript was written in
Blind’s hand.

Liebknecht now wrote another, even longer letter to Blind, in
which he notified him that we now had proot of his connection
with the flysheet Zur Warnung, drew his attention, in particular, to
the article in The Free Press, and once more requested him to
provide such information as might be available to him. K. Blind
did not answer, nor indeed did he once break his silence either
before or during the legal proceedings in Augsburg. There could
thus no longer be any doubt that K. Blind was firmly determined
to adhere to a policy of denial and diplomatic impassivity. In these
circumstances, 1 told Liebknecht that 1 was prepared, should the
Allg. Zeit. ask me to do so in writing, to send it Vogele’s statement
which I had in my possession. And this is in fact what I did, after

4 The Free Press, No. 5, 27 May 1859. Marx gives the text of the article in Herr
Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 123 and 317.
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receipt of the Allg. Zeit’s two letters of 16 October, in my reply of
19 October.

The reasons which impelled me to take this step were as follows:

Firstly: I owed it to Liebknecht, who had first heard from myself
about Blind’s remarks concerning Vogt, to provide proof that he
was not merely repeating random allegations against third parties.

Secondly: The Allg. Zeitung was, in my view, wholly justfied in
reprinting the pamphlet Zur Warnung, knowing as it did that its
source was one whom Mr Vogt had personally invited to
collaborate in his work of propaganda. The circumstance that the
Allg. Zeit. belongs to a party hostile to myself and has always
treated me personally in a hostile manner, even to the extent of
repeatedly publishing the most fatuous gossip about me, in no way
alters that view, no more than does the circumstance that, since I,
accidentally, do not come within the jurisdiction of the Augsburg
Court of Justice, I cannot be subpoenaed as a witness by the Allgem.
Zeit.

Thirdly: In the Biel ‘Handels-Courier’, No. 150 of 2 June,
supplement (cf. p.31 of the Documents in Vogt’s book), Vogt had
published a lampoon against me,” obviously on the assumption
that I was the author of the anti-Vogt article which Biscamp had
published in the Volk on 14 May.” Similarly, when he took action
against the Allg. Zeit., it was on the assumption that I was the ’
author of the flysheet Zur Warnung. Blind was evidently deter-
mined to perpetuate this quiproquo‘ which suited Vogt so well.

Fourthly: and, so far as I was concerned, this was the chief factor. |
wished to bring about a direct encounter between Vogt and his
accusers, and on ground, moreover, such as would ensure a
conclusive ‘issue to the affair and leave no loopheles for either
party. To achieve this, it was essential that I force both the real
author and the publisher of the flysheet Zur Warnung to come out
of their hiding places. That I had reckoned correctly is shown by
Dr Schaible’s statement? (enclosure VI) and Blind’s letter to the
Allg. Zeit. of 13 February, Supplement to No. 44, already cited.

My correspondence with the Allg. Zeit. is confined to the two
letters (enclosures IV and V) from Dr Orges,” and my reply of
19 October, cited above (under la). This sufficed for Mr Vogt
(and the National-Zeitung) to dub me a contributor o the
Allg. Zeit. and to present himself to the German public as the

4 See this volume, p. 22. - b |E. Biscamp,] ‘Der Reichsregent, Das Volk, No. 2,
14 May 1859. - ¢ confusion - ¢ Ch. Schaible, “The Vogt Pamphlet. To the Editor of
The Daily Telegraph’, D. T.,No. 1447, 15 February 1860.
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innocent vicim of a conspiracy between the reactionaries and the
extreme Left.

Liebknecht has been a correspondent of the Allg. Zeit. since
1855, just as Mr Vogt himself was once its correspondent.
Liebknecht will, it necessary, testify on oath to the truth, namely
that T never made use of him to smuggle so much as a single line
into the Allg. Zeit. His connection with the Allg. Zeii. neither has
nor has had anything whatever to do with me. Besides, his articles
are confined exclusively to English politics, and the views he
upholds in the Allg. Zeit, are the same as those he has upheld and
upholds in radical German-American papers. There is not a line
in any of his articles which does not contain his views and which
he could not, therefore, uphold anywhere. As regards England’s
foreign policy, Liebknecht subscribes to much the same ant-
Palmerston views as Bucher in the Berlin National-Zeitung. As
regards England’s internal policy, he has always supported the most
progressive English party. He has never written a line in the Allg.
Zeit. about the titde-tattle of the London refugees.

So much for my alleged relations with the Allgem. Zeitung.

I1. In No. 41 of the National-Zeitung, the leader, ‘Wie man
radikale Flugblitter macht, p. 1, column 2, line 45 from the top et
seq., runs:

‘In May last year, a newspaper, Das Volk, was founded in London by the same
Biscamp mentioned a short while since.... Where the money for this generously

distributed paper came from, is knoun to the gods; men, however, ave well aware that Marx
and Biscamp have no money to spare’

Taken in conjunction with the whole of the article in No. 31,
and likewise the leader in No. 37 of the National-Zeitung, where 1
am depicted as the ‘confederate of the secret police in France and
Germany’, and especially with reference to the passage 1 shall
presently cite under III, the lines I have just quoted imply that the
money for Das Volk was procured by me dishonestly.

As to this, I would merely observe that

Vogt himself, in his pamphlet discussed by the National-Zeitung,
quotes, on [p.] 41 of the ‘Documents’, which comprise the
beginning of his book, the following editorial note in No. 6 of the
Volk, dated 11 June:

‘We are pleased to inform our readers that K. Marx, Fr. Engels,
Ferd. Freiligrath, W. Wolff, H. Heise, etc. ... are determined to
grant their support to Das Volk.’*

4 See ‘Statement by the Editorial Board of the Newspaper Das Volk’, present
edition, Vol. 16, p. 624.
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Thus, up till the middle of June, I had not as yet given any
support to the Volk, nor up to that point had I had anything to do
with its financial affairs. However, I might perhaps mention in
passing that at the time Biscamp earned his living in London as a
tutor and, throughout, edited the ‘Volk’ gratis. Similarly all the
contributors, from the time the paper first came out until its
collapse, wrote for it gratis. Hence the only production costs that
had to be met were those of printing and distribution. These,
however, always markedly exceeded the paper’s returns. Before 1
collaborated on the paper, losses were met by public collections
among Germans in London. Later, 1 procured between £20-25
(133 to 166 talers) which were contributed exclusively by
Dr Borchardt, general practitioner, Dr Gumpert, ditto, Dr.
Heckscher, ditto, Wilhelm Wolff, teacher, Friedrich Engels, a
businessman (all resident in Manchester), and myself. Although
some of these gentlemen were not at all in sympathy with the political
opinions held by myself, Engels and W[ilhelm] Wolff, they all
thought it high time to come out against Bonapartist machinations
amongst the émigrés (and this was the Volk’s principal aim).

Lastly, the Volk left debts amounting, I think, to £8 (53 talers),
for which Biscamp is liable, and in respect of which Hollinger
possesses a promissory note of his.

That 1s the whole of the Volk’s financial history.

As far as Mr Biscamp is concerned, he has himself declared in
the supplement to No. 46 of the ‘Allg. Zeit.” of 15 February 1860:

‘My enure political association with Mr Marx is confined to the few journalistic
contributions he made to the weekly paper I founded, ... the Volk’

As regards my own sources of income, all I need say here is
that, since 1851, I have been a regular contributor to the New-York
Tribune, the foremost English American paper, for which I have
written not just articles, but leaders, too. The paper has some
200,000 subscribers and pays accordingly. In addition, I have for
several years contributed to the Cyclopaedia Americana published
by Mr Dana, one of the editors of the New-York Tribune. I hope to
obtain from Mr Dana in New York a letter relating to these
circumstances in time for the court proceedings.” However, should
this letter fail to arrive soon enough, 1 need only refer you to
Mr Ferdinand Freiligrath, manacer of the General Bank of Switzerland,
2 Royal Exchange Buildings, London, who has for many years been
good enough to cash my bills on America.

4 Marx cites Dana’s letter in Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 323-24.
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The effrontery of Vogt and his ally the National-Zeitung in
casting aspersions on me because of my participation in a
newspaper which did not pay a penny, is all the greater for the fact
that, on p. 226 of his book discussed in the National-Zeitung, this
same Vogt openly admits that ‘furthermore’, too, ‘he would obtain
the money” required for his purposes ‘wherever he could lay hands on
18

IH1. In No. 37 of the National-Zeitung, leader entitled ‘Karl Vogt
und die “Allgemeine Zeitung”’, page 1, column 2, line 22 from top,
el seq., the National-Zeitung says—and this passage, which I now
quote, I consider to be the most incriminating of all from the point
of view of the libel action:

‘Vogt reports on p. 136 et seq.: Among the refugees ot 1849 the term Brimstone
Gang, or the name of the Bristlers, referred to a number of people who, originally
scattered throughout Switzerland, France and England, gradually congregated in
London, where they revered Herr Marx as their visible leader.... One of the chief
occupations of the Brimstone Gang was to compromise people at home in Germany in such a
way that they were forced to pay money so that the gang should keep secret the fact of their
being compromised. Not just one, but hundreds of letters were written to people in
Germany, threatening to denounce them for complicity in this or that act of
revolution unless a certain sum of money had been received at a specified

IR

address by a given date.... The “proletarians”’ (as whose chief I am porwayed)
‘filled the columns of the reactionary press in Germany with their denunciations of those
democrats who did not subscribe to their views. They became the confederates of the
secret police in Germany and France’

As regards this infamous passage, which the National-Zeitung
takes over lock, stock and barrel from Mr Vogt, thus ensuring its
circulation among its 9,000 subscribers, I would remark:

Firstly: As I have already mentioned in my first letter to you," it
will now be incumbent upon the National-Zeitung to produce from
amongst these ‘hundreds’ of threatening letters, one solitary letter
or one solitary line of which [ or any person known to be
connected with me was the author.

Secondly: 1 repeat what I have already said in my first letter,”
namely that, since July 1849, I have never written for any German
paper except the Neue Oder-Zeitung of Breslau® (1855), at a ume
when it was under the editorship of Dr Elsper and Dr Stein. As
the issues of the paper will themselves reveal, and as Messers
Elsner and Stein will assuredly be willing to testify, I never
thought it worth my while to devote so much as a single word to
the emigration.

2 Sec this volume, p. 42. - P ibid., p. 44. - ¢ Wroclaw
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As for the columns in the ‘reactionary press’ which I and my
friends filled with ‘denundations’, it will be incumbent on the
National-Zeitung to produce just one such column. On the other
hand, it is both true and demonstrable that a large proportion of
the German émigrés in London systematically filled German
newspapers of all complexions with their hostile gossip about me
tor years on end. 1 have never made use of my connections, either
with the New-York Tribune, or with the Chartist papers, or with
The Free Press, for the purpose of retaliation.

As for my ‘alliance with the secret police in France and
Germany’, Horfel, a notorious French police spy, was the chief
agent in Paris for Kinkel's émigré association. He in turn was
connected with Beckmann, who was both a Prussian police spy and
a correspondent of the Kdlnische Zeitung. Again, one Englinder,
likewise a notorious French police spy, was for a considerable time
the Paris correspondent of Ruge’s clique. This was how ‘the
democratic émigrés in London’ succeeded in setting up, all
unwittingly, of course, an ‘alliance with the secret police in France
and Germany .

Finally Vogt, and with him the National-Zeitung, mentions

‘a number of people who, among the refugees of 1849, went by the name of the
Brimstone Gang or Bristlers and who, originally scattered throughout Switzerland,
France and England, gradually congregated in London, where they revered Herr
Marx as their visible leader’.

This passage I regard as of secondary importance. Nevertheless,
with a view to elucidating and unmasking the libellous intentions
of Vogt and the National-Zeitung, 1 would make the following
observations:

The Brimstone Gang was the name given to a society of young
German refugees who lived in Geneva in 1849/50 and set up their
headquarters in the Café de 'Europe in that city. This was neither
a political nor a socialist society but, in the true sense of the term,
a ‘society of young blades’ who were secking to overcome the first
pangs of exile by indulging in mad escapades. It consisted of
Eduard Rosenblum, medical student; Max Cohnheim, shop assistant;
Korn, chemist and pharmacist; Becker,* engineer, and L. S. Bork-
heim, student and artilleryman. I had never seen any of thesc
gentlemen save Mr Becker, and him only once, at the Democratic
Congress in Cologne in 1848.'* In mid-1850 all the members of

* Max Joseph Becker
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the society except for Korn were expelled from Geneva. The
group scattered to the four winds.

I am obliged to Mr Borkheim, now manager of a big
commercial enterprise in the City (44 Mark Lane), for the above
notes concerning a society of which I had been hitherto entively
tgnorant.® 1 first made Mr Borkheim’s acquaintance only about a
fortnight since, after I had written to him asking for informaton.*

So much for the Brimstone Gang.

Now, as regards the Bristlers, this was a term of abuse which one
Abt, at present secretary to the Bishop of Freiburg,” applied to the
Workers’ Educational Association in Geneva. For Abt had been
declared dishonourable by a general refugee society which com-
prised members (refugees) of the Workers’ Educational Associa-
tion as well as former members of the Frankfurt Parliament. To
avenge himself, he wrote a pamphlet, in which he christencd the
Workers’ Educational Association ‘Biirstenheimers’ [roughly: ‘Bris-
tlers’} because the Association’s President at the time was a hrush
maker | Biirstenmacher] by the name of Sauernheimer."”” There was
never any kind of connection between this Workers” Educational
Association in Geneva and myself or the communist socicty in
London to which I belonged."™ In the summer of 1851, two of its
members, Schily, a lawyer now in Paris, and P. Imandt, now
professor at the training college in Dundee, were expelled by the
Swiss authoritics and made their way to London where they joined
the Workers’ Society then headed by Willich and Schapper '”; this,
however, they left a few months later. Their relationship to me
was that of compatriots and old personal friends. The only person
in Geneva with whom I ever had anything to do since my
expulsion from Prussia (1849) was Dronke, now a businessman in
Liverpool.

Thus, the names Brimstone Gang and Bristlers, like the two quite
distinct societies they denoted, were exclusive to Geneva. There was
never any connection between the two societies and myself. They first
became known in London through the leaders in the National-
Zeilung,” excerpts from which were reprinted by a London paper,
The Duaily Telegraph.

Thus, my connection with the ‘Brimstone Gang and the
‘Bristlers’ is a deliberate fabrication on the part of Vogt, the
National-Zeitung having made itself his mouthpiece.

“ Etienne Marilley - b ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’ and ‘Wie man radikale
Flugbliitter macht’. National-Zeitung, No. 37, 22 January 1860, and No. 41.
25 January 1860. - < [K. Abel,] "The Journalistic Auxiliaries of Austria’, The Daily
Telegraph, No. 1439, 6 February 1860.
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I1V. The National-Zeitung, No. 41, leader ‘Wie man radikale
Flugblitter macht’, page 1, column 1, line 49 from the top, says:

To begin with, Vogt simply alludes to the ‘party of the proletarians’ ‘under Marx’,

In this way 1 am identified with the ‘party of the proletarians’ and
hence everything the paper says about that party also applies to
myself personally.

Now, further on in the same article, column 2, line 19 from the
top et seq., we read:

‘In this way a conspiracy of the most infamous sort was devised in 1852, which
aimed at damaging the Swiss workers’ associations by manufacturing counterfeit paper
money on a massive scale. (See Vogt for further details.) This conspiracy would
have caused the greatest difficulties for the Swiss authorities if it had not been
uncovered in time.’

And, further on in the same column, line 33 from top:

‘The party of the *“proletarians” nourishes a particular hatred for Switzerland’,
etc.

The National-Zeitung must have known from the Cologne
communist trial of October 18527 (just as Vogt knew from my
Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial) that I never had
anything to do with Cherval, who is said to have been responsible
for the machinations in Switzerland in 1852 (Mr Schapper of
5 Percy Street, Bedford Square, London, with whom Cherval had
connections before the Cologne trial, is prepared to provide all the
necessary information on the subject); that during the communist
trial in Cologne 1 denounced Cherval, through the medium of
counsel, as an ally of Steber’s; that, according 1o the depositions
wrested from Stieber, when Cherval was in Paris in 1851, hatching
the complot franco-allemand under Stieber’s direction,'” he [Cher-
val] belonged to a society hostile to myself. The National-Zeitung
knew from Vogt’s book, which it made the subject of two leading
articles, that, after the Cologne trial was over, 1 had also
denounced Cherval as a mouchard® in the work, Revelations
Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne, which I sent to
Switzerland for printing. During the Cologne trial, when Cherval
arrived in London, ostensibly after escaping from prison in Paris,
but in fact as a mouchard, [he] was welcomed with open arms by
the Workers’” Society, then run by Willich and Schapper, only to be
expelled in consequence of the cross-examination to which, at my

* police spy
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instigation, counsel (notably Schneider II) subjected Stieber re
Cherval during the proceedings in Cologne.

Hence it was the most barefaced and deliberate libel on the part of
Vogt and his associate, the National-Zeitung, to make me responsi-
ble for the alleged activities in Switzerland of an individual
notoriously my enemy, whom I had exposed and persecuted. Vogt
speaks of Marx’s associates in Geneva with whom Cherval
consorted. At the present time, as in 1852, I have ro connections
with anyone whomsoever in Switzerland.

Let me repeat what I told you in an earlier letter*: On
15 September 1850 my friends and 1 disassociated ourselves from
one section of the London Central Authority of the then extant
German communist society (cailed ‘Communist League’),"”’ namely
from that section which, under Willich’s leadership, took part in
the (come to that, highly innocuous and puerile) revolution-and
conspiracy-mongering of the ‘Democratic Emigration’. We re-
moved the Central Authority to Cologne and entirely suspended
all correspondence with any part of the Continent except for
Cologne. As the Cologne trial was to show, that correspondence
contained nothing of a criminal nature. From the spring of 1851
onwards, immediately after the arrest of individual members of
the society in Cologne, we (the London section of the society) broke
off every single connection with the Continent. The only man—not
personally known to me, by the by—with whom I continued to
correspond about ways and means of defending the arrested men, was a
friend of theirs, Mr Bermbach, former deputy of the Frankfurt
National Assembly. My friends in London met once a week for the
purpose of frustrating the police machinations unblushingly
resorted to and daily renewed by Stieber. In mid-November
(1852), after the conclusion of the Cologne tral, I, with the
consensus of my friends, declared the ‘Communist League’
disbanded, nor, since that time, have I belonged either to a secret or
to a public society. Ferdinand Freiligrath, who belonged to the
communist society, was in Cologne from the autumn of 1848 until
the spring of 1851, and has lived in London from the spring of
1851 until the present, can testify to the absolute truth of the
foregoing account. For that matter, sufficient proof is provided by
the enclosed letter of 19 November 1852, postmarked London and
Manchester, which my friend F. Engels has discovered amongst
his old papers.”

4 See this volume, p. 45.- P ibid., p. 83.
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I arranged for the enclosed pamphlet,* quoted by Vogt and the
National-Zeitung, to be printed in Boston (in America) after the
original edition of 2,000 copies published by Schabelitz in Basle
had been confiscated on the Baden border. From this, no less than
from the Stieber-Eichhoff case,* when it eventually comes up in
Berlin, you will see that the communist society, to which I
belonged untl mid-November 1852, committed no offence what-
soever on which to base an indictment; also that, on the other
hand, in spite of the very restricted means at our disposal, my
London friends and I so effectively demolished the web of
intrigue spun by the police that in the end they actually proposed
to secure the prisoners’ conviction—as Hirsch, once Stieber’s agent
and now in gaol in Hamburg, relates in his confessions in the New-
Yorker Criminal-Zeitung of 22 April 1853"—by getting Hirsch to
travel to Cologne under the name of Haupt, and perjure himself
in the name of the Haupt he was impersonating. This coup was on
the point of being perpetrated when, Hirsch says, Mr von
Hinckeldey wrote saying that,

“The State Prosecutor hopes that thanks to the happy constitution of the jury it
will be possible to get a verdict of guilty even without extraordinary measures, and he’
(Hinckeldey) ‘therefore asks you not to trouble yourselves further.’

It goes without saying that the only value the enclosed pamphlet
would have in a court of law would lie in the light it throws on my
struggle with Stieber, Hinckeldey and the then Prussian police
system. The societies therein alluded to have belonged to the
realm of history for years now.

V. Finally, in order to leave you in no doubt as to the
significance to me of the libel suit against the National-Zeitung, 1
will allude very briefly to the repercussions here in London of the
leaders in the National-Zeitung.

The Daily Telegraph (a newspaper appearing in London) of
6 February 1860 published an article of two and a half columns
under the heading The Journalistic Auxiliaries of Austria.

This article, dated Frankfurt am Main, but in fact written in
Berlin, is, as the most fleeting comparison will reveal, a mere
paraphrase if not, in part, a word for word translation of the two
leaders in Nos. 37 and 41 of the Nat. Zeii. on account of which I
am suing it. [ shall be sending you the said issue of the Daily

4 K. Marx, Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial in Colegne. - W. Hirsch, ‘Die
Opfer der Moucharderie’, Belletristisches Journal und New-Yorker Criminal-Zeitung,
Nos. 3, 4, 5 and 6; 1, 8, 15 and 22 April 1853.
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Telegraph within the next few days. In this Telegraph article, as in
the National-Zeitung, firstly, my friends and I are portrayed as
‘confederates of the secret police’; and, secondly, there is a word
for word translation of the whole of the passage from the
National-Zeitung, to which 1 refer under IV, concerning the
Brimstone Gang, the blackmailing letters, my complicity in
Cherval’'s money forgery in Switzerland, etc.

No sooner had this article appeared than I at once wrote to the
editor of the Daily Telegraph, demanding an amende honorable, in
detault of which I would bring an acrion ror Liser against him.* He
replied, saying that he had sent my letter to his correspondent in
Germany and would await the latter’s reply. That reply was
published in the Daily Telegraph of 13 February 1860. The
following 1s a literal translation (I shall let you have the original in
a few days’ time):

‘ Frankfort-on-the-Maine, Feb. 8. 1 shall not be long in disposing of the remarks
addressed to you by Dr Marx in reply to a communication of mine. The letter
addressed to you by him has been simply misdirected. If the learned gentieman
had offered his observations to Dr Vogt himself, or to one of the hundred German
editors who quoted the book of Dr Vogt, his behaviour would only have been what
the case seems to demand. As it is, however, Dr Marx, leaving unrefuted the
numerous accusations raised against him in his own country, prefers cooling his
anger by attacking the only English paper that has received into its columns a
statement printed and reprinted before in almost every German city of any magnitude.
The learned gentleman seems to be utterly oblivious of the fact that he has not the
slightest right to complain of the publication of a certain piece of unpleasant
intelligence by an English paper, so long as he does not deem it convenient to call to
account the originators and propagators of the mischief in his fatherland. I conclude these
lines by declaring my readiness to acknowledge the untruthfulness of the
statements put forth in the communication alluded to the moment Dr Marx will
have satisfied the world of their falsity. If he is in possession of the evidence
required for such a purpose, nothing would be easier for him than to accomplish so
desirable an object. There are at least fifty German cities at his disposal where he will
have to institute lawsuits, and bring the editors to condign punishment. Unless he
chooses to pursue this course, it is not the duty of the correspondent of an English
paper to retract what he did not assert, but merely repeated on the uncontradicted
authority of the most respectable sources.’

Merely en passant 1 would draw attention to the exaggerations
with which the Daily Telegraph’s Berlin correspondent (a Jew by
the name of Meier,” 1 believe) endeavours to cloak his plagiarisms
from the National-Zeitung. First there are a hundred German
editors, then many thousands (in other words, as many editors as
there are towns of any importance in Germany) and, finally, at

s K. Marx, ‘To the Editor of The Daily Telegraph’.



76 32. Marx to J. M. Weber. 24 February 1860

least fifty editors whom I would have to sue. Incidentally, by the
most respectable sources, he means his only source, the Berlin
National-Zeitung.

Again merely in passing, I should mention that in my letter of
6 February to the Editor of the Daily Telegraph, a letter which, as
he wrote and told me himself, he forwarded to his German
correspondent, I had disclosed to the Editor of the Telegraph, and
hence also to his correspondent, that I intended to bring a libel
action against the Berlin ‘National-Zeitung’.

What seems to me the one point of crucial importance here is
that the Daily Telegraph, skulking behind its correspondent, is
refusing me any kind of satisfaction until I have taken action against a
German paper. It invokes the ‘respectable’ authority of the
National-Zeitung, which was alone in printing, in this context, the
very assertions made by it

You can imagine what a scandal the Telegraph article created in
London. For that scandal I have the National-Zeitung to thank. 1f
only for my family’s sake, 1 shall have to bring an acrion ror uBEL
against the Telegraph, for which the necessary retaining fees will
amount in this country to at least £200—before the case has been
decided. The depths of depravity to which Vogt is capable of
descending will have been apparent to you from the dastardly
insinuation that I owed my alleged connections with the Neue
Preussische Zeitung to the fact of my wife’s being the sister of the
former Prussian minister, von Westphalen.

I now await by return of post (unless a letter has been despatched
to me previously) notification that you have received the following
letters:

1. Letter from London of 13 February, together with a
retaining fee of 15 talers. '

2. Letter from Manchester of 21 February, together with power
of attorney and seven enclosures.

3. This letter from Manchester of 24 February, enclosing the
pamphlet Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne
and a letter which I wrote Engels on 19 November 1852,
postmarked in London and Manchester.

I am, Sir,

Your obedient Servant,
Dr Karl Marx

First publishd4 in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original

Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . R . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time
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33
MARX TO WILHELM LIEBKNECHT

IN LONDON
[ Draft]

Manchester, 27 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Liebknecht,

You should let Schapper have a look at Vogt's book.* Go and see
him. He will tell you what I've written to him.*

According to the letter from my lawyer in Berlin,” which arrived
yesterday, things are going well. The information I sent him
included what was required in respect of yourself. Deal thoroughly
with all that part of Vogt’'s book relating to you, so that I can have it
at any ume. But stick absolutely rigidly to the racis.

Next, it is essential that the resolution backing me and censuring
Vogt, adopted by the Workers’ Educational Society on 6 February
1860 and signed by the Society’s chairman,” should be authenti-
cated immédiatement (i.e. the signature) before the magistrate. So,
have a word with Weber® if necessary.

Kindest regards to your wife and yourself.

Your
K. M.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time

2 Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung - " J. M. Weber - ¢ See this volume,
p- 34. - 4 Georg Miller - © Joset Valentin Weber
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34
MARX TO KARL SCHAPPER

IN LONDON
[Draft]

Manchester, 27 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Schapper,

I have written to Liebknecht asking him to let you have a look at
Vogt’s book," so that you can see for yourself how important the
Berlin lawsuit against the National-Zeitung (the one against the
Telegraph® is secondary) is to the historical vindication of our party
and its subsequent position in Germany. Yesterday I had a letter
from my lawyer in Berlin¢ from which I gather that Mr Zabel of
the National-Zeitung will probably atone for his pro-Vogtian zeal
by becoming intimately acquainted with the interior of a penal
establishment. My lawyer thinks it important that you should make
the following affidavit,'™ as soon as possible, or one along similar
lines, before a London magistrate (the one in Bow Street is our man;
he already knows Liebknecht, who could go with you):

*‘1 declare herewith, that, in the year, etc.,, Cherval (alias
Cramer, etc.) was introduced by myself into the London Branch of
the German friendly society called “Der Bund” (the Union)® (a
society, by the by, which has ceased to exist long time since); that
in etc. 1848 the said passed through Cologne where he had a
short interview with me, which I did not even mention to Dr Karl
Marx. Cherval being an individual utterly unknown to Dr K. M_;
that in 1851/52 during his stay at Paris, Cherval belonged to, and
corresponded with that branch of the German friendly society
called “Der Bund” which at the time was directed by myself and
Mr Willich, now living at Cincinnati, U. St.; that, during the
autumn of 1852, after his return from Paris to London, Cherval
entered the public German Working-men’s Society, called “Der
Arbeiterbildungsverein”, of which he had formerly been a
member and which, at the time, was directed by myself and the
above said Mr Willich; that consequent upon the revelations
publicly made at Cologne against Cherval during the trial of

* Sec this volume, p. 77. - % The Daily Telegraph - * J. M. Weber
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Dr Becker® and others, and upon other information derived from
other sources, the said Cherval was publicly expulsed from the
German Workmen Club above named, and, soon after, disappeared
from London.*

Engels sends you his kindest regards; he will, by the by, be
coming down to London himself sometime in the spring. 1 beg
you to lose no time.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

In the affidavit mention is made of a ‘rriEnpLy sociery’, this being
the sort of thing that doesn’t sound at all suspect to an English
magistrate; besides, you can interpret rrieNnLy socikry in any way
you wish.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . i . R .
Moscow, 1934 " lfubllshed in English for the first
time
35

MARX TO MUZEMBINI

IN LONDON

[ Draft]
Manchester, 27 February 1860
6 Thorndiffe Grove, Oxford Road®

My dear Muzembini,

Mr Faucher, I suppose, will have told you that I am just now
busied with two actions for libel, the one being carried on at
Berlin against the National-Zeitung, the other at London against
the Daily Telegraph, both relating to Vogt, the Bonapartist agent’s
pamphlet against myself.

In regard to the latter it is of the highest importance for me to
be exactly informed of the relations of General Klapka with the

@ Hermann Becker - P Marx wrote under the date: *Enclosed in the letter to my wife,
To Muzembini, under the above date, as follows:” - © C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen dic
Ulgemeine Zetiung.
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General Bank of Switzerland and the Ottoman bank, of the
mutual relations of these two banks, of the relations of the
Ottoman bank with Musurus, and of the latter’s relations with
Russia. You will highly oblige me by giving me the information
wanted, and by directing it to my present address.

With my best compliments to Mrs Muzembini

Yours truly,
K. Marx

First published in: Marx and Engels, Reproduced from the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV,
Moscow, 1934

36
MARX TO FERDINAND FREILIGRATH

IN LONDON

Manchester, 29 February 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Freiligrath,

Your letter really warmed my heart, for there are very few
people with whom I strike up a friendship, but when I do I
adhere to it. My friends of 1844 continue to be my friends today.
As to the strictly official part of your letter, however, this is based
on some grave misapprehensions, hence the following by way of
clarification:

1. The Eichhoff-Stieber case*

The ‘material’ which I passed on to Juch (on which occasion I
also pointed out to him that there were two reasons why he and
Eichhoff did not deserve my support: firstly, the way in which they
had referred to the Cologne trial® in the Hermann?; secondly, my
conviction that Eichhoff is simply a tool of the ex-police official
Duncker, who is seeking to avenge himself on Stieber as Vidocq
once did on Gisquet in Paris; nevertheless, I would, I said, do all
in my power to help overthrow Stieber and bring him to book, if
only to avenge the death of my friend, Dr Daniels), this ‘material’,
I say, amounts to the following:

“ [K. Eichhott,] ‘Stieber’, Hermann, Nos. 36-38, 40, 42, 43; 10, 17, 24 September,
3, 22, 29 October 1859. .
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I gave Juch a copy of the Revelations Concerning the Communist
Trial in Cologne; N. B. this publication of mine, which was printed
first in Switzerland and later in Boston, was cited by Vogt as a
well-known book, and was in no sense ‘something secrer’.

I told Juch that it contained all 1 knew.

Finally, T pointed out to him that Lewald (Eichhoff’s defence
counsel) must examine Hirsch, who was in jail in Hamburg, as a
witness. This was done. Hirsch has now admitted on oath that the
‘minute-book’ was a Prussian fabrication and an indictable offence
in every other respect.

Hence the ‘revelations’ produced by the trial, thanks to my
‘material’, exonerate the former members of the League® from any
semblance of legal culpa® and ‘expose’ the Prussian police system,
which, once installed as a result of the ‘Cologne trial’ and the
infamous pusillanimity of the Cologne jury, grew to be such a
power in Prussia that it has finally become intolerable to the
bourgeois themselves and even to Auerswald’s ministry. Voila tout.”

Besides, I'm astonished that you could even imagine that I might
hand the police anything on a platter. I would remind you of
letters sent from Cologne (1849-50),'"'" which you knew about and
in which 1 was reproached in so many words with having dragged
my feet too much (at the time, I did so for very good reasons,
certainly not out of concern for myself) in regard to agitation by
the League.

2. My lawsuit against the ‘National-Zeitung’

I would point out d’abord® that, after the ‘League’ had been
disbanded at my behest in November 1852, 1 never belonged to any
society again, whether secret or public; that the party, therefore, in
this wholly ephemeral sense, ceased to exist for me 8 years ago.
The lectures on political economy 1 gave, after the appearance of
my book® (in the autumn of 1859), to a few picked working men,
amongst whom were also former members of the League, had
nothing in common with an exclusive society—less even than, say,
Mr Gerstenberg’s lectures to the Schiller Committee.”

You will recall that the leaders of the fairly ramified Communist
Club in New York'" (among them Albrecht Komp, manacer of the
General Bank, 44 Exchange Place, New York) sent me a letter,
which passed through your hands, and in which it was tentatively
suggested that I should reorganise the old League. A whole year
passed before I replied,'”” and then it was to the effect that since

* guilt - P That is all. - ¢ first - ¢ A Contribution to the Critique of Political Economy
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1852 I had not been associated with any association and was firmly
convinced that my theoretical studies were of greater use to the
working class than my meddling with associations which had now
had their day on the Continent. Because of this ‘inactivity’ I was
thereupon repeatedly and bitterly attacked, if not by name at least
by inference, in Mr Scherzer’s London Neue Zeil.

When Mr Levy came over from Disseldorf (for the first time),
on which occasion he frequently called on you, too, he actually
proffered me a factory operatives’ insurrection, no less, in
Iserlohn, Solingen, etc. I told him bluntly that I was against such
futile and dangerous folly. I further informed him that I no longer
belonged to any ‘league’; nor, in view of the danger presented to
the people in Germany [by] such a connection, could I have
anything to do with it, no matter what the circumstances. Levy
returned to Diisseldorf, and as I was shortly afterwards informed
by letter, spoke very highly of you while denouncing my
‘doctrinaire’ indifference.'”

Since 1852, then, I have known nothing of ‘party in the sense
implied in your letter. Whereas you are a poet, I am a critic and
for me the experiences of 1849-52 were quite enough. The
‘League’, like the société des saisons in Paris''" and a hundred other
societies, was simply an episode in the history of a party that is
everywhere springing up naturally out of the soil of modern
society.

There are two things I have to prove in Berlin (I mean with
regard to this hoary and outdated business of the League):

First, that since 1852 no such society has existed of which I have
been a member,

next, that in as much as he slings Telleringtan mud, and worse,
at the communist society that existed up tll November 1852,
Mr Vogt is a scoundrelly and infamous slanderer.

As to the latter point, you, of course, are a witness and your letier
fo Ruge (summer of 1851) proves that, during the period with
which we are solely concerned here, you regarded attacks of this kind
as being directed against yourself, too.

You were a co-signatory to the statements in the Morning
Advertiser, the Spectator, the Examiner, the Leader, and the People’s
Paper Omne copy of these.is on the court files in Cologne.

Nor did you raise the least objection when I reverted to this
matter in my Revelations (p. 47) (Boston edition).”

2 K. Marx and F. Engels, [Public Statement to the Editors of the English
Press]. - P See present edition, Vol. 11, p. 433.
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Again, your name appears—as treasurer—in the appeal we
published requesting contributions for the convicted men.'"

But there’s hardly any need to go into all this again.

What is imperative, however, is that my lawyer in Berlin® should
be sent the following letter from me to Engels, this being a legal
document by virtue of the fact that it was sent without an envelope
and bears both London and Manchester postmarks.

‘London, 19 November 1852
28 Dean Street, Soho

‘Dear Engels,

‘Last Wednesday,” at my suggestion, the League disbanded,
similarly the continued existence of the League on the Continent
was declared to be no longer expedient. In any case, since the arrest
of Biirgers-Roser, it had to all intents and purposes already ceased
to exist there. Enclosed a statement for the English papers,© etc. In
addition I am writing, for the Lithographierte Korrespondenz, an article’
(instead, 1 wrote the pamphlet published by Schabelitz”) ‘on the dirty
tricks played by the police, etc., and also an appeal to America for money
for the prisoners and their families. Treasurer Freiligrath. Signed by
all our people.” (The few remaining lines are irrelevant.)

‘Your K. M.”®

In the case of such a document [ cannot, of course, delete any
names. This is the only document in which, with a view to
substantiating a fact, namely the disbandment of the League, 1 make
use of your name, in as much as it happens to occur in a letter
written by me in 1852. 1 cannot see how that would compromise
you.

I should like to use one letter of yours, written in 1851, for the
pamphlet which is to appear after the hearing.! Nothing in the
least compromising about it, legally speaking. But since this will
take many weeks, 1 shall arrange matters with you by word of
mouth.

4 J. M. Weber - » 17 November 1852 - < K. Marx and F. Engels, [Public Statement to
the Editors of the English Press). - 4 Marx's Revelations Concerning the Communist
Trial in Cologne - © See present edition, Vol. 39. - f K. Marx, Herr Vogt.
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From the above it follows that:

The ‘meetings, resolutions and transactions of the party’ since
1852 belong to the realm of fantasy, as you might have known in
any case without my telling you and, judging by a great many of
your letters to me, evidently did know.

The only activity in which I persisted after 1852, for as long as it
continued necessary—i.e. until the end of 1853 —in company with
a few kindred spirits on the other side of the Atlantic, was of the
kind described by Mr Ludwig Simon in 1851 in the Tribune as a
SYSTEM OF MOCKERY anp contemer,''® and was directed against the
emigration’s democratic humbug and revolution-mongering. Your anti-
Kinkel poem,’ no less than your correspondence with me during
that time, prove that you and I were entirely d’accord.

However, this has nothing to do with the lawsuits.

Tellering, Bangya, Fleury, etc., never belonged to the ‘League .
That dirt is thrown up by storms, that no revolutionary period
smells of attar of roses, that even, at times, one becomes a target
for all manner of garbage, goes without saying. Aut, aut®
However, when one considers the tremendous efforts made to
combat us by the whole of the official world, who did not so much
skim as wade through the depths of the Code pénal in order to
ruin us; when one considers the slanderous attacks of the
‘democracy of folly which could never forgive our party for
having more brains and character than itself; when one knows the
parallel history of all the other parties; when one finally asks
oneself what can actually be held (other than, say, the infamies
refutable in court, of a Vogt or a Tellering) against the party as a
whole, one can only conclude that what distinguishes it in this, the
nineteenth century, is its purity.

Can one escape the filth in bourgeois intercourse or Trape? But
in the latter, the filth has its natural habitat. Example: Sir
R. Carden, vide the Parliamentary Blue Book on corrupt election
practices. Example: Mr Klapka, concerning whose personal details
I am now very well informed. Kl. is not one whit better, and
possibly worse, than Bangya whom, by the by, he and Kossuth
have been sheltering to this day in Constantinople, despite his
heroic deeds in Circassia and despite my public denunciation,’

a F. Freiligrath, ‘An Josef Weydemeyer’, Zwei poetische Episteln. Epistel 1. -
b Either, or. - ¢ Report of Commiitee on the Operation and Effects of the Corrupt Practices
Prevention Act 1854. Evidence, Appendix and Index, London, 1860. - 4 K. Marx, ‘A
Traitor in Circassia’, ‘A Curious Piece of History’ and ‘Another Strange Chapter of
Modern History’.
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simply because he knew too much about them. As a person Bangya
was more decorous than Kl. He kept a mistress; for years Klapka
allowed a mistress to keep him, etc. The filth of a Tellering may
well be counterbalanced by the purity of a Beta, and even the
dissoluteness of a Reiff finds its equivalent in the chastity of a
Paula® who, at any rate, was not a member of the party, nor made
any pretence so to be.

The honourable meanness or mean honourableness of solvent
(and this subject only to highly ambiguous provisos, as every trade
crisis goes to show) morality is to my mind not one whit superior
to disrespectable meanness, from the taint of which neither the
first Christian communities, nor the Jacobin Club, nor our
erstwhile ‘League’ could remain entirely free. But bourgeois
intercourse accustoms one to the loss of one’s sense of respectable
meanness or mean respectability.

3. The special matter of Vogt and Blind.

Following the affidavits made by Vogele™ and Wiehe” (as
everyone knows, a false affidavit entails transportation) and
following the statements extracted in consequence thereof —from
Blind in the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung® and from Dr Schaible
(Daily Telegraph of 15 February)—the affair has resolved itself to
the extent that your testimony relating to this point has now been
rendered quite superfluous. As regards the Blind case, my only
problem is an embarras de richesses.

In this matter 1 approached Ernest Jones, with whom I had not
consorted for two years on account of his foolish, but now publicly
disavowed, attitude to Bright, Gilpin, etc.'""” 1 approached him
firstly because he, like many others, some of them quite unknown
to me, let me know spontaneously, immediately after the Telegraph
of 6 February had appeared, how profoundly indignant he was at
the infamous conduct of Vogt, who had had the effrontery to
assert that the Communist League had been founded and, from
1849 to 1852, had operated, with one end in view, namely to extort
money from compromised people in Germany by threatening to denounce
them; who traced back my ‘connection’ with the Neue Preussische
Zeitung to my ‘relationship by marriage’ to von Westphalen, etc.
(For my wife’s sake I was glad of this demonstration, since one can

* Paula-Krécher - P See this volume, pp. 31-32 and 37. - ¢ K. Blind, ‘Gegen Karl
Vogt’, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 44 (supplement), 13 February 1860. - 4 Ch. Schaible,
‘The Vogt Pamphlet. To the Editor of The Daily Telegrapk, The Daily Telegraph,
No. 1447, 15 February 1860.
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hardly expect ladies to grow a political thick skin; moreover, it is
precisely by catastrophes that they are accustomed to gauge
whether a friendship is in earnest or in jest); secondly, because I
was deterred by consideration, not for Blind, but for his wife and
children, from discussing his case, most invidious from «a legal point of
view, with a true-blue English lawyer. It was this same consideration
that deterred me from sending the English circular® to the
Morning Advertiser or to any English daily other than the
Telegraph.

What Jones told me was this:

‘You can go—and I myself will go with you—to the magistrate
and at once take out a warraxt for Blind’s arrest for conseiracy on
the strength of Wiehe’s affidavit. But bear in mind that this is a
criminal acmion and that, once it has been reported, you will have
no power to withdraw it

I then asked Jones (who can tell you this all over again; he lives
at 5 Cambridge Place, Kensington, W.) whether it wasn’t possible
for him to warn Blind and thus induce him to make a statement
that would include, not only everything he knew about Vogt, but
also an admission of the falsity of the depositions adduced by him
in the A. A. Z.°

Jones replied:

‘In conspiracy, and hence criminal, cases, any atlempt by the advocate
tO COMPOUND OR BRING ABOUT A COMPROMISE WOu]d ltself be punishable
under criminal law.’

Jones will act as my councie in the Telegraph affair.

After Jones’s pronouncements, I found myself in a most
awkward and embarrassing situation, for, on the one hand, I owed
it to my family to compel the Telegraph to recant; on the other, I
did not wish to take any steps that might be legally injurious to
Blind’s family. As an expedient I sent to Blind’s friend Louis Blanc
a copy of both affidavits and a letter, part of which reads (I
quote):

‘Not ror Mr BLIND WHO HAS RICHLY DESERVED IT, BUT FOR HIS FAMILY, I sHOULD
REGRET BEING FORCED TO LODGE A CRIMINAL ACTION AGAINST HIM.,

This last move evoked Schaible’s statement (roor pear), just as the
printed circular,” which I had sent to Blind immediately after it
came out, had evoked his anti-Vogt statement the self-same day in

a4 K. Marx, ‘Prosecution of the Augsburg Gazeute'. - » K. Blind’s statements in the
Allgemeine Zeitung, Nos. 313 and 345, 9 November and 11 December 1859.
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the A. A. Z Blind may have the hole-and-corner cunning of a
man from Baden, but he had forgotten that he was confronting
someone who would be ruthless the moment his own honour, or
that of his party, was at stake.

This is how matters stand: The action against The Daily
Telegraph has been instituted but my souiciror will delay matters
until after the case against the National-Zeitung has been decided.
Had Schaible told me frankly what he knew against Vogt (Schaible
is Blind’s rame eeenant, of course), it would have been wholly
unnecessary for me, after his statement had appeared in the
Telegraph of 15 February, to lodge the affidavits in London. In
Berlin, where it will have no legal repercusions on Blind, this will,
of course, be unavoidable. Whether Schaible was the real (literary)
author of the ‘flysheet’® or not does nothing to alter the facts
established in the affidavits, namecly that the depositions adduced
by Blind in the A. A. Z.© were false, that they were obtained by
means of a cowseiracy, that the flysheet had been printed in
Hollinger’s printshop, written in Blind’s hand and handed over by
him to Hollinger to be printed.

Distasteful though these matters certainly are, they are not
more distasteful than European history as a whole since 1851,
with all its achievements in the diplomatic, military and literary
fields.

‘For all that and all that’,* the philistine upon me will always be a
better device for us than I beneath the philistine’

I have frankly stated my views, with which I trust you are
largely in agreement. Moreover, I have tried to dispel the
misunderstanding arising out of the impression that by ‘party’ 1
meant a ‘League’ that expired eight years ago, or an editorial
board that was disbanded twelve years ago.' By party, I meant the
party in the broad historical sense.

With sincere assurances of my friendship,

Your
K. Marx

P. S. I have just had a letter from my wife, and should
accordingly be much obliged if you would draw £16 on the

4 K. Blind, ‘Gegen Karl Vogt, Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 44 (supplement),
13 February 1860. - P Zur Warnung - < See this volume, pp. 60-61. - ¢ An allusion to
Freiligrath’s poem ‘Trotz alledem!’ - ¢ Cf. Judges, 16:9 - [ This refers to the Neue
Rheinische Zeitung.
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Tribune on Saturday (the day after tomorrow) (not on Friday as I am
also including the Tuesday article). As usual, the plenipotentiary-
general® will pay you a call.

First published considerably abridged in Printed according to the original
Die Neue Zeit, Erganzungshefte, No. 12, X R . :
Stuttgart, 1911-1912, and in full in: Marx Published in English for the first

and Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, tme

Vol. XXV, Moscow, 1934
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MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 3 March 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Dear Lassalle,

I am replying by return, albeit briefly (though, I hope,
intelligibly), for I am up to my eyes in work connected with the
two lawsuits.

1. Ad vocem® My action against the ‘National-Zeitung’

You cannot give an opinion on the possible outcome of this
action since you don’t know, on the one hand, what papers I have
in my possession, or, on the other, how totally unfounded Vogt’s
lies are. But you ought to have favoured the attack from the very
outset. The second action is against the Daily Telegraph in London,
for having enlarged on and reproduced the articles in the N.-Zf
The Telegraph is the vilest daily paper in London, which is saying
a great deal, but it is assuredly not small It has the largest
circulation of all the London daily papers. Is specially subsidised
by Palmerston. This is the reason why it devotes so much space to
the mud slung at me.

I am enclosing my Knight of the Noble Consciousness herewith.

2. The ‘superbe gestus™ exists only in your imagination.""”® On the
other hand, Engels, Wolff and my wife, to whom I showed both

2 Presumably Helene Demuth. - P Re - ¢ ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’
and ‘Wie man radikale Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, Nos. 37 and 41, 22 and 25
January 1860. - 4 ‘haughty gesture’
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your letters, are unanimously agreed that they betray what looks
uncommonly like disconcertedness at Vogt's libellous piece®—
always assuming that tres faciunt collegium."

I sent you the note, etc., in order to demonstrate to you ad
oculos® how you would flare up when confronted with a piece of
infernal rubbish which has neither appeared in print nor ap-
proaches the level of Vogt's infamies.

Vogt has charged me with punishable racrs. In your letters I
could find no trace of indignation at this worthy citizen to whom,
for good measure, I am expected to make a public amende
honorable. Had Vogt known of your relations with me and been in
possession of Wiss’s note, he would have published it.as an
authentic document relating to the history of the ‘Brimstone
Gang.” To suggest that (other than in a letter to you®) I had
alluded anywhere—and in public—to Blind’s anti-Vogt stuff, is a
flippant allegation on your part. That V. is a Bonapartist agent has
become perfectly ctear to me from his book.! When Willich
(Techow merely wrote™ what Willich had prompted him to in
1850) slung mud of a similar kind at me in the United States in
1853,%5 Weydemeyer, Dr Jacobi and Cluss came out spontaneously,
even before I myself could have been notified of it, with a public
statement to the effect that the whole thing was an infamous piece
of slander." None of my friends in Germany had uttered a word
of protest against this extravagant attack; instead they wrote
admonishing me in patriarchal tones.

Hence it was wholly pertinent to use the note, etc., for the
purpose of putting you in my position, or rather of instilling in
you a correct, if somewhat less dispassionate and doctrinaire, view
of the same.

What I sent you was not a copy of Dr Wiss’s letter but the
original (i.e. the copy sent me from America). Dronke knows
nothing about the note.

9

There’s no question of a dossier.''” In a private letter to the

4 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - three
constitute a panel - ¢ See this volume, p. 58. - 4 right before your very eyes - ¢ See
Marx’s letters to Lassalle, one written not before 2 October and the other on
6 November 1859, present edition, Vol. 40, pp. 497-98, 518-22. - [ C. Vogt, Studien
zur gegenwdrtigen Lage Ewropas, Geneva and Berne, 1859. - ¥ A, Willich, ‘Doctor Karl
Marx und seine “Enthiillungen”’. In: Belletristisches Journal und New-Yorker
Criminal-Zeitung, Nos. 33 and 34, 28 October and 4 November 1853. -
h ] Weydemeyer, A. Cluss, A. Jacoby, ‘An die Redaction der New-Yorker Criminal-
Zeitung'. In: Belleiristisches Journal und New-Yorker Criminal-Zeitung, No. 37, 25
November 1853.
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recipient of Wiss’s letter,” I referred to you as one of the most
competent people in our party and an intimate friend of myself
and Engels."” Evidently the recipient, whom I may not name
without asking him firsi, showed Wiss the letter, or at any rate told
him what was in it. Hinc Wiss’s lacrimae” 1 have no connection
with Wiss and mnever have had. Earlier on, he had offered his
services to the Neue Rheinische Zeitung and submitted an article
which I threw into the waste paper basket unacknowledged. He has
published half a dozen idiotic articles against me in New York (in
Weitling’s Republik der Arbeiter).

I used the word ‘official’ allegations® simply by way of contrast
to Wiss’s ‘confidential’ letter. 1 can see now—I was writing in
haste—how very comical it was.

Who the Diisseldorf people® were 1 cannot say without
committing a breach of confidence. Suffice it to observe, however,
that I did not get in contact with them. As for the ingratitude of
the workers towards you, that’s a mere bagatelle compared with
what I have had to put up with. However it isn’t Levy, either as a
person or collectively. Becker,) Bermbach, Erhard, Uhlendorff (the
last name wunknown to me) have never written me a single line
either against you or about you.''

I did not ‘ally myself’ with Becker. The League’s Central
Authority had been transferred to Cologne.'”® It was there that the
final decisions had to be taken. (This ‘League’, like everything
connected with it, has long been a thing of the past. With two or
three exceptions, its documents are in America.) Becker was
enrolled there. Thus, he established liaison with me.

If you will now compare the aforementioned racrs with your
interpretation of the same, your particular aptitude for ‘mistrust’
will become plain to you.

As to my mistrust, I know (and you would oblige me by quoting
other instances) that, during my eighteen years of public activities,
there have been only two instances when this mental disorder
might, with some plausibility, have been imputed to me.

a. In the N. Rh. Zeit. I accepted a denunciation of Bakunin®
which had originated in Paris from two wholly unrelated sources.

a Adolf Cluss - P Hence Wiss’s tears (an allusion to a phrase in Terence’s Andria, 1, 1,
99). - ¢ G. Wiss, Die elementaren Richtungen der Zeit. In: Republik der Arbeiter, Nos.
12-22 and 24, 18 and 25 March; 1, 8, 15, 22 and 29 April; 6, 13, 20 and 27 May;
10 June 1854. -4 See this volume, p. b58.-¢ ibid. - f Hermann Becker -
g [A. H. Ewerbeck,] ‘Bakunin’, Neue Rheinische Zeitung, No. 36, 6 July 1848.
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One of these sources was a Polish acquaintance of mine. The other
was the Paris Lithographierte Korrespondenz, which meant that, even
were I not to print the denunciation, every newspaper editor
would have had it. A public accusation was in the interests of the
cause and in the interests of Bakunin. I had Bakunin’s counter-
statement in the Neue Oder-Zeitung reprinted without delay?
Koscielski, whom he had sent to Cologne as his second to call me
out, examined the letters from Paris, whereupon he was so
convinced that it had been my duty as an editor to publish the
denunciation (I printed it without comment, as though it were an
article) that he wrote by return of post and told Bakunin he could
no longer act as his second. K. came to be one of the N. Rh. Z’s
best and most useful friends. I printed a public apology to
Bakunin in the N. Rh. Z.> made it up with him personally in Berlin
(August 1848) and, later, broke a lance for him in the Tribune
(1851).'*

b. In the Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial several
people, particularly Schapper, O. Dietz and, to a lesser extent,
Willich, are treated unjustly; however,

Schapper himself (and Dietz in a letter to Schapper) has admitted
that in principle I was in the right so far as they were concerned;

that they got mixed up in acts of such folly that'only by a
miracle could they have expected to elude suspicion;

that Willich was out of his mind at the time and capable of any
move against me, indeed was guilty of infamous moves against me
and my friends.

Finally:

The remark: ‘As to my mistrust, at least you can’t complain about
that™

was a legitimate reply to your remark: (I quote from memory)
‘As regards those who know you, no harm will be done to you by
Vogt’s pamphlet, etc.” It was to this anodyne assurance 1 was
retorting.

As to the ‘great deal of truth’,® I must take another look at your
letter in London.

I trust that all points have now been settled.

Your
K. M.

2 M. Bakunin, ‘Erklirung’, Neue Rheinische Zeitung, No. 47 (supplement), 16 July
1848. - b Editorial statement in the column ‘Franzdsische Republik’, Neue Rheinische
Zeitung, No. 64, 3 August 1848. - ¢ See this volume, p. 58. - d jbid.

5558
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Just one thing more. You advised me to postpone the ‘action’ until
I had actually read Vogt's book.* Were the excerpts in the N.-Z.
not enough? Could anyone who was ‘integer vitae scelerisque purus®
wait any longer? ‘

Adolf Stahr—mightn’t he know the Telegraph's® correspondent?
At all events, the latter came out with some stuff after Mrs
Kinkel's death that smacked of Fanny Lewald.'*

First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene Briefe und Schriften, Bd. 1II, . . . .
Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Ifubhshed in English for the first
time
38

MARX TO ]J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

Manchester, 3 March 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

Sir,

I have received your letter of 22 February and would first
tender you my best thanks for your acceptance of my brief.

I fully endorse the manner in which you propose to handle the
case. Should the count I mention be dismissed on formal grounds,
its ventilation is, nevertheless, of the utmost importance, at any
rate so far as the public is concerned.

By way of a commentary on the enclosures sent herewith* and
as a final exposé of the facts at my disposal, I am taking the liberty
of making a few additional observations, but should, perhaps, first
point out that, since I have not got a copy of my letter to you of
13 February,® the numbering corresponds to that of the counts set
out in my last letter of 24 February.

ad IV. ad vocem® Cherval.

You will have seen from your copy of the Revelations Concerning
the Communist Trial in Cologne that Mr Karl Schapper was one of
the two leaders of the section of the ‘Communist League ®

2 C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - P ‘blameless in
life and clear of offence’ (Horace, Odes, 1, xxii, 1) - ¢ The Daily Telegraph - 4 See this
volume, p. 95. - © ibid., pp. 40-45. - f ibid., pp. 59-75. - 8 Re IV, Concerning
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inimical to me in 1850 whom I accused of wrongly construing the
purpose of the then still extant secret society which ought, I felt
sure, to disseminate opinions but steer clear of any kind of
conspiratorial activity, and that I therefore publicly accused Messrs
Schapper and Co., not only through the medium of counsel at the
Cologne court,” but also in the above-named pamphlet, afterwards
published in Switzerland and America, of having provided Stieber
and his agents with pretexts for their police machinations, thereby
bringing about the prosecution of my friends in Cologne.

While the admission of his errors before a magistrate could not
but be a blow to Mr Schapper’s self-esteem, 1 knew him to be a
man of honour (he was proof-reader to the Neue Rheinische
Zeitung in 1848/49), and 1 therefore wrote to him from here,
asking him to swear an affidavit to this effect before a London
magistrate.” He at once proved equal to my expectations. (See
Enclosure a) Translation: Enclosure f. 1))

Like myself, Mr Schapper has for many years eschewed all
political agitation.

Schapper’s affidavit also clears up the obscurities that may have
remained in respect of my relations with the wretched Cherval,
regarding which, by the by, the National-Zeitung could not have
been in doubt had they done no more than skim through the reports,
published in all the leading Prussian papers, of the public proceedings
at the communist trial in Cologne (October and November 1852).
It was their bounden duty to do so before making such
calumnious allegations against me. It was all the more their
bounden duty in as much as they themselves repeatedly referred to
the said trial in their leading articles. Schapper’s affidavit proves
that Cherval was never connected with me, but only with my then
opponents. As regards Cherval, I have this to add:

From an old letter, which I wrote to Friedrich Engels in
Manchester (28 October 1852) and which he has kept, I would cite
the following passage:

“That Cherval was a police spy is borne out by the following:

‘Firstly, his miraculous escape from prison in Paris immediately
after sentence; ‘

‘Secondly, his unmolested stay in London, although a common
criminal;

“Thirdly, Mr de Rémusat (I have authorised Schneider II to
name him if necessary) tells me that Cherval offered him his
services as agent to the Princes of Orleans. Thereupon, he wrote

+ Karl Schneider 11 - b See this volume, p. 73.

5*



94 38. Marx to ]J. M. Weber. 3 March 1860

to Paris and was sent the following documents (of which a copy
was shown me) from which it emerges that Cherval was first a
Prussian police spy and is now a Bonapartist one.”*

The contents of the passage cited above will be corroborated by
the lawyer, Mr Schneider II from Cologne, should you consider it
necessary to summon him to Berlin as a witness. The Monsieur de
Rémusat mentioned in the excerpt from the letter to Engels was, if
I am not mistaken, a minister under Louis Philippe, or at any rate
one of the most outstanding deputies of Louis Philippe’s day, and
one of the most eminent writers of the so-called doctrinaire party
of that time.

ad 11 (ad vocem funds for the journal Volk)

I am sending vou, Enclosure b (translation Enclosure f, 2), my own
affidavit concerning the source of the money placed at the VolKs
disposal by me.'®

Since I have to stay in Manchester for some time, as my legal adviser
in the libel action against the London Daily Telegraph lives up here, 1
had to swear the affidavit before a Manchester Jusrice or e Peace. In
accordance with English law, therefore, it bears no stamp.

ad I, I have nothing further to add.

ad III, I would remark:

As regards my ‘connection’ with the ‘secret police’, I could have my
brother-in-law, the erstwhile Prussian Minister, von Westphalen,
called as a witness. However, my wife, his sister, wishes to avoid this
family scandal if it is at all possible to do so. That is something I must
leave entirely to your discretion.

Enclosure b) (translation: Enclosure f, 3) contains an affidavit by
G. Miiller, chairman of the public German ‘Workers’ Educational
Society’ in London.” It is the only working men’s association (save for
the secret society, the ‘Communist League’ already mentioned, which
was disbanded at my behest in November 1852) to which I be-
longed in London since my arrival there (September or August
1849) until my resignation from the same (mid-September 1850)
which was publicly announced in various German papers ® (including
the then still extant Londoner Deutsche Zeitung®). It is, in fact, the only
German working men’s association with which 1 have had anything
whatever to do during my time of residence in London. Now, at its
anniversary banquet (6 February 1860, the very day the National-
Zeitung's articles were reproduced in the London newspaper, the

# See present edition, Vol. 39, p. 222. - b K. Marx and F. Engels, [Statement on
Resignation from the German Workers’ Educational Society in London], - ¢ Deutsche-
Londoner Zeitung
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Daily Telegraph) that same association voted a unanimous resolution
backing me and censuring Vogt, although I had kept aloof from it
for ten years.

Its president had this resolution drawn up in legal form in
London, as you will see from the enclosure.

ad V. I enclose herewith (under Enclosure d) the article the Daily
Telegraph paraphrased from the National-Zeitung; likewise the reply
from the Daily Telegraph's (Berlin) correspondent in response to my
complaint (under Enclosure ¢), of which I provided a translation in
my letter of 24 February.?

I now consider it to be quite unnecessary for the name of my friend
Ferdinand Freiligrath to be mentioned at all during the course of the
lawsuit, with the sole exception of the letter to F. Engels dated
19 November 1852, enclosed in my letter to you of 24 February.” 1
consider that letter essential if the facts are to be established in court.

In addition to the supplementary information which you will find
below, this letter contains the following enclosures:

Enclosure a) Schapper’s affidavit;, b) my own affidavig;
¢y G. Miller’s affidavit; d) Daily Telegraph of 6 February, p. 5,
column 1, article headed ‘Tue JournaListic AuxiLiaries oF AusTriA"; €)
Daily Telegraph of 13 February, p. 2, column 6, headed Germany.
(FrROM OUR OWN CORRESPONDENT), FRANKFORT oN THE Mamng, Fesr. 8; 1)
translation of the three affidavits; g) The Knight of the Noble
Consciousness, published in New York, December 1853. h) Letter from
Flocon, member of the Provisional Government, Paris, 1 March
1848°<; i) letter from Lelewel, Brussels, 10 February 1860¢; k) 1. letter
from L. Jottrand, Brussels, 19 May 1849° and 2. letter from the
same, Brussels, 25 February 1848; 1) 1 copy of Zwei politische Prozesse.
Verhandelt vor den Februar-Assisen in Koln, Cologne 1849 '*°; m) letter
from Ernest Jones. London, 11 February 1860f; n) letter from the
Sheffield Foreign Affairs Committee,” 6 May 1860, Sheffield?; o)
letters from David Urquhart. Glasgow. December 9, 1854; p)
translations of enclosures m), n), and o).

The only document that I still have to send you is a letter from
the editor of the New-York Tribune"—which I expect to receive any
day now-—concerning my relations, from mid-1851 until the
present, with this, the leading American English newspaper.’

I remain, Sir, your very obedient Servant,

Dr Karl Marx
2 See this volume, p. 75.- b ibid., pp. 59, 73 and 83. - < See Herr Vogt, present

edition, Vol. 17, p. 320.-d ibid., p. 322.-¢ ibid., pp. 320-21.-1 ibid., p.
323. - 8 ibid., p. 315. - I Charies Dana - i See Vol. 17, pp. 323-24.
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Supplementary Information

Needless to say, the only points in Vogt’s lampoon which I shall
touch on in the action against the National-Zeitung are those
actually incorporated by that newspaper in its leader, whether
simply as they stood, or in the shape of comments; also, in regard
to the National-Zeitung, only such points as are punishable by law.
All else must be kept in reserve against such time as, the
proceedings being concluded, I can reply to Vogt in writing.*

Hence the only purpose of this supplementary information is
the following:

1. To provide some additional observations on those passages in
the National-Zeitung which, though quite irrelevant to the actual
case for the prosecution, might possibly be of use in replying to
defence counsel.

2. Being myself the son of a lawyer (the late Justizrat Heinrich
Marx of Trier, for many years bdtonnier of the barreau’ there,
noted for his integrity of character no less than for legal ability), I
know how important it is for a conscientious lawyer to be quite
clear about his client’s character. In addition, you will perceive that
certain points given in ad 2 might be used to advantage during the
proceedings.

ad 1) The passage from the National-Zeitung, quoted under 111
in my letter of 24 February® (No.37 of the National-Zeitung,
column 2, line 65 from the top et seq), goes on:

‘To fill in the picture Vogt publishes among other documents a long letter by
Techow, a former lieutenant, dated August 26, 1850,4 in which’, etc.

Now for a start there is nothing, not a single line, in that
letter —though anyone who had read only the Nat.-Zeit. and not
Vogt’s lampoon® might easily be tempted to think there was—
about what the Nat.-Zeit., aping Vogt and in concert with him, had
just before maintained, i.e. ‘the compromising of people at home in
Germany in order to extort money from them by threats of
denunciation’, or ‘connections with the secret police in France and
Germany’, and so forth.

What Techow really says, amounts to no more than this: that he
went drinking with myself, Engels and Schramm (now dead,
then — 1850— manager of the Revue' brought out by Engels and

4 Marx means his Herr Vogt. - b President of the Bar - ¢ See this volume, p.
69. - 4 See also Marx’s Herr Vogt. present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 75-99. - ¢ Mein Prozess
gegen die Aligemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - I Neue Rheinische Zeitung. Politisch-
Gkonomische Revue
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me in Hamburg), and took in deadly earnest the pranks we played
upon him while he sought to impress us as an exceedingly serious
and self-important emissary from a secret society in Switzerland.'?’
This applies to the theoretical part of his letter, notably the account
of his conversation with us (it never took place in that form) which
evinces the strangest misapprehensions and the most comical
misrepresentations. No one, I assume, would expect me, a man
who, for over fifteen years, has been publishing his views in
German, French and English, to concern myself seriously with an
account of my theory written by an ex-lieutenant who has spent no
more than a few hours of his whole life in my company and at a
wine tavern at that. Mr Techow’s deviousness and mauvaise foi* are
clearly discernible from the fact that he had earlier written to me
and Engels from Switzerland, attacking Willich (see Enclosure g: The
Knight of the Noble Consciousness, pp. 3-4°), while later, in his letter,
which was never published, he did not hesitate to disseminate
Willich’s delusions (at that time Willich was actuated by the most
absurd delusions about the importance of his own person and the
snares laid for him by imaginary rivals) and his slanderous
allegations against myself, although the tiniest glimmer of common
sense would have told him that a few days spent in London
consorting exclusively with those who were then our enemies did
not entitle him to pronounce a verdict one way or the other.

So far, I have discussed only what one might describe as the
theoretical part of Techow’s letter (reproduced in Vogt‘—whether
tampered with or not I can’t, of course, say—on pp. 142 et seq.).

I now come to the most incriminating part of the letter, in which
he speaks of the duel between my friend Conrad Schramm, now
dead, and Willich. Had the National-Zeitung reprinted the letter, I
would have enclosed one from Schramm, written long after the
duel, in which he reproached me with letting myself be influenced
by Willich because 1 had advised him [Schramm], albeit vainly, not
to fight.

Here I need do no more than refer you to Enclosure g, pp. 5-9.
(When this appeared in New York in December 1853 they, Willich
and C. Schramm, were both in America.)

As regards the pamphlet (Enclosure g), I consider it necessary to
‘tell you something about how it came into being.

# bad faith - P See present edition, Vol. 12, pp. 485-87. - ¢ Mein Prozess gegen die
Allgemeine Zeitung - ¢ K. Marx, The Knight of the Noble Consciousness, present edition,
Vol. 12, pp. 489-96.
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In December 1852, just a few weeks after the end of the
communist trial in Cologne, 1 sent the ms. of my Revelations
concerning that trial to Basle—to Schabelitz, the publisher.
Having delayed publication for months, S. made such blunders
over dispatching it that the entire consignment destined for
Germany was confiscated at the Baden border. In the event, I sent
the ms. to the United States of North America where it appeared
in Boston in March 1853, first in serial form in the Neu-England-
Zeitung, and then as a pamphlet in its own right.

The appearance of the Revelations in America coincided with
that of Mr Willich himself who, together with Kinkel, had gone
there to drum up a revolutionary loan® since, according to the view
published by Kinkel in the German American papers at the time,
‘revolutions are as easily made as railroads’, always provided ‘the
necessary cash’ is in hand.” It was this kind of balderdash against
which I took a decided stand. After the appearance of the
Revelations in America, Willich allowed at least four months to
clapse before publishing a rejoinder in the New York Criminal-
Zeitung.”

It contained the self-same calumnies and balderdash as
Techow’s letter (indeed, in his letter sent to Switzerland in 1850,
Techow was merely repeating what Willich had whispered in his
ear when he was in London, and what Willich was to publish in
New York in 1853). It was all the more essential that 1 should
answer, in that my articles in the New-York Tribune had earned me
a publicly recognised position in the English-American Press.
Meanwhile, I had decided that 1 should deal with the matter
pertinently if in a jocular vein, as indeed I did in The Knight of the
Noble Consciousness. Needless to say, Techow could have replied, as
could Willich. However, they deemed it wiser to remain silent and
not to break that silence in the seven years since that time.

What insidious inanity, therefore, on the part of the National-
Zeitung (intent only on avenging itself for the criticism I bestowed
on it in the Neue Rheinische Zeitung in 1848/49¢), to foist on the
public as authentic truth tittle-tattle that had long since been publicly
refuted.

4 G. Kinkel, ‘Denkschrift iiber das deutsche Nationalanlehn zur Forderung der
Revolution’, New-Yorker Staats-Zeitung, 2 March 1852. - b A. Willich, ‘Doctor Karl
Marx und seine “Enthiilllungen”’, Belletristisches Journal und New-Yorker Criminal-
Zeutung, Nos. 33 and 34, 28 October and 4 November 1853. - < This presumably
refers to the following articles: K. Marx, “The Berlin National-Zeitung to the Primary
Electors’, K. Marx and F. Engels, ‘Speech from the Throne’, and F. Engels, “The
Debate on the Law on Posters’.



38. Marx to J. M. Weber. 3 March 1860 99

When Vogt's book arrived in London, by the by, I sent it with
an accompanying letter to Mr Techow in Australia and shall no
doubt be able to place his reply before the public in four months’
time.

Incidentally, the following account of how the letter came to be
published is typical of Vogt.

For in a letter from Paris dated 6 February 1860 Schily,
lawyer, writes:

‘This letter’ (i. e. Techow’s) ‘passed through different hands before reaching
mine, where it remained unti}, following my expulsion from Switzerland (summer
of 1851), it came into the possession of Vogt via Ranickel (a working man who had
connections with Willich). For I had been unable to put my papers in order, having
been picked up quite unexpectedly, without prior notification or an expulsion
order, in the streets of Geneva, where I had been sent into forced residence, and
forcibly conveyed wvia sundry lock-ups to Basle, whence 1 was sent on my way. My
papers were put in order for me by friends and in this Ranickel had a hand, which
is how he came into possession of that document. I later wrote to Ranickel from
London, asking for the document, but did not get it. As a man specially trusted by
Willich (he once shared his lodgings at Besan¢on), he may well have had other
intentions or instructions.... Ranickel is now said to have a highly successful
établissement as a book-binder, and to number among his clientéle the gouvernement
of Geneva (the head of which is Fazy, Vogt’s patron). Not content with idolising
Willich, Ranickel acted as Vogt's informer.

Such is the honest manner in which Mr Vogt acquired Techow’s
letter.

I would ask you not to mention Schily’s name, should this point
be raised, since Vogt, qua Bonapartist agent, is powerful enough
to have Schily banished from France.

I need say nothing further on this score save that, no sooner
had Willich published (in 1853)° the balderdash now reproduced in
Techow’s letter, than there instantly—before, indeed, I could
possibly have been notified in England—appeared in the self-same
New-Yorker Criminal-Zeitung, a devastating riposte” written by
Joseph Weydemeyer (former Prussian Lieutenant of artillery,
subsequently co-editor of the Frankfurt Neue Deutsche Zeitung,
presently Dererv-Survivor in the State of Iowa®) who was in
Frankfurt am Main and a member of the ‘Communist League’
throughout the time of the rift in London and the Communist
trial in Cologne. The said statement was also signed by

2 in his article ‘Doctor Karl Marx and seine “Enthillungen”’ - ]J. Weydemeyer,
A. Cluss, A. Jacoby, ‘An die Redaction der New-Yorker Criminal-Zeitung.
7. November 1853, Belletristisches Journal und New-Yorker Criminal-Zeitung, No. 37,
25 November 1853. - ¢ See this volume, pp. 115-16.
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Dr A. Jacobi, now a general practitioner in New York, who was
himself among the accused at Cologne, but was acquitted.

As regards the following passage, No. 37 of the National-Zeitung,
column II, line 31 from top et seq.:

‘They’ (i.e. myself and co.) ‘continued the work of the Rheinische Zeitung among
the refugees. In 1849 this paper had counselled against any participation in the movement
and had also constantly attacked all the members of Parliament, etc.’

allow me to make the following observations:

It is perfectly correct that, unlike the National-Zeitung, the Neue
Rh. Zeit. never sought to make a milch cow of the revolution;
rather that paper was kept on its feet only at considerable financial
sacrifice and at great personal risk to myself, until such time as
suppressed by the Prussian government. The absurd allegation,
particularly so when coming from the National-Zeitung, that ‘in
1849 the Neue Rh. Zeit. had counselled against any participation in
the movement’, is best refuted in the columns of the paper itself.
As to the manner in which I conducted myself during the
revolution, I would refer you to Enclosure 1) (Zwei politische
Prozesse etc.).

Similarly, it is true that the Neue Rhein. Zeit. always dealt with
Mr Vogt and the other windbags of the Frankfurt National
Assembly ironically and in accordance with their deserts. Come to
that, as he himself admits in his pamphlet, by 1846 Vogt was
already a naturalised Swiss citizen, i.e. a national of a foreign state,
and hence should have had absolutely no say in Germany. That
the Neue Rhein. Zeit. ‘attacked all’ the members of Parliament is
incorrect. It was on the most amicable terms with many members
on the extreme Left. The extent to which even Vogt and Co.
sought to curry favour with the newspaper almost up to the time
of its demise is plainly evident if only from the fact that, when
they founded the March Association,'” they sent out a circular
throughout the length and breadth of Germany in which the
public was strongly recommended to subscribe to ‘good’ and ‘the
best’ newspapers, the ‘good’ being accorded one asterisk and ‘the
best’” two. The Neue Rhein. Zeit. was honoured with ‘two
asterisks’.® No sooner had this scrap of paper come into my hands
than I wrote a short leader in the Neue Rhein. Zeit. (I believe it
was an issue in March 1849) protesting against this unsolicited
patronage on the part of people whom I esteemed neither
for their personal character nor for their political intelligence.”

“ See also Marx’s Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, p. 104. - b K. Marx, “The March
Association’.



38. Marx to ]. M. Weber. 3 March 1860 101

ad 2) In 1842 (at the age of twenty-four) I was editor-in-chief of
the old Rheinische Zeitung which, subject first to single, and then to
double censorship, ended up by being compulsorily closed down by
the Prussian government (spring, 1843). One of the men with
whom I was working at the time was Mr Camphausen, Prime
Minister of Prussia after the March revolution. The old Rhein. Zeit.
can be said beyond all doubt to have disrupted the power of the
censorship in Prussia. (I would observe in confidence—not, of
course, for public consumption—that after the ‘Rhein. Zeit.” had been
closed down, overtures were made to me by the Prussian
government through the medium of Geheimer Revisionsrat [Privy
Auditor Councillor] Esser, a friend of my father’s. Esser, I should
explain, was taking the waters with me at Kreuznach, where I
married my present wife. After this communication, 1 left Prussia
for Paris.)

In Paris I published the Deutsch-Franzdsische Jahrbiicher in
company with Friedrich Engels, Georg Herwegh, Heinrich Heine,
and Arnold Ruge. (I later broke with Herwegh and Ruge.) At the
end of 1844 1 was expelled from Paris (by Guizot) at the
instigation of the Prussian Embassy there and left for Belgium.'®
The standing I enjoyed amongst French radicals during my stay in
Paris can best be gauged from Enclosure h), a letter from Flocon of
I March 1848, recalling me to France in the name of the
Provisional Government, and annulling Guizot’s expulsion order.
(In confidence: While in Paris in the summer of 1844, after the
bankruptcy of the publisher (Julius Frobel) of the Deutsch-Franzés.
Jahrbiicher, 1 received from Dr Claessen, on behalf of Camphausen
and other Rhein. Zeit. shareholders, a letter—enclosing 1,000
talers—describing my services in such glowing colours that, for
this very reason, 1 shall not enclose it.)

I lived in Brussels from the beginning of 1845 to the beginning
of March 1848, when I was again expelled and returned to France
on the strength of Flocon’s letter. In Brussels, besides unpaid
contributions to sundry radical newspapers in Paris and Brussels, I
wrote the Critique of Critical Criticism in collaboration with
Fr. Engels (a book about philosophy, published by Riitten, Frank-
Afurt am Main, 1845),* Misére de la Philosophie (book on economics,
published by Vogler in Brussels and by Frank in Paris in 1847),
Discours sur le libre échange (Brussels 1848),° a work in two volumes
on latter-day German philosophy and socialism® (not published;
4 The Holy Family, or Critique of Critical Criticism - P The Poverty of Philosophy -
¢ ‘Speech on the Question of Free Trade’ - 4 K. Marx and F. Engels, The German
Ideology.
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see my preface to A Contribution to the Critique of Political Economy,
F. Duncker, Berlin 1859), and numerous pamphlets.'*® During the
whole of my stay in Brussels I gave unpaid lectures on ‘political
economy’ at the Brussels German Workers’ Educational Society."”’
These were about to appear in book form when publication was
interrupted by the February Revolution."*? Typical of my standing
among the radicals (of very varying complexions) in Brussels is the
fact that, in the public société internationale® I was committee
member for the Germans, Lelewel (an old man of eighty, veteran
of the Polish Revolution of 1830/31 and learned historian) for the
Poles, Imbert (later gouverneur of the Tuileries in Paris) for the
French, and Jottrand, a Brussels lawyer, former member of the
Constituent Assembly'®® and leader of the Belgian radicals, for the
Belgians, who was also chairman. From the two letters written to
me by Jottrand, now an old man (Enclosures k, 1, and k, 2), as also
from Lelewel’s letter (Enclosure i), you will see what my
relationship with these gentlemen was during my stay in Brussels.
Jottrand’s letter (Enclosure k, 2) was written after a dispute I had
had with him at a public meeting on 22 February 1848, following
which T had notified him of my resignation from the société
internationale!** He wrote me the second letter, when I founded
the Neue Rhein. Zeitung in Cologne.

My second period of residence in Paris lasted from March until
the end of May 1848.'" (In confidence: Flocon offered to help
myself and Engels finance the founding of the N. Rh. Z. We
refused because, as Germans, we did not wish to take subsidies
from a French government, even if friendly.)

From May 1848 until the end of May 1849 I was editor of the
Neue Rh. Zeit. in Cologne. From Enclosure [) you will see that I was
elected one of the three chairmen of the Rhenish-Westphalian
democrats.'*® (In confidence: When 1 arrived in Cologne, 1 was
invited by a friend of Camphausen’s to go to him in Berlin. I
disregarded the insinuation.)

In Paris from June 1849 tll August 1849. Expelled under
Bonaparte’s presidency.

From the end of 1849"" until now, 1860, in London. Publications:
Revue der Neuen Rh. Zeitung® in Hamburg, 1850, The Eighteenth
Brumaire of Louis Bonaparte (in New York, 1852), Diplomatic
Revelations of the 18th Century (London, 1856), Critique of Political
Economy, Ist instalment, Duncker, Berlin, 1859, etc. Contributor to
the New-York Tribune from 1851 up till the present. For as long as I

a Neue Rheinische Zeitung. Politisch-6konomische Revue
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remained a member of the German Workers’ Society® (end of 1849 to
September 1850) I gave unpaid lectures.

From Enclosure o (it is confidential) you will see how I came to
make David Urquharts acquaintance. From that time onwards I
have contributed to his Free Press. I agree with him in matters of
foreign policy (opposition to Russia and Bonapartism), but not of
internal policy, in which I support the Chartist Party (which opposes
him). For 6 years now I have contributed gratis to the latter’s
publications (in particular the People’s Paper). (See Enclosure m.)

My ant-Palmerston articles® written for the New-York Tribune in
1853, have been repeatedly reprinted in pamphlet form in
England and Scotland, to the tune of 15-20,000 copies.

You will see from Enclosure n, which was sent me in 1856 at the
behest of the Sheffield club by the secretary of one of the
Urquhartite clubs, which are concerned solely with diplomacy, how
I stand with the Urquhartites, despite our differences over internal
policy.

The letter in Enclosure n stems from Ernest Jones, BARRISTER-AT-LAW
in London, acknowledged leader of the Chartist Party, also
recognised poet.

Translations of Enclosures o, n, and m will be found in Enclo-
sure p.

A typical example of the kind of tittle-tattle about me
disseminated by certain German quarters in London will be found
in the letter from my friend Steffen® (formerly Prussian lieutenant
and teacher at the Divisional School, at present in Boston) quoted
on p. 14 of Enclosure g, “The Knight of the Noble Consciousness’.

Despite ten years of unremitting attacks on myself, I have never
burdened the German public with a single word of my life story.
Vis-a-vis my lawyer, in a case such as the present one, I considered
it indispensable.

As regards the Italian war,*® 1 should add that my views on the
subject are absolutely in accord with those expressed by my friend
Fr. Engels in the well known pamphlet Po and Rhine, published
by Fr. Duncker in Berlin in 1859. The manuscript of the said
work was sent to me by Engels before it was dispatched to
Berlin.

We are in favour of a free and independent Italy and in 1848
said as much in the Neue Rh. Zeit., in terms more forthright than any
other German paper, and the same goes for Hungary and Poland.
But we do not wish Bonaparte (in collusion with Russia) to make

4 Lord Palmerston - » See present edition, Vol. 12, pp. 504-05.
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Italian freedom or the question of any other nationality a pretext
for ruining Germany.

First published abridged in Archiv fiir die Printed according to the original
Geschichte des Sozialismus und der Arbeiter- . . . : .
bewegung, Zehnter Jahrgang, Leipzig, ffubllshed in English for the first
1922, and in full in: Marx and Engels, tme

Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV,

Moscow, 1934 :

39
MARX TO COLLET DOBSON COLLET '*

IN LONDON

Manchester, 7 March 1860
6 Thorncdliffe Grove, Oxford Road

My dear Sir,

Having been absent from here for a few days, I was prevented
answering your letter immediately.

As to the Printers’ Bill,’” which I had taken the liberty to ask
you for in a letter addressed to you on the 6th of February* (f I
am not mistaken), you have forgotten transmitting it to me. Pray,
send it to Mrs Marx.

As to Schaible’s declaration (extorted by my proceedings against
Blind %), it will be sufficient to remark:

1-st) Whether Blind be the ‘literary’ author of the fly-sheet, is a
question I have not to deal with. He is the author in the legal
sense of the word.

Schaible’s declaration (which ‘circumstances’, he says in the
Telegraph,” prevented him for three months from making, but
which 1 extorted in no time by sending to Louis Blanc a copy of
the two Affidavits® at the Bowstreet Police-Court) proves much
against Vogt. It proves nothing for Blind. It does not exculpate
him in any respect. He has written (if not drawn up) the
manuscript; he has printed it in Hollinger’s office; he paid
Hollinger’s Printer’s Bill; he made two false declarations in the
Augsburg Gazette?; he and Hollinger entered into conspiracy
against me in order to induce (and with what success you know)

2 See this volume, p. 49.- P The Duily Telegraph - ¢ See this volume, pp. 31-32 and
37. - ¢ Blind’s statements in the Allgemeine Zeitung, No. 313, 9 November 1859 and
No. 345 (supplement), 11 December 1859.
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the compositor Wiehe to give them false evidence. This is not all.
Blind, as you know from the letter he addressed in September to
Liebknecht, had the cool impudence of stating that he had nothing
at all to do with the whole affair. Lastly, all the successive steps
now taken by him and Schaible were forced upon him by the
menace suspended over his head for a criminal action for
‘conspiracy’.

2) Dr Schaible may, for aught I know, have allowed himself to
be made Blind’s scape-goat. He, as I know, belongs so to say to the
household furniture of Blind’s.

3) The principal political end I aimed at, has been obtained by
Schaible’s declaration. It makes void and annuls the proceedings at
Augsburg,”**—mere mock proceedings; there being present no
witnesses, no accuser, no (real) accused, and, in point of fact, no
tribunal, since Vogt, in his wisdom, had appealed not to that
description of Bavarian tribunal which, according to the Bavarian
law, had to decide on the case. In respect to this same Vogt, it will
suffice to say that at Geneva, his own place of residence, a Swiss
paper (Die Neue Schweizer Zeitung, The New Swiss Gazette, in its
number of November 12, 1859) has declared to have indignantly
repulsed Vogt’s attempt at bribing it with French money.* That
same paper, in a leading article, called upon Vogt to take judicial
proceedings against itself, same way as I, in a declaration signed
with my name, and published in the Augsburg Gazette and the
Hamburg ‘Reform’, had called upon him to sue the Volk at
London.'! Vogt, although a Genevese Stinderath and, therefore,
a public servant, rested mute to these appeals, while enlisting the
favour of the stupid German Liberals by the Augsburg comedy, or
rather farce.

You will be so kind to consider this letter as confidential, since the
lawyers who carry on my actions for libel at Berlin and London,
think it fit that, except on the most urgent emergency, 1 should
not break my silence until after the judicial proceedings have been
closed.

Yours faithfully ;
K. Marx
First published in: Marx and Engels, Reproduced from the copy in

Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, Marx’s notebook

M , 1934 . . .
oscow Published in English for the first

time

2 See also Marx’s Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, p. 187. - P member of the
Council of Cantons (the Second Chamber of the Swiss Parliament)
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40
MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE'#

IN PARIS

Manchester, 13 March 1860
6 Thorndliffe Grove, Oxford Road

My dear Sir,

1 have not yet received your book® Otherwise I should have
given a compte rendu® of it in the New-York Tribune.

I sent you the article against Kossuth© on the express condition of
its being returned to me. I attach not the least importance to that
article, but I want it for specific purpose.

I have instituted two actions for libel at Berlin and London
against newspapers® which had the impudence of reprinting
extracts from Vogt's libel.© I observed, for 10 years, a strict silence
in the face of the most reckless calumnies, but I know that now the
moment has arrived of publicly exposing them.

My friend from whose house I am addressing these lines to you
may perhaps (he is a merchant) become useful to you. Send him a
catalogue (Mr Frederick Engels, care of Messrs Ermen and Engels,
Manchester) of your wines. But do not use such fellows as
Stoffregen for your agents.

Yours truly
Williams *

In a few days I shall return to London.

First published in: Marx and Engels,
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV,
Moscow, 1934. First published in the
language of the original (English) in
Szazadok, Nos. 4-6, Budapest, 1959

2 B. Szemere, La Question hongroise (1848-1860), Paris, 1860. See also this volume,
p. 6. - b review - ¢ K. Marx, ‘Kossuth and Louis Napoleon’. See aiso this volume,
p. 12. - 4 National-Zeitung and The Daily Telegraph - ¢ C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen
die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - I A. Williams, an alias used by Marx in some
of his letters.
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41
MARX TO LUCIEN JOTTRAND

IN BRUSSELS

Manchester, 13 March 1860
6 Thorncliffe Grove, Oxford Road

My dear Sir,

You will excuse me for having not before acknowledged the
receipt of the letter you had the kindness to address me from
Bruxelles. I thank you for that letter, although I shall abstain from
using it in any way. Should I think it opportune laying before the
public any official documents, relating to my past life, the
Bruxelles episode—as far as it refers to my relations with the Belgian
radicals—would be best characterised by two letters of yours (d.d. 25
févr. 1848* and 19 mai 1848 *) which I have now found among my
papers.

Since you belong to the American school of Republicans (whose
opinions I do only accept in regard to some political questions), it
may interest you to know that, for about 3 years, I am one of the
principal writers in the New-York Tribune, the first Anglo-American
paper. I have improved this connexion for giving M. Spilthoorn, on
his passage through London, letters of recommendation for the
U. St. Should you, on any occasion, want to publish anything—
relating to the affairs of your country—in the Tribune, you may rely
on my willingness of obliging you.

The shameless attacks (on behalf of which I have instituted two
actions for libel, one at Berlin, one at London) recently made
against me, proceed all from the Bonapartist camp. Monsieur
Louis Bonaparte, through the instrumentality of M. Mocquard, his
secrétaire intime, has publicly thanked the New-York Times for
having done its best (and this its ‘best’ was of a very shabby
description) to counteract my New-York Tribune strictures (since
1852) of the Lesser Empire.'*

I have the honour
To be your humble servant
K. Marx
I am here at Manchester for a few days only. My address is: 9,
Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park, Haverstock Hill, London.

a See this volume, p. 102. - » Marx quotes the lettér in Herr Vogt, present edition,
Vol. 17, pp. 320-21.
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If you read German books, 1 shall give me the pleasure of
sending you a copy of the first part of my “Kritik der Politischen
Oeconomie” being now in progress of publication at Berlin.

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English) and in Russian, in
Voprosy istorii KPSS, No. 4, Moscow, 1958

42
ENGELS TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN
Manchester, 15 March? 1860

Dear Lassalle,

Very many thanks for the trouble you have been to with
Duncker in connection with my pamphlet.” I would have agreed to
the arrangement of my being named had not another publisher¢
accepted it in the meantime (when this reaches you, the thing will
probably be out) and were I not determined that the ‘author of Po
and Rhine’ should first carve out a place for himself in military
literature before making his official entry (i.e. on the title page) as
a civilian before the lieutenants. When you say that you would be
sure to convince us and hence believe it would be in our own
interests not to commit ourselves by name to the views we have held
so far in regard to the Italian business, your argument is, no doubt,
of crucial value subjectively speaking; similarly we can assure you that
we are just as sure of our ability to convince you, the more so
since our views are based on a careful study of diplomatic material
which, at least on certain points, is available in pretty complete
form to the public in London, as it surely is not to the public in
Berlin (where, indeed, it does not for the most part exist at
all).

Marx got your letter the day before yesterday and will be
answering it.® In the meantime I enclose the Knight of the Noble
Consciousness,” previously forgotten.'

2 A slip of the pen in the original: February. - » F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the
Rhine. - < G. Behrend - 4 See this volume, pp. 116-17.- ¢ by Marx - f See this
volume, p. 88.



42. Engels to Ferdinand Lassalle. 15 March 1860 109

Apropos. A few days ago we got a letter from Nothjung. After
his release, the poor devil was declared to have forfeited his right
of domicile in Miilheim ‘by reason of his many-year-long ab-
sence’ (I11),"** and has been forbidden to show his face within five
miles of Cologne. He has become a photographer in Breslau ® where,
after a great deal of trouble, he has obtained a resident’s permit.
Now he has got to pay an entry fee, a household fee, and
umpteen others such as are only to be found in a Prussian
dictionary. This, as you can imagine, the poor chap is in no
position to do after his long spell in prison which, to make matters
worse, has rendered him homeless (in what sort of country can
such things happen!) and so odious are the laws still obtaining
there that he cannot exist unless he gets all this business settled.
Mightn’t it be possible to do something for him over there? Such a
thing would have been unheard of in the Rhine Province before
1848, and even the bourgeois who helped to impose such shocking
laws on us ought to help poor devils of this kind. Homeless
because of a many-year-long absence in a Prussian fortress— just
try telling that to an Englishman! His address is P. Nothjung,
Photographer, Zwingergasse No. 7, in the Baths. With the
connections you have in Breslau, it should be easy for you to do
something for him. Our ex-tailor, by the way, seems to have
acquired quite a tidy education at his fortress-university, and
writes quite civilised letters.

Just now I'm writing trivia about the reorganisation of the army in
Prussia and have offered these to Duncker.

Tout a vous®

F. Engels

Before 1 forget. Marx has written to red Wolff,'"*® of whom,
however, we haven't heard for years In the meantime Vogt,
accompanied by the homme entretenu® and swinoLer Klapka, has been
to dine with Plon-Plon yet again.

I have re-opened this letter, having closed it without putting in the
Knight, in order to tell you that we are unable to find the only
copy of the thing that’s still up here in Manchester. Someone must
have pinched it. Marx has still got some in London and is writing
to ask that some ol them be sent up here forthwith, whereupon
we shall immediately send you one.

You would greatly oblige me if you could send me, by return of
mail and unstamped, a few numbers of the Volks-Zeitung and the

a Polish name: Wroclaw. - P Ever yours - ¢ kept man
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National-Zeitung in which the army’s constitution is discussed, and
also one or two little pamphlets that have appeared over there on
the subject—all of them together in one wrapper. Otherwise, it
takes ages for me to get the things over here, and 1 shouldn’t see
the newspapers at all.

First published in: F. Lassalle, Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene  Briefe und Schriften, Bd. 1II,

Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Published in English for the first

time

43
MARX TO J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

London, 27 March 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Sir,

I am enclosing herewith the last two documents needed to
complete what has already been sent. The first is a letter from the
editor-in-chief of the New-York Tribune to me.* I have included a
German translation.

The second document is highly important in that it proves that
the wretched Cherval, alias Nugent, alias Crimer, far from being
in touch with me when he was in Geneva, was hounded out of that
city as a result of my book about the Communist trial in Cologne."
The letter is from Johann Philipp Becker in Paris (Becker fled
after the affair of 1830/31, in 1848/49 he first commanded the
volunteers in Baden, then he was colonel of the revolutionary
army in Baden and the Palatinate; he is now a business man in
Paris and, so to speak, the doyen of the German émigrés) and is
directed to Rheinlander, a merchant in London, with whom he
has business connections. Mr Rheinlinder, who is an acquaintance
of mine, was good enough to let me have the letter.*

Apart from this letter, I have also sent you:

1. Dated 21 Feb. Power of attorney, together with enclosures.

a A lletter from Charles Dana. See this volume, p. 68.- b K. Marx, Revelations
Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne. - ¢ Marx quotes it in Herr Vogt, present
edition, Vol. 17, pp. 60-63.
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2. Dated 24 Feb. A letter, together with enclosures.

3. Dated 3 March. Two packages with enclosures.?

I now look forward to receiving by return of post, firstly, a
confirmation that these various letters, etc., have arrived, secondly,
some news about the progress of the libel suit.

I am, Sir,

Your most obedient Servant,
Dr Karl Marx

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV,

Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE

IN PARIS

London, 4 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

My dear Sir,

I have not yet received your pamphlet.®

Mr Engels is my best friend and, consequently, will do
everything to prove useful to you.

[As to]® Stoffregen, I do not know him, but was [told in]
Manchester by different merchants tha[t he is] a person lacking
tact, intrusive etc. Stil[l] in some lower layers of the Lancashire
society, he may, possibly, sell your wines as well as anybody else.

You will oblige me by sending me by next post the address of
General Perczel. I want an explication on his part.® Which are
your relations with P.?

Les choses marchent®
Yours truly

A. Williams

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English), in Revue d’histoire com-
parée, t. 1V, No. 1-2, Budapest, 1946

a See this volume, pp. 53, 59-76, 92-104. - ® B. Szemere, La Question hongroise
(1848-1860), Paris, 1860. - < Manuscript damaged. - 4 See this volume, pp. 125-26. -
¢ Things are going well.
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45
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
Manchester, 8 April 1860

Dear Moor,

During the last few days of my stay in Barmen'* the contract
relating to the Manchester business has been subjected to
thorough legal scrutiny. This convinced me that everything over
here was hanging in the balance and that I must get back without
a moment’s delay. I left on Friday morning at 6 o’clock and was
back here by 12 noon yesterday, i.e. in 30 hours. * The thing was,
we wanted to secure Charley.** This was accomplished yesierday
evening, in so far as it was necessary, and now I shall have to wait
and see what Gottfried” does. However, my base of operations is
now secure.

Under the circumstances, I shan’t be able to come to London
until everything here has been settled. Until then I shall be up to
my eyes in business matters and legal quibbles, and there’s nothing
I can do about it. In the meantime I have learned from Gumpert
and Siebel what they know. I've neither seen nor heard anything
of my pamphlet.® You might return me the copy you have, also
the letter (presumably from Fischel?) G. sent you,' so that I know
what is going on. Open the letter if you haven’t already done so;
this will save writing to and fro.

G. told me that there had been some further unpleasantness at
my lodgings; I'm moving out straight away.

I neither saw nor heard anything of the Prussian police. No one
demanded my passport or anything of that kind. The few
policemen I ran into in Barmen gave me a miurtary sacute, that was
all.

Industry on the Rhine has developed enormously and the
constitutional system has bitten deep into the citizenry. Things
have changed vastly since 1848, though sufficient of the old leaven
still remains.

Still no reply from Weber°? If it doesn’t arrive soon, there’ll be
nothing else for it but to get Ephraim Artful’ to take him to task.

a Roesgen - » Ermen - ¢ F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine. - 4 See this volume,
pp. 113-14, 133. - © ibid., p. 92. - { Lassalle
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Kindest regards to your wife and the vounc rapies. Immediately
I've sorted things out up here I shall come and see you.
Your
F. E.
Will you also send the key to the lower bookcase. What is all this

about the parcel of letters that was supposedly left in the
bedroom, or so Gumpert maintains?

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
191% Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 9 April 1860

Dear Engels,

Great disappointment today when, instead of yourself, your
letter arrived. However, we saw that it only made ‘good sense’.

Siebel has carried out his mission well and with great
discretion.'*’

I still haven’t been able to find the key.* However, the ‘upper’
key also fits the lower key-hole. It locks both compartments.

I shall send you Weydemeyer’s letter shortly.

Before leaving Manchester 1 confided to Gumpert, etc., such
fables as I thought necessary to justify my non-trip to Holland.

Freiligrath has written me a friendly letter. Up till now I have
neither answered him, nor seer him.

The only letter I have had from Gumpert that was addressed to
you was intended for me—from Liebknecht, who informs me that
the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung has given him notice.'*®

No news from Fischel.

Nor yet from Weber.

I shall post you your pamphlet” from here on Thursday.c
Borkheim has advertised it in the Hermann (latest issue)® and I in

2 See previous letter. - ® F. Engels, Savoy, Nice and the Rhine. - < 11 April -
4 Hermann, 7 April 1860.
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the Tribune; Liebknecht will now (Wednesday) advertise it in the
New Orleans Paper?
Salut.

Your
K. M.

The American papers (New-Yorker Staatszeitung, etc.) are full of
Vogt's drivel. The fellows over there got the book” sooner than we
did in London.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, . . NN .
1918 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO JOHANN PHILIPP BECKER

IN PARIS

London N.W., 9 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

My dear friend Becker,

First, my most sincere thanks for your letter, for the verbal
information you gave to Siebel and for sending the correspondence.
Apart from anything else, I ought to account Sieur® Vogt’s artack a
blessing, if only because it has brought me into closer contact with
the doyen of our revolution and our emigration. I do not, by the
by, share the Philistines’ astonishment at the consistency of your
behaviour. Hitherto I have always found that, once they set out on
a revolutionary course, all men of really reliable character—1I
would mention only old Levasseur, Cobbet, Robert Owen, Lelewel
and General Mellinet—constantly draw fresh strength from their-

4 Presumably the Deutsche Zeitung. - ® C. Vogt, Mein Prozess ‘gegen die Allgemeine
Zeitung. - © Mr
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setbacks and become ever more resolute, the longer they swim in
the stream of history.

The next reason for my writing—other than the desire to
convey my thanks to you personally—is that I have been
commissioned by my old friend ]J. Weydemeyer to enlist corres-
pondents in Europe for the Stimme des Volks. This paper, I should
say, has been founded in Chicago by the American Workers’
League,'*® whose headquarters have moved from New York to
Chicago. It is a daily paper and may acquire even greater
importance since Chicago is increasingly becoming the metropolis
of the North-West. I enclose the heading of the prospectus.

Terms are as follows: You would have to contribute once a week.
Fee 2 dollars per article. This would come to asout £5 or 125 fr. a
quarter. The fee is a small one, nor could it be otherwise in the
case of a workers’ paper. On the other hand, my friend
Weydemeyer’s character is a guarantee of prompt payment, which
cannot exactly be said of German-American papers elsewhere. If
you agree to this request, you could start next week, but notify me
beforehand.

The parcel containing the invaluable correspondence came by
post, the day before S. arrived in London. I shall get them bound
and always keep them at your disposal. Among them is a
document of a column mutinying against Willich,” which is highly
characteristic of this Don Quixote.

I should be very glad—and it would be of great importance to
my pamphlet"—if you, with your intimate knowledge of Fazy,
could send me a thumb-nail sketch of his goings-on since the coup
d’état, also a vignette of the man’s character. I regard Vogt simply
as the servant of Fazy, whom I once saw in Paris (1843) and whom
I at once sized up correctly by his being a former contributor to
the National (on which the best of them were bad).

Lommel’s httle work® is entertaining and has some useful
revelations about 1847/48. But I can’t agree with his extremely
parochial ideas about the origins of the year of revolution.
However it is, perhaps, the very narrowness of his outlook that
enables him to portray vividly and with true insight the ground
with which he is personally familiar.

Your two little poems about Leibniz and ‘What of it?’ pleased
me enormously and it would be a good idea if you were to enclose

4 See Marx’s Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17, pp. 82-83. - Herr Vogt
¢ [G. Lommel,] Hinter den Coulissen, Geneva and New York, 1859,



116 48. Marx to Ferdinand Lassalle. 9 April 1860

them (assuming you agree to my proposal) with your first article
for Weydemeyer. W.’s address is:

J. Weydemeyer, care or Chicago Arbeiterverein, sox 1345,
Chicago, Ill. United States. (Ill. stands for Illinois.)

With fraternal greetings,

Yours truly,
K. Marx

First published abridged in Die Neue Zeit, Printed according to the original
Jg. 6, Stuttgart, 1888 and in full in: Marx . . . .
and Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, }TUthhEd in English for the first
Vol. XXV, Moscow, 1934 tme
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MARX TO FERDINAND L.ASSALLE'

IN BERLIN

London, 9 April 1860
(The old address)

Dear Lassalle,

Since your last letter, all manner of things have happened.
Engels’ father has died and Engels has spent a fortnight in Prussia
by permission of the Prussian Government. I myself, however,
have been overwhelmed with business, and even now can only
write quite briefly.

1. My lawyer® in Berlin has asked me to undertake not to mention
his name. If, however, despite the mass of material I have sent him
and despite various reminders, these six weeks of silence are
prolonged, you will have to prod him, for the case becomes
statute-barred on 22 April.

2. Vogt visited Plon-Plon in Paris. He was seen by acquaintances
of mine, who spoke to him. Nevertheless, he had the effrontery to
state, or cause it to be stated, in the German papers that he had not
been to Paris.

3. Have not received the Humboldt."'

4. I shall send you the Knight of the Noble [ Consciousness] today.”

2 J. M. Weber - b See this volume, pp. 108-09.
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5. My old friend J. Weydemeyer has given up his post as
Derurv-Survevor in the state of Wisconsin at the request of the
American ‘Workers’ League’ (a public society with branches
throughout the United States) ™ which has moved its headquar-
ters from New York to Chicago (Illinois). W. will assume the
editorship there of a daily paper founded with the help of
workers’ shares.® Chicago is increasingly becoming the centre in
the American North-West where German influence predominates.
W. has asked me to enlist correspondents for the paper and this 1
have done over here, in Paris and in Switzerland.” I invite you to
undertake the German articles (if possible at least two a week).
There is no question of payment. But as party work it is very
important. W. is one of our best people. If, as I hope, you agree to
this, you should start directly and send your articles to:

¢ Weydemeyer, care or Chicago Arbeiterverein, sox 1345,
Chicago (Illinois), United States.

6. While leafing through the Neue Rheinische Zeitung (neces-
sary on Vogt's account) I was glad to discover a short leader in
which we broke a lance with the Vossische¢ for Miss Ludmilla
Assing.

7. Would it be possible for you to send me a brief sketch of
what the worthy Zabel of the National-Zeitung has been up to,
since reaction set in? The sketch could appear in my pamphlet®
as a letter signed by you. You would, moreover, find yourself in
the company of highly honourable refugees who are writing about
other people for this work. Some anonymously, others under
their own names. Several do net belong to our faction of the

party.

Your
K. M.
First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene  Briefe und Schriften, Bd. III, . . L.
Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Published in English in full for the

first time

a Stimme des Volkes - ® See this volume, pp. 115-16, 118-19. - < Kéniglich privilegirte
Berlinische Zeitung von Staats- und gelehrten Sachen - 4 Herr Vogt
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49
MARX TO GEORG LOMMEL
IN GENEVA
[ Draft) [London,] 9 April 1860

To G. Lommel. (Geneva)
Citizen,

I have been told by Siebel, whom I saw a day or two since at
Freiligrath’s while on his way back from Switzerland, that a letter
sent by me from Manchester on 26 February to the editors of the
Neue Schweizer Zeitung,” and intended for you, has fallen into
Brass’s hands. For I had been informed that you were the editor
of the Neue Schweizer Zeitung, a paper I have never seen. It was in
this belief that I wrote to you, since your name was known to me
through its having featured with such great credit in the annals of
the revolution. I would not have written to Mr Brass.

What I wanted of you was to learn something about Vogt's
activities. Material concerning the activities of V. -and other
Bonapartist agents has been pouring in from people belonging to
the emigrations of various countries and to the various schools of
thought within the revolutionary party. But I wish to set to work
with discrimination and a strict regard for the truth. A contribu-
tion from you, with your intimate knowledge of how things stand
in Switzerland, would therefore be of the utmost value to me.

With regard to your book Hinter den Coulissen, a copy of which
was given me by Siebel, I found this of great interest and believe it
is important that the second part should appear. In the case of the
latter, I might be able to get hold of a financially reliable bookseller
for you over here. With regard to part I, I think I could dispose of
300 copies at 1 franc apiece, partly by direct sales at the various
societies in London, partly through booksellers. But first the
copies would have to be here. If this appeals to you, send the copies
to the booksellers ‘Petsch, etc., London’.

Finally, I have one more proposal to make you. My friend
J. Weydemeyer (previously co-editor of the Neue Deutsche Zeitung
in Frankfurt) has given up his post as Derury-Survevor in the state
of Wisconsin at the request of the Workers’ League in the United
States (which has moved its headquarters from New York to
Chicago),'* in order to take over the editorship in Chicago of Die
Stimme des Volks, a daily paper founded by the Working Men’s and
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Gymnastic Club.'™ I have been asked by him to enlist correspon-
dents in Europe, and this 1 have done over here, in Paris and in
Berlin. I am taking the liberty of inviting you to act as
correspondent for Swiizerland, initially on the basis of one
contribution per week. Fee 2 dollars (10 frs.) per article—
payments, as might be expected from a paper of this kind and
particularly at the outset, will be modest for the time being, but
will improve as the paper grows. Hitherto there has been only one
daily in the state of Illinois, the Staatszeitung® Day by day,
however, Chicago is increasingly becoming the centre of the entire
North-West of America, where there is a very large German
population. I can guarantee prompt payment. If you agree to this
proposal, will you start straight away this week and be good enough
to advise me. The address is:

J. Weydemeyer, care or Chicago Arbeiterverein, sox 1345,
Chicago (Illinois), United States.

To come back to Vogt, you will have seen a statement of mine
(beginning of February)® in various German newspapers to the
effect that I shall reply to his lampoon© after settlement of the
libel action I have brought against the Berlin National-Zeitung for
printing excerpts from Vogt’s concoction.

On pp. 180-181 (cf. the passage) Vogt speaks of a ‘conspiracy’
he foiled at the Lausanne working men’s festival. Can you give me
any information about this piece of boasting? The passage runs as
follows: '** What is the truth of the matter?

Finally, I would take the liberty of pointing out that your
account of Vogt’s activities, which you could send me in the form
of a letter, thereby finding yourself in the highly honourable
company of other refugees (though it cannot appear until later by
reason of the lawsuit in Berlin®), would figure in my pamphlet’ as
a section in its own right, contributed by you, and 1 would, of
course, pass on to you the fee per sheet paid me by the publisher
in respect of the section you had contributed. I say this because I
know full well what it is to be a refugee, having myself lived under
those conditions almost uninterruptedly for seventeen years, and it
would be most unjust if one of us were to accept payment from a
publisher at the expense of another. Owing to the lawsuit in

2 Die Téagliche Illinois Staats-Zeitung - ® K. Marx, “To the Editors of the Volks-Zeitung.
Declaration’, 6 February 1860. - ¢ C. Vogt, Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung,
Geneva, 1859. - d ‘Karl Vogt und die Allgemeine Zeitung’ and ‘Wie man radikale
Flugblitter macht’, National-Zeitung, Nos. 37 and 41, 22 and 25 January 1860. - © See
this volume, pp. 40-45 and 59-76. - f Herr Vogt
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Berlin and also because Vogt’s main attack, etc., is directed against
me, my pamphlet will be in great demand and will find a good
publisher in Germany. One is inclined to ask whether a
concentration of attacking forces would not be desirable in the
interests of the cause. On that point you will, of course, be entirely
your own judge and under no circumstances should you
misconstrue my plain speaking.
With fraternal greetings,

Yours truly,
K. M.

When writing to me, address your letters: A. Williams,* Esq.,
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park, Haverstock Hill, London.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original

Works, First Russi Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
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50
ENGELS TO EMIL ENGELS

IN ENGELSKIRCHEN

Manchester, 11 April 1860

Dear Emil,

What do you think G. Ermen’s latest proposals are?

1. He wants to buy mother out by instalments and assume sole
control of the business.

2. Under the terms envisaged in the contract I am to stay on
with him as clerk for another four years!’

At so cheap a price does the fellow think to buy us out of our
inheritance in the firm of Ermen & Engels and obtain my grateful
assent to my own degradation vis-a-vis himself.

The negotiations were quite amicable. The proposals affecting
myself I turned down flat, whereupon he held out the prospect
that 1 might become a partner in four years, whereupon I
demanded guarantees before I could consider the matter and told
him that we were all of the opinion that, if there was to be a

“ An alias used by Marx in some of his letters.
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parting of the ways, it would mean division in kind and
competition. This surprised him greatly, and the matter progressed
no further. He had imagined that we in Barmen were urgently in
need of money (as to which I enlightened him) and wanted to exploit
the opportunity. In short, he was very disappointed by the
conversation and will doubtless make some other approach. More
when 1 see you.

After this affair, we can be more certain of Charles® than ever;
he actually believes that we two will be able to make Gottfried® do
anything, perhaps even retire into private life.

Your
F. Engels
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, Second Russian Edition, Vol. 30, . i i .
Moscow, 1963 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 12 April 1860

Dear Engels,

Best tHanks for the hundred pound note. It came as a glorious
surprise this morNiNG. The whole family was filled with glee.

You may or may not have seen that the Kalnische Zeitung
(Schlesinger, London) has had the impudence to talk about the
Brimstone Gang® and its Russian redolence. Wew! Through the
good offices of my bankrupt friend Speck I am now hot on the
trail of the whole Brimstone Gang here in London.

D’abordS you’ll have seen in the papers that Palmerston has
amused himself by presenting Mr Reuter (the Jew from Trieste of
telegraph fame)? to the Queen.® And who do you think is
factotum to this grammatically illiterate Jew Reuter? — Siegmund
Englinder, who was expelled from Paris because, although a spy in

2 Roesgen - » Ermen - ¢ First - ¢ Julius Reuter. A list of persons presented to
Queen Victoria on 28 March 1860, was published in The Times, No. 23580, 29 March
1860. - ¢ Victoria
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the pay of France (600 frs. per month), he was discovered to be a
‘secret’ Russian spy. This same Reuter, together with Englinder,
Horfel and Schlesinger, was a partner in a Bonapartist litho-
graphic news agency in Paris (an honorary member being one
Esterhazy, a man asout Town and the cousin of Esterh., the Austrian
ambassador); they fell out, etc. Mr Bernhard Wolff, chief proprietor
of the Berlin ‘National-Zeitung’ and owner of the Berlin telegraphic
bureau, is hand-in-purse (partners) with S. Englinder, who is at
present editing European world history in Reuter’s name. N. B.
Russia has now joined the ‘Austro-German Telegraphic Union’
and, ‘pour encourager les autres’,* has got Pam to present her Reuter
to the Queen. I am to get a detailed account of Schlesinger’s entire
curriculum vitae, as well as that of Reuter’s.
Salut.

Your
K. M.

My thanks to Siebel for the notes, which arrived today. Also for his
Religion und Liebe® My wife thinks highly of the latter.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . )
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

London, 13 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Sir,
A fortnight ago yesterday I sent you the final documents, at the
same time requesting you to acknowledge receipt of the letters and

enclosures previously despatched, and also to let me know briefly
how the case is progressing. I am exceedingly worried by the

2 ‘to encourage the others’ -  [C. Siebel,] Religion und Liebe. Roman aus dem Tagebuche
eines Anonymen, Hamburg, 1860. - ¢ See this volume, pp. 110-11.
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complete absence of news, the more so since, in your letter of
22 February, you say the action will become statute-barred on
22 April and, after receiving the said letter, I had expected an early
communication from you.

I remain, Sir, Your most Obedient Servant,

Dr Karl Marx

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS®

IN MANCHESTER
{London,] 16 April 1860

Dear Engels,

Have had some most valuable material from Lommel today.”
However, he volunteered to submit to a further cross-examinarion,
and one such has already gone off to him today.”? It was also
much needed. Moreover, in the letter in which I buttered him up,
I suggested he should send 300 copies of his Hinter den Coulissen
to Petsch (the booksellers) here. I would promote the sales (in
working men’s clubs, etc.). Now he wants an advance of 150
francs. 1 think that you in Manchester should cius together
forthwith and raise a few pounds, while I would find the rest down
here. The man is invaluable to us. He has also written about this to
Siebel. Hence I shall also drop the latter a couple of lines today.
Siebel should do nothing without first consulting me.

I enclose Weydemeyer’s letter.

Not a word yet from that confounded lawyer,” to whom I sent a
reminder last Fridav.® However, he’s got the retaining fee, and I
his acceptance of the brief. So, I cannot imagine that he will lay
himself open to a lawsuit against himself.

A lot more sanctimonious preaching from Lassalle, together

2 See this volume, pp. 118-19. - J. M. Weber - ¢ See previous letter.

6—558
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with a printed essay (on Fichte’s political legacy*) for Walesrode’s
political pocket edition, not yet out.” It appears from L.’s letter
that he has read your pampbhlet,” which means it has come out in
Berlin. Presumably the publisher will only start advertising it now,
along with the Easter eggs. L.’s letter is altogether fatuous. He’s
been ill again. He is again writing a ‘major work’.¢ Aside from this
major work, he has in his mind a clear outline of three other
major works, including the ‘political economy’, and is, in addition,
studying 6-7 unnamed sciences ‘with productive intent’. The
Countess,” he writes, has lost a great deal of money, for which
reason he must go to Cologne. Probably misguided speculation in
railways, etc.

Mont Sion does in fact exist, or so I see from the map included
in the Brue Book on Savoy' (in the Genevois, Ex-NEUTRAL).

Apropos.

Questions for Lupus:

1. In one of his letters from Zurich 1 find that he was
acquainted with Brass. Could he supply any information about
him?

2. Did the rump parliament in Stuttgart** pass a resolution
whereby the former imperial regents have the right to recall the
German parliament on any particular occasion?

Do you or Lupus know anything about a request for annexation
sent in 1849 by the then provisional government of the Palatinate
to the French National Assembly?

When are you coming down here?

Your
Moor

Haven’t seen Freiligrath yet. The idea of meeting the chap is
‘awful’',® and yet I've got to swallow the bitter pill. If only for
diplomatic reasons, after our mutual assurances of friendship.

And then, he has written to me in an AMIABLE manner.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original

F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . .

1913 Published in English in full for the
first time

2 Lassalle, Fichte’s politisches Vermdchiniss und die neueste Gegenwanrt. - ® Demokratische
Studien - < Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - 4 Das System der erworbenen Rechte - < Sophie
von Hatzfeldt - f Papers relating to proposed Annexation of Savoy and Nice to France and
memorial on the velations between Switzerland and Savoy as a Neuiral, London,
1860. - 8 Marx uses the dialectal form ‘6klig’ for ‘eklig’.
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54
MARX TO MOR PERCZEL

IN ST HELIER

London, 16 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Dear General,

In furtherance of a work I intend to publish on Bonapartist
machinations,” I am taking the liberty of addressing myself to you
as one of the most vigorous champions of European liberty.
During the recent war in Italy** you issued a statement in which
you showed that you had seen through the humbug and had
therefore made a timely exit from the stage— proof, if proof were
needed, of your superiority to that clown, Kossuth, and his
sycophants. Having unfortunately lost that statement, I had
recourse to Szemere in Paris.” He referred me to you. Hence, if
you would be so kind as to let me have a copy of the said
statement, together with your comments on the deception
practised on the Hungarians in Italy, you would be doing a service
to the good cause.

As early as last summer (1859), in articles of mine which
appeared in the New-York Tribune¢ and the London ‘Free Press’? 1
mentioned your name as that of the only military representative of
the Hungarian emigration not to have succumbed to the bribes
and wiles of the diplomats of France and Russia, or allowed
himself to be impressed by Kossuth’s phantasmagoria, and, in the
new book I propose to write, I should be glad to allot you the
place of honour that befits you.

I am taking the liberty of reminding you that, as early as
1848-49, when Editor-in-Chief of the Neue Rheinische Zeitung, 1
was the most determined advocate of revolutionary Hungary in
Germany. Now, as then, I consider Hungarys independence and
sovereignty to be the conditio sine qua of Germany’s release from slavery.
But with no less determination do I reject the endeavour to

a Herr Vogt - " See this volume, p. 111.-¢ ‘Kossuth and Louis Napoleon’ -
d “Particulars of Kossuth’s Transaction with Louis Napoleon’

6*
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debase the nationalities by using them as a cloak for Muscovite-
Decembrist '** intrigue.
I am, Sir, etc.

Yours,
Dr Karl Marx

First published in Hungarian in Parttor- Printed according to the original
téneti Kozlemények, No. 4, Budapest, 1966 . . 5 .
and in the language of the original ITublxshed in English for the first
(German) in: Marx, Engels, Werke, Bd. 39, ame

Berlin, 1973

55
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 17 April 1860

Dear Engels,

I trust that your indisposition isn’t serious. Also that you are
taking care of yourself and not over-working.

1 have sent Lommel the 150 francs today.” (What you don’t
manage to scrape together in Manchester will be collected here.)
For the following reasons:

1. If he is to retrieve the books® from the bookbinders’, he has.
got to pay 50 frs. That leaves him 100 frs. To haggle over that
would be exceedingly impolitic and would not command any respect
for our party.

2. The main thing is that the so-called advance be sent to the
chap quickly and unconditionally. In that way, he’ll be beholden to
us. The other half he shall have sy anp sy and thus will remain
ENGAGED TO US.

3. As soon as he has the money, he will leave for Savoy whence
he will send back reports.

4. From Petsch’s note enclosed herewith (I gave him the copy
Siebel brought back with him) you will see that he believes that he
can make a profit on what is, in fact, an interesting pamphlet.

5. L. is a decent chap. Otherwise he’d sell himself. From the
papers Becker has sent me, I see that Lommel was a leading light

a See this volume, p. 123. - b [G. Lommel,] Hinter den Coulissen.
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in the old Republican Party. Also a friend of Heinzen’s. What a
clamour there’ll be from the latter over this defection!

I am in two minds about Siebel's work for the Strassburger
Zeitung.®

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first
time
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ENGELS TO GOTTFRIED ERMEN
IN MANCHESTER

Copy Manchester, 19 April 1860
Sir,

I have no hesitation in expressing my regret that you should
have taken offence at my taking home the book of calculations
during dinner-time. As books have been taken home, before, by
others connected with the office, I did not expect it would have
caused you any annoyance. As to any intentions on my part of
taking any undue advantage, you are aware that the whole of the
calculations contained in the said book are so much out of date
that not one of the elements given therein agrees with the present
real cost. I could not, therefore, have any such intention, and {I]
hope the feeling now expressed by you is not in any way
influenced by the prospect of the arrangements for winding up, or
otherwise settling, the affairs of the firm, it being the interest of
all parties that such matters should be conducted in a friendly and
accommodating spirit.

I am, Sir, .
your obedient servant,
Fred. Engels
Written in English. First published in: Reproduced from the original
Marx and Engels, Works, Second Russian i R R .
‘Edition, Vol. 30. Moscow, 1963 Published in English for the first

time

2 Presumably the Strassburger Korrespondent fiir West- und Mitteleuropa.
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57
MARX TO J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

London, 21 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hiil

Sir,

Eleven days ago I sent you a letter,” in which I notified you that
I had still not received either an acknowledgment of, or a reply to,
the numerous letters (enclosing documents, power of attorney,
etc.) despatched from here and Manchester over the past two
months, although your letter of 22 February had led me to expect
an early communication and, according to that same letter, the
action will become statute-barred on 22 April (i.e. tomorrow). I
therefore requested an explanation.

Having received no reply to that letter either, 1 am forced to
conclude

Either that my letters failed to arrive, although every one, save
the last, was registered;

Or that at least one of your letters has been intercepted.

Therefore, should this letter suffer the same fate as its
predecessors, 1 shall lodge a complaint both with the General Post
Office over here and with the Prussian Embassy; I shall also, if
need be, make a public protest in the columns of the London
“T'imes’,

I am, Sir, Your most Obedient Servant,

Dr K. Marx
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Editon, Vol. XXV, R R . .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time

2 Obviously the letter of 13 April 1860, see this volume, pp. 122-23.
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58
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 24 April 1860

Dear Frederick,

Herewith a letter from Weber. From that letter I learn for the
first time (what the jackass might have been kind enough to tell
me earlier on) that he did not originally file a civil but a criminal
action for injuria against Zabel, which means that, under Prussian
law, the application has to be countersigned by the Royal
Procurator’s Office. Since this has been refused, he has appealed.
It is, of course, ‘an issue of public importance’'* to the Prussian
government that we should be traduced to the utmost.

From his letter you will see that he also instituted the civil action
on the 18th.

Will you ‘let Dr Heckscher know about this business and give
him some notes (a few lines) on the subject for the Hamburg
Reform?* He has himself repeatedly offered to do me a service of
this kind, and the matter has got to be brought out into the open
(if only to instil a litdle caution into the Prussian government). 1
am also writing to Siebel to this effect. Indeed, the public must not
be allowed to suppose that the matter has lapsed.

The stuff from Lommel (I have got six or seven more
documents from him)® contains ample circuMsTanTIAL EDIVENCE Of
Vogt’s bribery. Vogt no longer feels safe in Geneva and has
therefore applied for Schwyz citizenship. I hope, by the by, that
one of these days you will write me a proper letter telling me just
how your affairs are going. It's not very friendly of you to treat me
with the reserve that might be appropriate in the case of others.

How goes it with your health? I've been most anxious about it.

Your
K. M.

The Perrier business had been prearranged with Bonaparte, but
never attained the dimensions originally envisaged."’ J. Perrier
was in Paris with Fazy, and was seen there by Becker’s son.c

2 See this volume, p. 134. - P ibid., p. 123. - ¢ Gottfried Becker
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No answer as vet from Fischel, to whom I wrote* on the subject
of your pamphlet® (Schily has also badgered him about it).

While, in the West German Strassburger Zeitung” the literary
Zouaves keep up the skirmish, so too do the literary Cossacks in the
German Baltische Monatsschrift (Riga); we “Teutons’ are thus under
attack on both flanks.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engel d K. M Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
lglgnges o arx. Be utigart Published in English for the first
time
59

MARX TO GEORG RHEINLANDER

IN LONDON

[London,] 24 April 1860

Dear Rheinlinder,

I should be much obliged to you if you would request
Mr Stecher to tell you exactly (as exactly as possible) when Cherval
first came to Geneva, how long he stayed there, and when he
performed his vanishing act.

It would be nice to see you again some time. I have all sorts of
things to tell you.

Yours,
K. Marx '™
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . . .
M(‘))Zcow 125934 vsstan tuom, ¥o Published in English for the first

time

4 Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - ® Strassburger Korrespondent fiir West- und Mittelewropa -
¢ See also Marx’s article ‘Garibaldi in Sicily.—Affairs in Prussia’, present edition,
Vol. 17, p. 385.
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60
MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN

London, 24 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Dear Lassalle,

Many thanks for Humboldt® and Fichte.”® I hadn’t yet read the
latter, and it was cLever of you to throw it into the fray. When your
letter arrived, I got Engels to send me both your letter and the
one from Counsellor Weber in Berlin. From this last I see that the
matter of not mentioning his name applied solely to my public
announcements in the newspapers®; hence 1 was, in this instance,
labouring under a misapprehension.

Today I have heard from Weber. From his letter it would
appear that he began by filing a criminal action.~He then received
the following communication dated 18th inst.

“The original documents are returned to Dr Carl Marx, ¢/o Counsellor Weber,
together with the notification that no issue- of public importance is raised by this
matter which could make it desirable for me to take any action (Art. XVI of the
Prolegomena to the Penal Code of April 14, 1851). Berlin, April 18, etc. Lippe.

Weber has appealed to the Chief Public Prosecutor® against this
ruling. At the same time, in order to prevent its becoming
statute-barred and to keep open another course of action, he has
filed the action for injuria with the civil judge.

With my pamphletd in view, I am, of course, having investiga-
tions made in Paris and Switzerland, and have even sent an
emissary® to Geneva. I now have proof that Vogt is a French
agent. At the moment, he no longer feels safe in Geneva and is
therefore sounding out the possibility of becoming a citizen of
another canton.

Apropos. An acquaintance of mine‘—a Berliner—staunchly
maintains that a certain Mayer or Meier,” of the firm Abraham
M. and Co. (or Sons), who lives in Viktoriastrasse, Berlin, is the

4 Briefe von Alexander von Huwmbold: an Varnhagen von Ense aus den Jahven 1827 bis
1858, Leipzig, 1860. - b See this volume, p. 116. - ¢ Schwarck - ¢ Herr Vogt - < Carl
Siebel - f Julius Faucher
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correspondent of the Daily Telegraph. Could you not get your lady
friends to investigate?

Shall reply to your letter anon.

No doubt youll have left Berlin by the time this note reaches
you.

Your
K. M.
First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelassene Printed according to the original
Briefe und Schriften, Bd. 111, Stuttgart- . . . .
Berlli[n, 1999 ifeen uttgar Published in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ]J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

London, 24 April 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Sir,

I have the honour to enclose a retaining fee of 15 talers, at the
same time advising you that I fully agree to all the measures
adopted by you.

1 remain, Sir,

Your Obedient Servant,

Dr Karl Marx

P. S. As a result of investigations that I have started in Paris
and Switzerland, notably in Geneva,'” I now have proof (after the
proceedings I intend to publish it in pamphlet form) that
Professor Karl Vogt is no more than a common French agent. I
believe, by the by, that the annexation of Nice and Savoy will have
opened the eyes of even the blindest of men to the ‘Italian work of
liberation’,'®" the danger that is threatening Germany and the

rightness of those who uttered timely warnings.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, i ) i .
Moscow, 1934 e ° Published in English for the first

time
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62
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 7 May 1860

Dear Frederick,

Herewith:

1. Letter from Fischel.'® Gumpert’s belief that he sent me a letter
written to you from Berlin is a peLusion. The letter to you which he
sent contained Liebknecht’s letter to me.?

2. Letter from Szemere. 1 haven’t written to him for a long time
because I disliked intensely the way he flattered Badinguet'®® and
Pam in his pamphlet.” However, I shall now give him a piece of
my mind.

3. Letter from Emmermann and Beust to Schily.'* What do you
think of these worthies? Beust, buckling on his sword and accusing
me of prevarication just because he got scared and decamped
from Cologne! You needn’t return the letters to me, but had
better file them.

As regards Fischel’s suggestion, I must first know more about
the kind of newspaper he envisages, the line it will take, etc.

I'm very glad that it was Schimmelpfennig who was Techow’s
addressee ™ for that will enable me to present the one in terms of
the other. It's also a good thing that Willich prevented a reply to
Schapper. 1 shall treat him with mild irony.

Have met Freiligrath. The philistine clearly wishes to remain on
good terms with us. Beyond this, doesn’t want to be drawn into
the ‘scandal’. His views have become mediocre in the extreme.

I hope to hear from you soon.

Your
K. M.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXI1, Moscow, 1929

Published in English for the first
time

a See this volume, p. 113. - 5 B. Szemere, La Question hongroise (1848-1860), Paris,
1860.
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63
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
{Manchester, 7 May 1860]

Dear Moor,

Heckscher sent the story to the Reform® straight away, but with
what success I don’t yet know; as usual, having made a great song
and dance about his influence, he now says he can’t promise it will
appear, etc.

Meanwhile Siebel has got it into the Miitelrheinische Zeitung.

Any news from Berlin?

Mr Szemere has put me to great expense over the Tokay. The
wine’s so sweet that no one can drink it, so I've sent back the
whole lot, apart from a bottle or two, and shall, of course, have to
bear all the expenses, customs duty, etc, etc. He writes most
civilly, offering me other wines, but charges three times as much
as Charles’s” wine merchant in Pest. The fellow is trying to make
huge profits out of his ‘entreprise toute patriotique’. Nous verronss

Siebel is ill with some ‘genius’s ailment’ on which, as usual, he
prides himself. I shall go and see him this evening.

I haven’t heard a word about my pamphlet? or seen anything in
the papers. It's the conspiration du silence all over again.

Apropos. Reiff has come up here, or so he says, on the advice of
Liebknecht, Lochner, etc.! He wants me to help him with money; is a
street musician. I've told him that in the circumstances I would first
have to write to you, which didn’t seem to please him.—Said you
were angry, etc., etc. Que faire?© What do you think of the chap? In
any case, I can’t do much for him.

My brother Emil is here and is negotiating with Ermen. I shall
probably be remaining with Gottfried® as clerk with a percentage
of the profits, in return for a guarantee that I shall become a
partner in a few years’ time. I'm trying to make the contract as
onerous as possible for G. so that, when the time comes, he’ll be
only too glad to let me go. By the end of this week, or at any rate
in the course of the next, everything will probably have been fixed

2 See this volume, p. 129. - ® Charles Roesgen - ¢ ‘wholly patriotic enterprise’. We
shall see. - ¢ Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - © What should we do? - { Gottfried Ermen
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up. For the next few weeks, by the way, I shall probably have to
drudge fittingly, for Monsieur Gottfried intends to make great
changes and do a lot of reorganising the moment he’s in sole
charge of the concern.

Many regards to your wife and the young ladies.

Your
F. E.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuugart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

“ublished in English for the first
time

64
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

{London,] 8 May 1860
Dear Frederick,

Reiff is a scoundrel. No one sent him up to Manchester. He
disappeared from here after he had been exposed. He was thrown
out of the League® back in 1850. During the preliminary
investigation at the Cologne trial? he actually turned traitor. I've
just found a letter of Bermbach’s which refers to this.* So, have
nothing to do with him.

As to your pamphlet,” you'll have found something in Fischel's
letter. By the by, in your place 1 shouldn’t hesitate to exploit
friend Siebel’s minor literary connections (as soon as he’s up and
about again, that is) for the purpose of combating the conspiration
du silence. Had you actually put your name to the pamphlet, the
public would have seized upon it, if only out of curiosity. Behrend,
by the by, seems to be even worse than Duncker.

Szemere is a man who likes to ask others to do him a service,
but who keeps his own pocket-flaps buttoned. You have now done
enough for him and, if I were you, I would leave his wine to its
misston toute patriotique.”

A Marx quoted Bermbach’s letter in his letter to Engels of 20 July 1852. See
present edition, Vol. 39, pp. 134-35. - b Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - < wholly
patriotic mission
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I don’t much care for the serriement with G. Ermen. The
question is, whether your family is or is not leaving any capital in
the business. If the former, it might provide a vantage point from
which to negotiate.

From your letter it would appear that you are once again going
to cancel or postpone your trip down here. Considering how rapid
communications are, you ought really to be able to spare a couple
of days.

What do you think of the Sicilian business? '®°

Things in Vienna are said to be very revolutionary.

The English are, of course, now plaguing us with talk about
Bruck. The day before yesterday a chap was again badgering me
about it. He asked: ‘Now, whaT po vou say or Brucks sutcoer ‘I'LL TELL
you, Sir. IN AUSTRIA THE ROGUES CUT THEIR OWN THROATS, WHILE IN ENGLAND THEY
CUT THEIR PEOPLE'S PURSES.

Borkheim has just written to me from Dublin. He will be
arriving in Manchester on Saturday® evening and will come and
see you on Sunday.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . -

Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and P‘ubhshed in English for the first
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, tme
Vol. XX1I, Moscow, 1929

65
MARX TO EDUARD FISCHEL '

IN BERLIN
(London,] 8 May 1860

Dear Sir,

Many thanks for your letter and for your trouble. I shall shordy
be sending you a letter from little Faucher on the subject of
Mayer.”

“ 11 May - See this volume, pp. 131-32.
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As for the proposed newspaper, 1 would not be averse to
becoming involved in it.'® Only 1 would first have to know
something more about its establishment, political outlook, etc. As
regards foreign policy (and this, as from England, would no doubt
be the main thing), I believe that we are in substantial agreement.
On the other hand, there might well be considerable differences
of opinion in regard to internal policy. The main thing, of course,
is to know what attitude the newspaper intends to adopt in
Prussia. If it eschews an emphatically one-sided party viewpoint, I
should say that, at the present time, when Germany is in danger,
people of varying political views could work together against
foreign foes, withcut making any mutual concessions.

Yours very truly,
K. Marx

Also written (8 May) to Engels, Borkheim, Eccarius, Petsch, and
Weydemeyer.*

First published in the language of the Published in English for the first
original (German) and in Russian in the time

journal  Vopresy istorii KPSS, No. 3,

Moscow, 1959

66
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
Manchester, 10 May 1860

Dear Moor,

My brother® left this evening because my mother is seriously ill
and sent for him by telegram.

Matters have been pretty well settled with Ermen. My family is
leaving capital amounting to £10,000 in the business, which it will
have to make over to me when I become a partner. My material
position will improve straight away, or at least the percentage of
my share. I shall tell you all about this when I come down at
Whitsun. Providing, that is, that everything’s settled by then, and

2 Marx's note to the copy of the letter in his notebook. - » Emi] Engels
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nothing has happened to my mother, so that I am, in fact, able to
come. But I'm rather afraid she may have caught the infection
from my father. I feel as though typhoid fever has now got a grip
on our family.

About the other points, tomorrow.

Siebel wants to know whether, amongst the papers he brought
back, you have found the pamphlet, Die Sphinx auf dem
franzésischen Kaiserthron®; Schily has noticed that it’s missing and is
afraid he may have lost it.

Saw Lupus yesterday. The bone’s still troubling him, and
rheumatism into the bargain. It almost looks as though Gumpert’s
intervention is bringing the matter to a head, which is just as well,
since it will be over all the sooner, and then L. will be back on his
pins again.

Regards to the ramiy.

Your
F. E.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, time

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

67
ENGELS TO MARX
IN LONDON
Manchester, 11 May 1860

Dear Moor,

My mother in grave danger. Two telegrams from Barmen. No
one’s allowed to see her. I'm to go over there again, the necessary
steps are being taken. How it will turn out I cannot say. This
business has put my mind into a turmoil; apparently it really is
typhoid. ,

I can’t write to you about anything else today, my mind being
altogether too full, and besides it’s too late. For seven weeks now

2 [K. Griin,] Louis Napoleon Bonaparte, die Sphinx auf dem franzosischen Kaiserthron,
Hamburg, 1860.
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I've been living in a state of continual tension and excitation which
has now reached a climax—never has it been so bad. Fortunately,
I am aiL riout again physically. If I have to go to Barmen, I can
probably so arrange things as to spend another day in London en
route, in which case I shall see you.'*

Many regards.

Your
F. E.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engel, d K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, . . .
1913nges un an e Published in English for the first
time
68

MARX TO CARL SIEBEL

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 15 May [1860]

Dear Siebel,

Herewith the answer from Berlin from which it appears that the
criminal action has been dismissed. The civil action will never
make any headway.” Kindly send the Mittelrheinische Zeitung a few
lines setting forth the facts of the case. Let me have the letter back
as soon as you've shown it to Gumpert and Lupus.

I have not yet approached a publisher about the pamphlet” and
am wondering whether to try Leipzig or Hamburg.

Engels left here yesterday evening,'®® sain et sauf-

I have not received the Sphinx" from you but it doesn’t matter. I
do not regard Boustrapa'® as a sphinx, still less Mr Karl Griin as
an Oedipus.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

a See this volume, p. 129, - » K. Marx, Herr Vogt. - < safe and sound - 4 [K. Griin,]
Louis Napoleon Bonaparte, die Sphinx auf dem franzosischen Kaiserthron, Hamburg,
1860.
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Apropos.

If you were to send the Mittelrheinische Zeitung a note about the
progress of my case, dated ‘Berlin’, you might take the opportuni-
ty of slipping in a word or two about the Eichhoff-Stieber case,™
which was decided on 10 May in the Court of the First Instance in
Berlin. For Eichhoff has been given an eighteen-month sentence
for ‘libelling’ Stieber. The libel suit rested mainly on the
denunciation of Stieber (in the London Hermann) for perjury,
theft, etc., perpetrated by him in the course of the Communist
trial in Cologne (1852).% Below I cite various instances that are
characteristic of the proceedings in the Prussian law couit.

1. Eichhoff’s denunciation rested (except for my pamphlet,?
which he could not, of course, mention) on the reports printed by
the ‘Kilnische Zeitung' during the proceedings in Cologne,” the
authenticity of which has never been challenged either by Stieber
or by anyone else. The court declared these reports to be
tnadmaissible evidence. Whenever it was in the interests of Stieber,
the court allowed as authentic the reports in the Vossische Zeitung®
(probably deriving from Stieber himself), because they had been
declared ‘authentic’ by Signor Stieber. Whenever it went against
the interests of Stieber’s denunciator, the selfsame court declared
the meagre record kept by the clerk of the court to be the only
authentic source.

2. Goldheim, a police official, and Greif, a police licutenant,
Stieber’s chief fellow-culprits and his subordinate tools in the
Communist trial of 1852, were wholly exempted from cross.
exaMINATION because the court did not wish to expose these
gentlemen to the alternative (as the presiding judge? frankly
stated) ‘of either committing perjury or testifying against them-
selves’. On the other hand, their statements were allowed as
evidence for Stieber’s defence.

3. In 1851, Stieber and Greif had got the Prussian police spy
Reuter to break into Oswald Dietz’s house and steal papers, which
(although they were in fact quite irrelevant to the charge '™y were
produced in evidence by Stieber during the Cologne trial. This

4 Revelations Concerning the Communist Trial in Cologne - Reports on the
Communist trial in Cologne were published in the Kilnische Zeitung from 5
QOctober to 13 November 1852, under the title ‘Assisen-Procedur gegen D. Herm.
Becker und Genossen. Anklage wegen hochverriatherischen  Complottes’. -
¢ Reports on the Cologne Communist trial were published in the Kiniglich
privilegirte Berlinische Zeitung von Staats- und gelehrten Sachen (Vossische Zeitung) from
6 October to 16 November 1852, under the title ‘Die Verhandlungen des grossen
Kommunistenprozess vor dem Assisenhofe zu Koln. - 4 Gobel
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theft was one of the counts upon which Eichhoff’s denunciation of
Stieber rested. And now just listen to this! Drenkmann, the Royal
Procurator, enunciated the following brand-new theory of theft:

‘The question as to whether or not the papers were acquired by theft may,” he
said, ‘be left in abeyance; in forming an opinion of the accused, it is of no account.
Had they in fact been acquired by theft, the police official who had thus obtained
them could not be accused of theft in the legal sense, but at most of immoral
conduct. A theft in the legal sense demands a dolus malus? This, however, cannot
. be assumed of police officials who might have instigated such a theft, since they
would have been acting, not for their private advantage, but in the interests of the
State.’

Thus, if a Prussian police official breaks into a house in London
and ‘steals’ from it, he is ‘at most’ committing an immoral action,
but not a crime in law. This is a suspension of comvon Law imposed
upon the English by the Prussian State.

4. Hirsch, in prison in Hamburg, had testified on oath that the
minute-book '® had been fabricated by himself and Fleury under
Greif’s supervision. Why wasn’t Hirsch taken to Berlin to be
cross-examined as a witness there during the trial?

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, Second Russian Edition, Vol. 39,

Moscow, 1966 Published in English for the first

time
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MARX TO ENGELS
IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 28 May 1860
Dear Engels,

The enclosed is from Lassalle.” Let me know by return what you
think I should write and tell him re Fischel.

I do not fall in with his suggestion about Berlin.

Nothing yet from Lommel.

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first

time

4 evil intent - b Lassalle’s letter to ‘Marx of 24 May 1860 suggesting that Marx
should testify at Eichhoff's trial in Berlin. For Marx’s reply see this volume,
pp. 145-55.
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70
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
Manchester, 31 May 1860

Dear Moor,

I return Ephraim Artful® herewith. His proposal re yourself is
truly crazy.” After all, there’s nothing you could say, either, about
what happened in Cologne. However, Ephraim might be of some
use in the matter. At least he has more rLuck than the old women
actually involved at Cologne, who always prefer to endure
everything patiently. But it might also be worthwhile trying to see
if there’s anything to be done from Cologne.

Ad vocem® Fischel, perhaps we’d better tell the fool the more or
less unvarnished truth and give him a bit of a lesson about the
extent to which the word ‘reactionary’ has come to be {just] an
empty phrase in his mouth. You might also take the opportunity
of getting him to explain just why He, Ephraim the Profound,
agrees in effect with our own and Fischel’s ‘anti-Palmerstonianism’.
An enigma-—at least so far. A private set-to between L. and F. in
Berlin can’t possibly concern us, and F. has behaved too well for
us to drop him on some pretext or other just to please L. The
only thing to do, presumably, is to give the Dark Heraclitus? a
mysterious intimation or two to the effect that ‘reactionary’ cuts no
ice in foreign policy, in which field much greater ‘jackasses’ than
Fischel are of service, provided they know all the ropes. How
horrorstruck our far-sighted revolutionary thinker and pragmatic
Royal Prussian court democrat would be, if he heard that
Urquhart proposes to extend the power of the Crown. So nice a
speculative distinction may be drawn, by the way, between this
separate field of rorrion roLicy, on the one hand, and internal
policy, on the other, that you'll certainly enjoy pointing out to him
how, in foreign policy, the subjectively reactionary is, for the
nonce, objectively revolutionary, thereby putting the man’s mind
at rest. Just help the man make the transition and he’ll be satisfied
theoretically, however much our connection with Fischel may rile

# Ferdinand Lassalle’s letter - ¥ See this volume, p. 141. - ¢ As regards - 4 je.
Lassalle. An allusion to his book Die Philosophie Herakleitos des Dunklen von Ephesos.
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him in practice, and rile him the more for the knowledge that it
was Fischel who saw to my pamphlet.”

You might also observe for his benefit how revolutionary a
mode of action it is, first to deprive the Germans, or get others to
deprive them, of their best territory and the very basis of their
national existence on the pretext that the present rulers of that
territory are reactionaries, and then to expect revolution. And it
mightn’t be a bad idea to say something about superstitious belief
in the revolutionary initative of the crapauds” The whole to be
presented in the usual allusive manner so that he’ll have to chew it
over for the space of four weeks and then wipe the slate clean by
writing you a four-page letter to which you won’t reply.

My coming up here on Saturday ¢ was most useful. By Sunday I
had already found out a great deal that is important to
negotiations, and now have the draft contract to study.

Best regards to your wife and children.

Siebel wants to leave. '

Your
F. E.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . X . )
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Ifubhshed in English for the first
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, ume
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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MARX TO EDUARD FISCHEL '*#?

IN BERLIN

[London,] 1 June 1860

Sir,

For the past three weeks I have been suffering from a liver
complaint, which has made it quite impossible for me to write or
work and from which I have not yet wholly recovered. As a result,
I have got into such arrears with my work that the next few weeks
are spoken for, and hence I shall under no circumstances be able to

4 Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - ¥ toads. Engels means the French philistines. - ¢ 26 May
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start contributing immediately to the new newspaper.* Could you
send me one or two numbers of the same for my perusal? And
likewise give me some advice about the princirar Manacers of the new
undertaking? Black, red and gold is a couleur which can now be used
to some effect vis-a-vis other countries.'”

I recommend to you Mr Georg Lommel, 85 rue du Nord, Café
Court, Geneve, for the post of Geneva correspondent of the
paper.

Geneva is now a major seat of Bonapartist intrigue, and
Lommel is well informed. I am convinced that he would agree to
act as your correspondent on very reasonable terms.

Ad vocem® Abel: Many thanks for this discovery.'”’ Who is Abel?
You would greatly oblige me by sending a few more details;
indeed I should like to have this information as soon as possible.

I have doubtess already told you that the Chiet Public
Prosecutor has upheld the Public Prosecutor’s® dismissal of my
libel action on the grounds that no ‘public interest” would be
served thereby.® So the civil action will now be going ahead.

You will have seen in the papers that Reuter, the Jewish
confidence trickster who owns the London telegraphic bureau, was
presented to the Queen.' Quite simply the facts are as follows:
Reuter’s factotum—he himself being barely able to write gram-
matically—is the Viennese refugee Sigmund FEnglinder. This
Englinder was previously in Paris, where he contributed to a
lithographic news bulletin run under the auspices of the then
minister of police®; at the same time, he was a French mouchard"
When the Oriental war’ broke out, he was expelled from Paris
because it had been discovered that he was a Russian spy. He then
came to London where he eventually entered the service of
Reuter, with whom he had already had connections earlier on.
Now, since the entire European press is controlled by Reuter via
his telegraphic bureau, and the telegraphic bureau by the Russian
embassy via Englinder, you will understand why Pam presented
Reuter to the Queen. So far as 1 know, the presentation had
something to do with Russia’s entry into the Austro-Prussian
Telegraphic Union. I have informed Collet of the racis. Perhaps
you for your-own part may be able to make use of them.

I am, Sir,

Your obedient servant,

K. Marx
2 See this volume, p. 137 - ® Re - ¢ Schwarck - 4 Lippe - ¢ See this volume, pp. 129,
131. - f Victoria. See this volume, p. 121.- # Maupas - " police spy - | the Crimean

war (1853-56)
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None of Engels’ pamphlets,® except for one copy, has yet
reached either Engels or myself. It would also seem that the
publisher® has not even inserted the usual publisher’s advertise-
ment in the newspapers.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Published in English for the first
Works, Second Russian Edition, Vol. 30, time
Moscow, 1963
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MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN BERLIN
[London, about 2 june 1860]¢

Dear Lassalle,

For some three weeks past I've been suffering from a liver
complaint, which has prevented me from doing any [kind] ¢ of work,
and which I haven’t completely shaken off yet. This state of affairs
makes me a very poor letter-writer.

Well, before I reply to your letter, just one or two preliminaries.
The Daily Telegraph’s Berlin correspondent is called Abel. Can you
provide me with any particulars about this individual?

Schwarck, the Chief Public Prosecutor, has in turn dismissed the
criminal action against the National-Zeitung on Appeal on the
grounds that no ‘public interest’ would be served thereby. It won't
be long now before the civil action is preferred.

Now for your letter.

I shall not come to Berlin.'"? 1 did not go to Cologne and all 1
knew of the sworn evidence given there by Stieber was derived
from the reports in the Kolnische Zeitung® It is upon those reports
that my critique in the Revelations® is based. Hence I could be of
no use as a witness in this case. If they want to have me testify
about one point or another, I am prepared to make a deposition

2 Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - ® G. Behrend - ¢ Manuscript damaged. - 4 Reports on
the Cologne Communist trial were published by the Kélnische Zeitung in October and
November 1852 under the heading ‘Assisen-Procedur gegen D. Herm. Becker und
Genossen. Anklage wegen hochverritherischen Complottes’. - € Revelations Concern-
ing the Communist Trial in Cologne
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(as apparently has often been done by other refugees) at the
Prussian Embassy in London.

During the early stages of the Eichhoff case Juch, the editor of
the Hermann, appealed to me for help in this respect.’” I gave
him the Revelations, recommended that Schneider II .be sum-
moned as witness from Cologne, and pointed out the nek essity of
questioning Hirsch, who was in gaol in Hamburg. TExe latter
interrogation would seem to have been conducted most ineptly.
Indeed, it would be absolutely essential to convey Hirsch bodily to
Berlin to act as a witness. Only in this event could there be a
proper crossexaminaTioN that would publicly lay bare the whole
disgraceful operation, since Hirsch was fully initiated into these
mysteries of Stieber-Goldheim-Greif-Fleury.

Another essential witness would be Cherval (Joseph Cramer), at
present in Paris. As he did a bolt from Aachen after forging some
bills, Prussia could undoubtedly demand his extradition. But the
government will take good care not to do so. Apart from that, he’s
a French mouchard® and therefore under Bonaparte’s protection.

Most of the other people whom it might be important to
examine are in America. Only one is still over here, a certain de
L’Aspée from Wiesbaden, who is employed as an ivrerereTer by the
English police. I have taken the necessary steps [to arJrange a
meeting [with him] and shall see whether he is willing either to
{travel] to Berlin [or] to submit to questioning at the Prussian
Embassy. In 1853, [he] sent The Times an article denouncing
[Stlieber. The article was suppressed owing to Bunsen’s interven-
tion and did not [appear].

I shall [now] adduce a few points, which you may, perhaps, be
able to put to use. I wrote the Revelations immediately after the
Cologne trial was over. However, I subsequently made further
investigations into this casus, which is of special interest to me. But
first let me say what a capital idea it was of Eichhoff’s to cite the
chief fellow culprits, Goldheim and Greif, as witnesses for the
defence. As things stand, the only way to get at Steber et cie.
would be for the government to institute an inquiry into the
Cologne trial. But it'll take good care not to.

Stieber (see page 10 of my Revelations)® is said to have testified
on oath in Cologne that ‘his attention had been drawn’ to ‘the
conspiracy’s archives’ in the keeping of Oswald Dietz in London by
the copy of ‘the papers found on Nothjung which were sent to

@ police spy - P See present edition, Vol. 11, p. 405.
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him in London from police headquarters in Berlin. A mere
examination of the Cologne records, which must necessarily
contain the papers found on Nothjung, should be enough to
refute this perjured evidence.

The actual state of affairs was as follows: Cherval (Joseph
Criamer) was the Paris correspondent of the Willich-Schapper
League '™ and, as such, corresponded with Oswald Dietz. At the
same time, Cherval was an agent of the Prussian ambassador in
Paris, Prince Hatzfeldt. Not only did he denounce Dietz, as
secretary of his London committee, to Hatzfeldt, he also wrote
Dietz letters that were intended for use as evidence later on.
Stieber and Greif (as Greif himself told Hirsch in Fleury’s presence)
acted on Hatzfeldt’s information. What they found out through
Reuter was where Dietz lived, after which Fleury, on Stieber’s
orders, burgled Dietz’s lodgings accompanied by Reuter. This, too,
is known to Hirsch.

En passant, the following circumstance may be relevant, with
which Mr Hirsch is familiar. Fleury had made exact copies of the
letters stolen at Reuter’s and given them to Hirsch to read. Among
those letters was one from Hanover written by Stechan in which
he mentioned a remittance of 30 talers for the refugees. Stieber
(together with his friend Wermuth in Hanover) altered this to 530
talers for the leaders. Stechan, who, so far as I know, is now in
Edinburgh, could perhaps swear an affidavit to this effect. Stieber
(according to the Kéin. Zeit., sce p. 11 of the Revelations®) further
statcd on oath that the Dietz archives had arrived in Berlin on
5 August 1851, having been sent to him from London. The racris
that Stieber took those ‘archives’ with him from London to Paris
on 20 July 1851. This is a point which the above-mentioned
I’Aspée could, if he so wished, corroborate on oath.

Mr Greif testified on oath in Berlin that he did not know
Hirsch, or knew him only very slightly. The ract is that Hirsch was
introduced to Fleury by Greif at 39 Brewer Street, Golden Square,
the private residence of Alberts (then, as now, secretary to the
Prussian Embassy in London) at that time, after Greif had first got
Hirsch to give him a report on the activities of the revolutionary
emigration. From that time on, Greif, Fleury, and Hirsch worked
together (under the direction of Greif), and were, in particular,
jointly responsible for composing the forged minute-book.

The month of April 1853 found Goldheim and Stieber back in
London wherce they were intent on engineering a link between

4 See present edition, Vol. 11, p. 406.
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Kossuth’s mysterious gunpowder plot and the Berlin conspiracy
(Ladendorf’s).'"” At that time (i.e. many months after the Cologne
trial), Hirsch constantly accompanted them in London and worked
together with them.

Considering that the police have acknowledged their Fleury in
court, let me provide a character sketch of these Prussian agents in
London: The said Fleury is called Krause, and is the son of
Krause the cobbler, who was executed in Dresden some 22 to 25
years ago for the murder of Countess Schénberg and her maid.
Some time after the Cologne trial, this same Fleury-Krause was
convicted of forgery in London and sentenced to two or three
years in the nuiks. Having now served his sentence, he is once
again up to his old activities.

The French plot (complot allemanad-frangais)'®™ was engineered
under Stieber’s direction by Cherval in company with Greif,
Fleury, Beckmann, Sommer and the French spy, Lucien de la
Hodde (under the name of Duprez). At Cherval’s instigation,
Greif (who, like Stieber, swears he does not know the Franco-
Prussian spies Cherval and Gipperich) went to North Germany
where he was to find out the abode of a certain tailor named Tietz
and obtain possession of the letters Cherval had written him on
police instructions. He went to the home of Tietz’s betrothed in
Hamburg, saying he had come ‘as a friend’ of Tietz’s and would
take into safe keeping any potentially dangerous correspondence.
However, the coup misfired.

Greif also corresponded with Maupas, through de la Hodde-
Duprez, about the release of Cherval and Gipperich. No sooner
had Cherval arrived in London than he was taken on by Greif at a
regular salary of £1 10s a week. In particular, Greif sent -him to
Jersey to prepare a major political conspiracy there. Subsequently,
the association between Greif and Cherval came to an end. If
Mr Hirsch so wishes, he can affirm all these matters on oath. They
are important, not only because Greif has again perjured himself,
but also because they concern the relationship between Cherval and
Stieber and the ‘veracity’ of the statements made at Cologne by
Stieber in respect of Cherval. At the very time when Stieber swore
in Cologne that he knew nothing of the whereabouts, etc, of
Cherval (see p. 27 of the Revelations*), Cherval was cooperating
with Greif, who himself was acting on Stieber’s orders. But the
case could be legally proven only, of course, by obtaining
depositions from Hirsch (who might perhaps talk in open court)

4 See present edition, Vol. 11, p- 418.
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and from Cherval (who cannot be got hold of). Needless to say,
Alberts, secretary to the Embassy, won't speak; nor will de la
Hodde, Beckmann, Maupas, etc.

Hirsch and Fleury (the latter had rented a lithographic press at
Stanbury’s Printing Works, Fether [Fetter] Lane, Fleet Street,
London, to that end) had been instructed by Greif to produce
leaflets, such as “To the Rural Proletariat’, “To the Children of the
People’, etc., which Greif sent to the Prussian government as
emanating from the Marx party.

After the sudden ‘disappearance’ of the witness Haupt of
Hamburg in the course of the communist trial at Cologne,
Hinckeldey sent a courier to the Prussian Embassy in London with
the request that someone be found to take over Haupt's role, and
to ‘swear’ Haupt’s denunciations before the Assizes. The Police
Presidium, he said, would give a reward of a thousand talers. In
his letter, Hinckeldey wrote that the very existence of the political
police depended upon the outcome of this trial. Hirsch, having
first consulted Fleury (out of the ‘noblest’ motives, as he himself
subsequently said), declared himself willing. Everything was well in
train when Fleury returned with tidings of the Prussian Embassy’s
refusal. A further communication from Hinckeldey read:

‘The State Prosecutor hopes that thanks to the happy constitution of the jury it
will be possible 1o get a verdict of guilty even without extraordinary measures, and he’
(Hinck.) ‘therefore asks you not to trouble yourselves further.’

For the same reason, the order previously sent to Beckmann,
the Prussian spy in Paris, bidding him come to Cologne and
corroborate Stieber’s statements regarding the complot allemand-
frangais was countermanded.

But now we come to the most curious part of the story, which is
also perfectly known to Mr Hirsch and is typical of Stieber no less
than of Goldheim.

Fleury had learned that I intended to have the actual
handwriting of the alleged signatories of the minutes (W. Lieb-
knecht, Rings, and Ulmer) officially authenticated in Londor. He
knew that a refugee called Becker lived in the same house
as Willich. He therefore wrote the following letter in Becker’s
name:

“To the Royal Presidium in Berlin;
dated from London
‘It is the intention of Marx and his friends here to discredit the signatures on
the League Minutes by baving handwriting specimens legally auchenticated. These
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specimens are to be produced in the Court of Assizes as the really authentic ones.
‘Everyone familiar with English laws knows that on this point they can be
manipulated and that a person who vouches for the authentiaity of a thing does
not actually give any true guarantee.
‘The person who gives you this information does not recoil from giving you his
name in a matter like this where the truth is at stake. Becker, 4 Litchfield Street.’

Stieber had declared before the Assizes at Cologne that he had
had the minute-book for a fortnight (before producing it in court),
and had duly deliberated before putting it to use; he further
declared that it had reached him through a courier, Greif.
Mr Goldheim, on the other hand, in a letter to the Prussian Embassy
in London, said:

‘The minute-book was produced so late only in order to avoid scrutiny as to its
authenticity.

The letter signed ‘Becker’ was addressed to the Police Presidium
in Berlin. Had it really emanated from Becker, therefore, it must
have gone to Berlin. Instead, the letter went to Goldheim, the
police official, at the Frankfurter Hof in Cologne, and a cover to
that letter to the Police Presidium in Berlin containing a note:
‘Herr Stieber in Cologne will give a complete explanation as to its
use.” Thus, Stieber knew to what end the letter had been forged.
Moreover, Fleury had written expressly to Goldheim on the
subject.

Thus, between Fleury, Goldheim, Stieber and Prussian Police
Presidium there was tacit collusion over the forgery.

(Stieber did not make use of the letter, having already been
compelled to drop the minute-book since, independently of the
authéntications provided by me, Schneider II had not only
discovered other signatures of Liebknecht’s and Rings’ in Cologne,
but had also concluded from a much earlier letter of mine that the
forger was Hirsch. Stieber got wind of the fact that Schneider had
compared Liebknecht’s, etc., signatures at the Record Office, and
that other counsel had done the same. It was then that, at the
following session, he came out with the imaginary H. Liebknecht
(see pp. 38-40 of Revelations?).)

Stieber knew the minute-book to be a fake. Why otherwise
should he fear authentication of the genuine signatures?

On 29 October, Goldheim arrived in London. Stieber had sent
him ithere to confer on the spot with Fleury and Greif and devise

a See present edition, Vol. 11, pp. 427-29.
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some coup that might save the minute-book. He had to return
empty-handed, having told Fleury that, rather than compromise
the chiefs of police, Stieber was resolved, if needs be, to expose
him, Fleury.

As a last recourse, Fleury now brought Hirsch a specimen of
handwriting for him to use to copy out a statement, sign the latter
with Liebknecht’s name, and then attest it before the Lorp Mavor
while falsely declaring himself (Hirsch) to be Liebknecht. On
handing Hirsch the said specimen to be copied, Fleury told him
that the handwriting was that of the person who had written the
minute-book, and that Goldheim had brought it (the specimen)
back from Cologne with him.

(Hence it follows that the minute-book preduced in Cologne was
not the same as had been written by Hirsch and Fleury. Stieber
himself had had it copied. The chief difference between it and the
one fabricated by Fleury and Hirsch—a few insignificant altera-
tions apart—lay in the fact that, whereas the minutes provided by
Fleury had been unsigned, signatures had been appended to those
submitted by Stieber.)

Hirsch copied out the statement in handwriting as similar as
possible to that of the specimen. (This last was still in his
possession when he left London.) The statement was to the effect
that the undersigned, i.e. Liebknecht, declared the authentication
of his signature obtained by Marx and Co. to be false, and this, his
signature, to be the only genuine one. While en route to the Loro
Mavor, Hirsch declared that he would not take an oath before
him, whereupon Fleury said he would do so himself. First he
called in at the Prussian consulate (where, of course, he was
well known) and got the Prussian consul to endorse his handwrit-
ing (as that of Liebknecht). Then, together with Hirsch, he betook
himself to the Loro Mavor for the purpose of attestation. The Lorp
Mavor, however, asked for guarantees, which Fleury was unable to
provide, and thus no oath was taken. (One day later—but trop
tard*—Fleury obtained credentials from a lawyer.)

All this dirty business came to light in an affidavit Hirsch swore
before Jardine, the Bow Street magistrate. The affidavit was sent
to Gobel, the president of the Appellate Court, and two copies
went off simultaneously to Schneider II and the lawyer Esser.

Whether Hirsch can be conveyed bodily from Hamburg to
Berlin to testify in open session and confront Stieber-Goldheim-
Greif, I cannot say. The present régime being what it is, there can

2 tgo late
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be no question of getting hold of Cherval—now, what is more, an
avowed ‘civiliser’ and ‘LiBeraTOR’.

In the case of my own testimony, | could not, of course, without
being guilty of all manner of indiscretions, in any way show how
one fact or another had come to my knowledge. Moreover, such
evidence would not constitute proof.

The trial would be altogether straightforward were the govern-
ment de bonne foi® As things are, it is most difficult to conduct.

Now I come to Fischel.”

My relations with David Urquhart and his followers (1 won't say
party because, aparf from the sect which holds him to be a
prophet in all disciplines, Urquhart can, in his own proper domain
of roreen roucy, boast supporters among all English parties, from
the Tories to the Chartists) have been amicable since the
appearance, in 1853, of my first anti-Palmerston pamphlet.© Ever
since, there has been a constant interchange, they providing me
with information, I making unpaid contributions to their Free Press
{e.g. my Revelations of the diplomatic history of the 18th century, or
again, the Progress of Russia in Central Asia,'™ etc.), and placing at
their disposal my personal knowledge of Russian agents such as
Bangya, etc. Now, Fischel is the Urquhartites’ recognised and, as it
were, official agent in Berlin and my knowledge of his activities
there is confined to what 1 have heard about the Portfolio.”® This
was how I came into contact with Fischel (it was only by chance
that I ran into him at a London newspaper office, on which
occasion I asked him to convey my regards to you). He has carried
out various commissions for myself and Engels in Berlin. We have
never exchanged so much as a word, either verbally or in writing,
on the subject of internal policy, nor for that matter have I done
so with Urquhart since the time when I told him once and for all
that I was a revolutionist, and he retorted no less frankly that all
revolutionists were agents or pures of the Petersburg cabinet.

In the letters we have exchanged with Fischel he has always
- observed the utmost discretion and confined himself solely to the
one field of foreign policy in which we are in accord with the
Urquhartites. '

You will have read Urquhart’s writings, and hence it would be
otiose for me (aside from the strain already involved in writing so
long a letter in my present state of health) to embark on an
analysis of this highly complex figure here. He is, I grant you,

2 in good faith - P See this volume, pp. 136-37, 141-45. - < Lord Palmerston -
d Presumably that of The Free Press.
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subjectively reactionary (romantic) (though not, indeed, in the
sense of any real reactionary party but, as it were, metaphysically
s0); this in no way precludes the movement in foreign policy, of
which he is the head, from being objectively revolutionary.

The fact that some of his German followers such as Bucher,
Fischel, etc. (I don’t know the latter’s Moskowitertum, but I know
what’s in it without reading it), have chosen to adopt some of his
‘Anglo-Saxon’ fads-—which, by the by, are not without a kind of
perverse critical sense—, is to me a matter of complete indiffer-
ence, just as in a war against Russia, say, it would be a matter of
indifference to you whether, in firing on the Russians, the motives
of your neighbour in the firing-line were black, red and gold or
revolutionary. Urquhart is a power, of which Russia is afraid. He is
the only official personage in England who has the courage and
honesty to affront pusLic ormion. He’s the only one of them who is
incorruptible (whether by money or ambition). Finally, and strange
to say, I have so far encountered none but honest men among his
followers, and hence feel bound to regard Fischel as such until I
have proof of the contrary.

As for F.’s relations with the Duke of Gotha,” I have very good
reason to believe that they are not venal. Seeing that this Gotha
chap belongs to the English dynasty, which Urqubart is using
against Palmerston and ministerial usurpation generally (Why
doesn’t anyone ever shoot at cabinet ministers?” Humboldt asks,
presaging such usurpation), what could suit him beiter than to
promote anti-Russian and anti-Palmerston sentiment in Germany
in his (Gotha’s) name? This is why Fischel’s pamphlet, Despoten und
Revolutiondre, was translated into English as The Duke of Coburg’s
Pamphlet, and was thought important enough by Palmerston to
warrant a personal reply in the form of a pamphlet (anonymous),
which has greatly compromised him.'” For Palmerston had hitherto
made the unfortunate House of Coburg the scapegoat for his
Russophilia, and the pamphlet compelled him to abandon this racse
PRETEXT.

It is very possible, indeed probable, that Fischel’s anti-
Palmerstonianism is of little significance in Berlin. On the other
hand, so far as England (and thus par ricochet® Germany) is
concerned, it is important in that this controversy is being skilfully
exploited by the Urquhartites and magnified into the German view
of Palmerston, for the furtherance of the English controversy.

4 Ernst II - » indirecdy
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Hence, in the war that we, together with the Urquhartites, are
conducting against Russia, Palmerston and Bonaparte, and in
which people of all parties and classes in every capital of Europe as
far as Constantinople are playing their part, Fischel, too, is a
component. On the other hand, I have never exchanged so much
as a syllable with Bucher, because to do so would have been
pointless. Were he living in Berlin instead of London, it would be
quite a different matter.

Should we enter into a revolutionary phase in Germany, this will,
of course, put an end to diplomacy—of a kind, by the by, that
entails not the least concession on either side nor even a shadow of
pretence. And even then this English connection will be useful to
us.

Come to that, it goes without saying that, in foreign policy,
there’s little to be gained by using such catchwords as ‘reactionary’
and ‘revolutionary’. In Germany now there is no such thing as a
revolutionary party, and to me the most loathsome form of reaction
is Royal Prussian court democracy as practised, say, by the
National-Zeitung and also, to some extent (their acclaim of that
scoundrel Vincke, the Regent,® etc.) by the Volks-Zeitung.

At all events, the Urquhartites have the advantage of being
‘educated’ in foreign policy, so that the ignorant members obtain
their inspiration from the educated ones; the advantage, too, of
pursuing a definite goal, the fight against Russia, and being
engaged in a life and death struggle with that mainstay of Russian
diplomacy, Downine Streer aT Lonoon.'™ Let them imagine, if they
wish, that this struggle will result in the establishment of
‘Anglo-Saxon’ conditions. It is up to us revolutionaries to go on
using them so long as we have need of them. This does not
prevent us from actually knocking them on the head wherever
they threaten to frustrate our internal policy. The Urquhartites
have never reproached me for also writing under my own name
in the Chartist newspaper that was their bugbear untl its
demise—Ernest Jones’s People’s Paper. E. Jones laughed at
Urquhart’s oddities, ridiculed them in his paper and yet, in that
same paper, acknowledged his outstanding worth in the matter of
FOREIGN POLICY.

Finally, despite his fanatical hatred of the French Revolution
and everything ‘universal’, Urquhart’s romanticism is exceedingly
liberal. The freedom of the individual, if in a very topsy-turvy

a William, Prince of Prussia
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way, is to him the be-all and end-all. It is true that, in order to
achieve it, he dresses up the ‘individual’ in all manner of ancient

garb.
Salut.
Your
K. M.
First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene  Briefe und Schriften, Bd. III. . . . .
Stuttgart-Berlin, 1922 Published in English for the first

time

73
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
(Llondon,] 2 June 1860

Dear Engels,

I have written Izzy asour ten pages, eight of them on the
Cologne trial and two on Fischel.* It was difficult enough for me,
because I'm still not fit and am dosing myself constantly.

It's really sickening. Lommel advised me of the despatch of the
parcel by rail [a few]® days ago.'” It ought to have been here long
since.

Fischel has written to tell me that the Daily Telegraph’s
correspondent in Berlin is a certain Abel.

Have had a letter from Schily. From it I see that Siebel has
notified him of the arrival of your pamphlets® in Manchester. I
shall have to send off Schily’s copy via Rheinlinder. I must also
have one copy to use for my own pamphlet.®

Could you let me have something short on the Garibaldi affair
for the Tribune by Wednesday<? If that’s not possible, by Friday.!

Salut.

Your
K. M.

2 See previous letter. - » manuscript damaged - ¢ Savoy, Nice and the Rhine - 9 Herr
Vogt-€ 6 June-f On about 7 June, Engels wrote the article ‘Garibaldi in
Sicily”.

7558
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Apropos. It transpires from Schily’s letter that Moses*® is also
correspondent of the Espérance (and so Bonapartist that one
Frenchman actually broke off his friendship with him) and of the
Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. time

XXII, Moscow, 1929

74
MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE

IN PARIS
{London,] 2 June 1860

My dear Sir,

My protracted silence was owed to two circumstances. On my
return from Manchester I was overwhelmed with business.
Afterward, 1 fell sick. I am still under medical treatment and little
apt for writing. ‘

As to your affair with Mr Engels, the delay was caused by a
second sudden departure for Germany having become necessary
on his part.® On his return for Manchester he passed through
London and told me that he would immediately settle the little
bill. He regretted not having been able to prove more useful to
you, but had not thought of charging you with the expenses
incurred by the sending back of the wines.®

I have read your book © with much pleasure and profit. I concur
in the main views you take of the conditions necessary for' the
restoration of Hungary, but I dissent from the apology passed-on
Bonaparte and Palmerston. The latter has, in 1848-9, betrayed
Hungary, as well as Italy. He had before acted in the same way in
regard to Poland; he, afterwards, treated in the same way
Circassia. He is still what he was since 1829—a Russian agent,
bound to the Petersburg cabinet by ties it is not in his power to cut
through. Russia, of course, wants the destruction of the Austrian

a Moses Hess - P See this volume, p. 134. - © La Questin hongroise (1848-1860), Paris,
1860.
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Empire, but what she not wants is the formation of the constituent
elements of that empire into independent and self-sustaining
states. A true reconstitution of Hungary would even more stand in
the way of Russian Eastern diplomacy than tottering, vacillating
and frightened Austria. 1 should have wished, in your own
interest, and that of your country, that you had not reprinted the
memorial to Palmerston,’” not spoken of the true interest of
Russia, and avoided even alluding to the dismemberment of
Turkey. As it is, you have estranged exactly that portion of
English politicians which was most willing to do you justice, and
was least influenced by Kossuth’s sycophants. (Kossuth has in these
latter times given out-—through his agents—and even succeeded
in forcing the opinion into some weekly papers, that you were
intriguing against him, because he was a Republican, in principle
at least, while you belonged to the ‘Constitutional and Aristocratic
party’.)

You excuse the liberty I have taken in frankly stating the points
on which I cannot but dissent from you. The interest I take in
your writings and your doings will, I hope, serve as a sufficient
excuse. When will you come again over to London?

Yours truly
A. Williams?

A propos. Perczel answered me in a letter in which he
acknowledges the truth of the somewhat eccentric compliments I
showered upon him, but at the same time very politely declines
giving the explanations asked for." His letter seems written in
a rather melancholic, melodramatic, and depressed mood of
mind.

As a curiosity I may still tell you that a Professor at the
University of Moscow has held, during the past winter, a lecture
on the first part of the ‘criticism of political economy’ published by
myself.'™

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English), in Revue d’histoire com-
parée, t. 1V, No. 1-2, Budapest, 1946

2 An alias uscd by Marx in some of his letters. - P See this volume, p. 111.

T*
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75
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 14 June 1860

Dear Engels,

Can you let me bave some money by Monday*®? Altogether 1
have laid out asour £13 on the lawsuit and the Vogt affair up till
now, and my being unwell has prevented me from doing any
articles for the past three weeks.

Siebel left yesterday.

Very many thanks for your portrait.

I have something most important politically to tell you (tomor-
row). I cannot write any more today as a visitor is waiting for me
downstairs.

Your
K. M.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII,

Moscow, 1929 Published in English for the first

time
76

MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
{London,] 16 June 1860

Dear Frederick,

The £10 safely received. Best Thanks.

Your portrait is splendid. You shall have a similar one of me.

The stuff from Lommel hasn’t arrived yet.® When he com-
plained, he was told that a parcel of this kind (for economy
reasons he had sent it par petite vitesse) always takes several weeks.

The following is an extract from Lommel’s last letter:

2 18 June - b See this volume, p. 155. - < by goods



76. Marx to Engels. 16 June 1860 159

‘You will have seen the Augsburg Allgemeine Zeitung of 8 June. Reading
between the lines, one perceives in its Berne report, presumably written by
Tscharner, co-editor of the Bund, a denunciation by the Vogtians to their lord and
master in Paris and thence, indirectly, to the Federal authorities in Berne, likewise
to Germany's princely courts. It's the same old tale of conspiracy—German
demagogues trying to stir up trouble between France and Germany in order to
make possible a central republic. Vogtian intrigue no longer cuts any ice at all, either
in Federal circles or in Geneva; nevertheless, it still appears to have some effect on the
limited intelligence of the German princes. This conspiratorial bogey held up to them
by Badinguet %% is actually said to have induced the timid fellows to grant him the
audience in Baden-Baden he so ardently desired.!®3 For the past fortnight the
Allgemeine has been quietly discarding the choicest of the notes I sent it from Savoy
and Turin, and Vogt, who returned here ten days ago, has told a worker that a stop
will soon be put to the activites of the fellows responsible for the scrawls in the
German papers and that people will be in for more surprises before long.’

A pamphlet by About has now come out in Paris: Napoléon I11 et
la Prusse.® In the first place sorr sawper for Germany. Her great
men, he says, are all of them nousenoLp worps in France, e.g.
‘Goethe, Schiller, Humboldt, Vogt, Beethoven, Heine, Liebig, etc.’
France is completely disinterested, although constantly provoked.
Then came some rubbish about German unity being brought
about with the help of France. Then a highly superficial review of
conditions obtaining in Prussia at present. (Even the Niegolewski
affair is discussed at length!'®*) The only way she can save herself
is to side with France’s ‘democratic principle’ against Austria’s
feudalism. In other words, this democratic principle consists in
basing princely dictatorship on ‘suffrage universel’. Satis superque!’

However, it’s capital that Royal Prussian court democracy should
now be getting into a nasty fix; let’s hope that the Prince Regent,
too, will soon have compromised himself sufficiently.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,

Stuttgart, 1913 Published in English for the first

time

a2 Marx means Ed. Abouts pamphlet La Prusse en 1860, Paris, 1860. -
b More than enough! - ¢ William, Prince of Prussia
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77
ENGELS TO MARX'™

IN LONDON
[Manchester,] 20 June 1860

Dear Moor,

Amicus® Lommel would certainly appear 1o pRaw RATHER LARGELY ON
His MaciNaTion In ascribing the chief part in the Baden-Baden
business to the Bonapartist denunciations.” But it's undoubtedly
quite correct that there’s something behind the business and that
Vogt, Bonaparte and Co. are also resorting to this stratagem.

How nice it is that the Little Germans’ National Association-
mongering® should now be opportunely depicted in About’s
pamphlet® as virtually promoting Bonapartist interests. Presuma-
bly our friend Izzy will soon be making a change of front now; as
a result of this pamphlet, the gentdemen will either reveal
themselves as Bonapartists or else find themselves in a considera-
ble dilemma with that Prussian Germany of theirs.

I happened to come by the old Danish Kjimpe-Viser?; very nice
stuff in places along with a great deal of rubbish. Here is one that
Uhland has translated '*¢:

Herr Oluf han rider saa vide
Alt for hans brollup at byde,
Men dandsen den gaaer saa let gjennem.

Der dandse fire, der dandse fem,
Ellerkongens datter rekker Haanden frem.
Velkommen, Herr Oluf, lad blive din fig
Bi hidet, og trid her i dandsen med mig.

Jeg ikke tor, jeg ikke maa,

Imorgen skal mit bréllup staa.

Hor du, Herr Oluf, trdd dandsen med mig,
To bukkeskinds stovle de giver jeg dig.

2 Friend - P See this volume, p. 159. - “La Prusse en 1860, Paris, 1860. - 4 Epic songs.
Engels presumably refers to [Syv, P.,] Et Hundrede udvalde Danske Viser, om allehaande
markelige Krigs-Bedrivd og anden selsom Eventyr, som sig her udi Riget ved gamle Kemper,
navnkundige Konger, og ellers fornemme Personer begivet haver, af Arilds Tid til denne
né@rv@rende Dag..., Kigbenhavn, 1787.
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To bukkeskinds stévle, sider vel om been,
Forgyldene spore derom spend.

Jeg ikke tor, jeg ikke maa, imorgen etc.

Hor du, Herr Oluf, trid dandsen med mig,
En silke skjorte giver jeg dig.

En silke skjorte hviid og fiin
Den blegte min moder veg maaneskin.

Jeg ikke tor, jeg ikke maa etc.

Hor du, Herr Oluf, trid dandsen med mig,
Et hoved af guld det giver jeg dig.

Et hoved af guld maa jeg vel faa,
Men dandsen med dig tor jeg saa.

Og vil du ikke dandsen med mig,
Sot og sygdon f{olje dig.

Hun slog honom mellem sine Hirde,
Aldrig var han slagen rirre.

Hun lofte honom paa sin genger réd,
Og riid nu-hjem til din fistems.

Der han kom til borgeleed,
Hans moder staar og hviler ved.

Hor du, Herr Oluf, kjir sénnen min
Hvor bir du nu saa bleg en kind?

Jeg maa vel bire kinden bleg,
Jeg saa viret i Elle konens leg.

Hor du, Herr Oluf, min sén saa grud,
Hvad skal jeg svare din unge brud?

I skal sige, jeg er udi lunden,
Aat prove min Hest og saa mine Hunde.

Aarle om morgen, dag det var,
Der kom den brud med brudeskar.

De skjinkte mjod, de skjinkte viin;
Hvor er, Herr Oluf, brudgom min?

Han er gangen udi lunden
At prove sin Hest og saa sine Hunde.

161
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Hun tog det skarlagen rdd,
Der laae Herr Oluf og var déd.a

¢ Herr Oluf fares both far and wide,
To fetch the wedding-guests he doth ride.
Maidens dance on the green land,

Four and five, a blithe band.

The EIf King's daughter gives him her hand.
Welcome, Herr Oluf, why wouldst thou flee?
Step into the ring and dance with me.

But dance 1 neither will nor may.
Tomorrow dawns my wedding day.

Oh list, Herr Oluf, come dance with me,
Two buckskin boots Tll give to thee.

Two buckskin boots to fit you well,
Two gilded spurs for a magic spell.

But dance 1 neither will nor may, etc.

Oh list, Herr Oluf, come dance with me,
A silken shirt I'll give to thee.

A shirt all shining white so fine.
My mother bleached it with pale moonshine.

But dance [ neither will nor may, etc.

Oh list, Herr Oluf, come dance with me,
A pile of gold I'll give to thee.

Gladly I'd take your gold away,
But dance 1 neither dare nor may.

An thou, Herr Oluf, dance not with me,
Sickness and plague shall follow thee.

And then she touched him on the chest.
Never such pain had cluwched his breast.

She helps him, half-swooning, his mount to bestride:
Now get thee hence to thy fair bride.

As 1o his own door he drew near,
His mother was trembling there with fear.

Tell me quickly, oh quickly, my son,
Why are thy looks so pale and wan?

How should they not be pale and wan?
>Tis from the Elf King’s realm I come.

Oh list, dear son I love so well,
‘What to your bride am I to teliz

Say to the forest T am bound,
To exercise my horse and hound.

Next morning, when it was scarcely day,
There came the bride with her company.

They poured the mead, they poured the wine.
Where is Herr Oluf, bridegroom mine?
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I like this much better than Uhland’s overpolished translation.
But another one about ‘Sir Jon’* is even nicer.

Your
F. E.

First published, with the verses omitted, Printed according to the original
in Der Briefwechsel xwischen F. Engels und
K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, 1913 and in
full in: Marx and Engels, Works, First
Russian  Edition, Vol. XXII, Moscow,
1929

Published in English in full for the
first dme

78
MARX TO JOHANN PHILIPP BECKER
IN PARIS
[London,] 23 June® 1860

Dear Becker,

Would you be so kind as to forward the enclosed letter to
Lommel?** 1 am sending it through you because I only have an
address for Lommel in Geneva which no longer appears to be
certain. At any rate, in his last few letters L. has neither mentioned
the letters I sent him, nor answered my inquiry regarding the failure
to arrive (should have come weeks ago) of a parcel he had advised
me of.

Give Schily my kindest regards. I would ask you to arrange the
letter Ranickel wrote him to be sent me as soon as possible. ©

It was not until a day or two ago that I became capable of work
again and I am still to a certain extent convalescent.

The publishers of the Deutsche Zeitung, which is to come out in
Berlin at the beginning of July, have approached me through a
third person® about contributions. 1 have not yet given them a

He’s ridden hence, for the farest bound,
To exercise his horse and hound.

The bride uplifted the scarlet red.
There lay Herr Oluf, and he was dead.
(Translated by Alex Miller)

a See this volume, p. 375. - P In the manuscript, mistakenly: January. - © Marx
quotes an extract from Ranickel’s letter to Schily in Herr Vogt, present edition, Vol. 17,
p 5% -4 Fduard Fischel
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definite answer. I am first asking for further particulars concern-
ing the new organ’s staff and politics. However, from the
advertisements that have so far appeared in the papers it seems to
me to be ‘pro-National Association™™ and, or so a friend in Berlin®
writes, it might be feasible to exert a strong external influence on
its stand. Write and let me know if you and Schily would act as
joint correspondents for the paper, which evidently has fonds,
should you get an invitation to this effect either direct from Berlin
or via London! I should like to have an answer about the matter by
return, because I would not, of course, drop any hints to this effect
in Berlin unless I was certain of your accepting in Paris.

One merit of About’s pamphlet® is that the current Gotha
catch-phrases ' are here officially adopted for Bonapartist use.

I haven’t seen Sasonow over here.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

I would ask you to send-on the letter to Lommel as soon as
possible.

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . A . .
Mgscow, 118934 Hssian Bdihon, Yo ]fubhshed in English for the first
time
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
[Manchester, about 25 June 1860]

Dear Moor,

Did you see in the Kaolnische Zeitungs ‘Miscellaneous News' of
Thursday or Friday® that Izzy has once again contrived to be
thrown out of the Viktoria Theatre? :

To get himself talked about, I can see the chap keeping
someone to give him an annual box on the ears, come the time

a Probably Fischel. - P Ed. About, La Prusse en 1860. - < 21 and 22 June
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when his own Jewish effrontery no longer does the trick.
Meanwhile, his brilliant talent for being belaboured and chucked
out remains unimpaired.

Many regards to the ramiwy.

Your
F. E.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . . i :
Moscow, 1929 P'ubllshed in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
{London,] 25 June® 1860

Dear Frederick,

I am still ‘very poorly’, as red Wolff" used to say, though for the
past week or so I've no longer been dosing myself. However, I am
making ‘forced marches’ every day on Allen’s orders and shall
doubtless be fit again before the week is out.

Lina® i1s with us on ‘holiday’. Will be here for asour a month.
Still no news from Siebel.

I would be grateful if, by Friday or Saturday,! you could [write]
an article for the Tribune either on the perences or EncrLanp, or on
Garibaldi or on Indian Trape.® Since Wilson became the Innian
CranceLior or rHE ExcreQuer, the wretched Economist has said virtually
nothing about India. Nor should you forget (although it won't yet be
necessary this week) to let me have asour a quarto page or so on the
military significance of Bohemia to Germany or rather Russia, to
whom Vogt proposes to cede her.

Apropos: .

Have just received Pro domo und Pro patria gegen Karl Vogt by
Jakob Venedey, Hanover 1860 (40 pages). Considering this

@ In the manuscript, mistakenly: July. - ® Ferdinand Wolff - < Lina Schéler - 4 29 or
30 June - ¢ See this volume, p. 168. - f in his Studien zur gegenwdrtigen Lage Europas,
Geneva and Berne, 1859
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fellow’s point of view it is not altogether bad. Has some racts about
Vogt’s cowardice.

Jakob’s passages relatmg to ourselves are as follows.

A friend writes obligingly:

‘It is disgraceful that in his triumph over the Augsburg Zeitung® and
the “Brimstone Gang”,%% this man Vogt should also drag Venedey in his wake’
(p- 4.

‘No more than a word or two pro domo Could Karl Vogt have forgotten that all
the stale, insipid morsels he dished up to his readers in his Erklarungc against
me—*“noble Jakob”, “blond soul”, “imperial teardrop” and sundry other epithets—
had been dished up ten years ago fresh, fragrant and seasoned with the spice of
wit by Marx, Engels and company in the Rhenish newspaper.d Do I have to remind
him that in the self-same article, ‘Der Reichsregent’,® which the Augsburger
[Allgemeine Zeitung] used as the point of departure for its accusations against Vogt,
this “dirty gang, a handful of malicious vagabonds in London”, as Vogt describes
it, gave batte along lines identical to those adopted by Vogt in his Erkldrung
against myself? Nevertheless, Karl Vogt did not feel that this prevented him from
accusing me of having borrowed from Messrs Marx, Engels and company the
“defamatory statements” 1 made about him. Vogt is well aware that, in jibing at
me, he is simply repeating their words’ (p. 7).

‘This pamphlet of Vogt'sf about his lawsuit has all the air of a triumphal march
and, indeed, Karl Vogt—not that he himself appears the more justified in
consequence—has consigned to London in complete disarray the A. A. and
likewise the “London Brimstone Gang'’ (p. 6).

Voila tout.®
Salut.

Your

[On the back of the letter:]

Fred. Engels, 7 Southgate, St. Mary’s, Manchester.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original

F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuttgart, . . . .
1913 Published in English for the first

time

a The Augsburg Aligemeine Zeitung - ® Pro domo (or de domo sua)—on behalf of
myself, concerning my own affairs. The phrase derives from a speech by Cicero, ‘De
domo sua ad pontifices’. - € in the Schweizer Handels-Courier, No. 162 (extraordinary
supplement), 16 June 1859 - 4 Presumably the Neue Rheinische Zeitung. -
¢ [E. Biscamp,] ‘Der Reichsregent’, Das Volk, No. 2, 14 May 1859. - { Mein Prozess
gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859. - & That’s all.
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81
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 26 June 1860

Dear Frederick,

I didn’t read about Izzy’s adventure.?

You will see from the enclosed letter from Weber how rottenly
the Prussian scoundrels are behaving.'® It now seems that there is
nothing to be expected from the High Court, either.

What splendid jurisprudence! First, I'm forbidden my ‘libel
action’ because it is not in the interests of the Prussian
government. And then the ‘action for injurid is not allowed
to proceed in public because there is no ‘indictable offence’ to
hand. This is tantamount to ‘pleading’ on behalf of the National-
Zeitung.

How liberal, by contrast, Bavaria turned out to be with regard to
Vogt.'" That’s ‘Prussian progress’ for you.

Get Heckscher to publish another short notice in the Reform.
The way the Prussians handled the case must at least be brought
to the attention of the public.

From the evidence I sent Weber and which Weber included in
his indictment it was apparent to the scoundrelly gang that the
National-Zeitung would inevitably have been convicted had the case
been allowed to ‘come up’. Hence all this dirty chicanery.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XX1I, Moscow, 1929

Published in English for the first
time

2 See this volume, p. 164.
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82
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

Manchester, 26 June 1860
7 Southgate

Dear Moor,

I's highly problematical whether I shall be able to do the
article®; my brother-in-law,® who is in London at this moment, has
declared himself for tomorrow or the day after.

So, don’t count on it too much. I could at most speculate about
Garibaldi’s chances on the mainland; my knowledge of Indian
trade wouldn’t run to an article.

Your
F. E.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . . . .
Mg;owylrlsgggussxan o, vo Publxshed in English for the firse
time
83

ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON
[Manchester, 27 June 1860]

Dear Moor,

Let me have the enclosed back; I shall immediately write a few
lines for Siebel about the Berlin affair, and send them to him with
my reply to be passed on. The same applies to Heckscher.c

I shall see if 1 can stll do Bohemia today.? It is close on
8 o'clock and I'm still at the office. Whether 1 shall be able to do
anything on Garibaldi tomorrow, I don’t know yet; 1. no material,
2. my brother-in-law.” Enfin,© I shall do my best. '

# See this volume, p. 165. - ® Karl Emil Blank - ¢ See this volume, p. 167. - 4 ibid.,
p. 165. - ¢ In short ’
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So Izzy appears in public with Vogt and is secretly our ally.'
Cela n’est pas mal.* Write to Meissner at once.'!

Your
F. E.
First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . X
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first

Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, tame

Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

84
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,} 28 June [1860]

Dear Frederick,

Your enclosure returned herewith. I shall write to Meissner.'"

I already knew about the comical affair of Lassalle yesterday, for
the National-Zeitung carried a highly eulogistic Leaper about the
admirable Studien.®

What do you make of the infamous conduct of the Prussian
government?'®

Salut.

Your
K. M.

By the by, you should now put your name on everything. It
was a disadvantage from the very start that the thing® should have
appeared anonymously.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,

Stuttgart, 1913 Published in English for the first

time

a Not bad, that. -  See previous letter. - ¢ Engels’ Savoy, Nice and the Rhine.
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85
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

[Manchester, after 28 June 1860]
Dear Moor,

Encl. an article on the rirLe parade®; the subject occurred to me
just when I was about to despair. Go over it thoroughly; I haven’t
the time to do so myself.

Those Prussians really do have a ‘nice style’ just now. Since the
action against the National-Zeitung could only serve to introduce a
strident note of discord into the general constitutional harmony,
the case must be stopped at all costs. The judges, ‘and there still
are such in Berlin’,'" are being got at and I'm quite positive that
Mr Weber has been got at, too. It’s quite plain to me from the
whole tone of his letters. All the more need, then, to press on with
the pamphlet” so that the noble Prussians can be shown that they
are not, after all, able to suppress such things. Those swine. Might
it be, perhaps, that they quietly affected such a liberal attitude
towards me,” in order to behave all the more abominably to
yourself?

If possible, T shall do Bohemia this evening.® Incidentally, you
should devise the pamphlet—difficult though this may be—in
such a way as to make it absolutely impossible for the Prussians to
ban it. And above all be quick, for it is probable that between now
and 1861 the daydream of peace will gain ascendency and hence
interest in high treason wane. Do try and be a bit superficial for
once, so that you get it done in time.

Your

F. E.

Lommel’s parcel there yet?'”

Lupus leaves next week for a month’s holiday in Ireland, etc.,
etc.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Worky First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929

Published in English for the first
time

2 F. Engels, ‘The British "Volunteer Force’. - b K. Marx, Herr Vogt. - < See this
volume, p. 112. - 9 ibid., p. 165.
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86
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

{London,] 9 july [1860]
Dear Frederick,

As regards Meissner, the thing strikes me as somewhat dubious,
since he is pretty well hand in glove with Vogt and Co. At any
rate, I shan’t send him a manuscript® unless he concludes a
contract beforehand.

What about Bohemia? 1 must have it now, otherwise I shall be
held up. Anyway, it need only be brief, you know.”

I should also like you to devote a few sentences to a discussion
of the military inanities contained in the following utterances of
Falstaftf Vogt’s.

1. This man, who has made such a detailed study of the
relationship between ‘Energy and Matter’,"”® maintains that, within
their present boundaries, the United Danubian Principalities are
capable—qua independent kingdom—of forming a ‘bulwark’
against Russia and, indeed, of withstanding the Russians, Aus-
trians and Turks.

2. As the main proof of Badinguet’s'” altruism and policy of
non-conquest he puts forward the argument that, after the
‘glorious’ Crimean campaign,® he did not annex either ‘Russian’ or
“T'urkish’ territory.

I am still not yet quite fit. One day, I feel a bit better, the next
day a bit worse.

Salut.

163

Your
K. M.

Apropos. I have seen (thanks to a young EncLisuman by the name
of Green) a letter from Garibaldi in which he heartily reviles
Bonaparte and hopes eventually to draw his sword against him.'*

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original

schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,

Stuttgart, 1913 Published in English for the first
time

2 Marx means his Herr Vogt. - P See this volume, pp. 165, 168, 170. - ¢ in Vogt's
Studien zur gegenwdrtigen Lage Europas - 4 the Crimean war (1853-56)
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87
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 17 July [1860]

Dear Engels,

After sundry adventures, which I shall relate some other time,
the parcel from Lommel?® will certainly arrive today or tomorrow,
via Cologne. 1 already have the consignment note (railway) from
Geneva.

A couple of days ago I had a letter from Eccarius in which he
told me that his tailoring had come to an end, i.e. the state of his
health did not permit him to carry on with it. The doctor had said
that he couldn’t help him. What he needed was a change of air,
etc. Accordingly, I have rented a lodging for him in this
neighbourhood at my own expense (away from his ramiLy, oF coursk,
who are staying at their old place); he takes his meals with us ditto
and has nothing to do save potter about the Heath® and send one
article a week to Weydemeyer, who pays him 3 dollars per article.
I hope he will pull through. I have likewise bought him some port.
But I can’t carry on like this, since at the present moment, when
our cash box is at a low ebb, the other additional expenses he
involves us in are already a burden.

Couldn’t you do something quickly on Garibaldi, or on the
Prussian government, which has pushed through its army reform
behind the backs of the Chambers,'” or something else of the
kind?

It's nice that Garibaldi has had Farina hounded out.'*

Salut.

Your
K. M.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,

Stuttgart, 1913 Published in English for the first

time

3 See this volume, pp. 155, 158. - ® Hampstead Heath
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88
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 21 July 1860
Dear Engels,

On Monday evening Palmerston is to put forward his proposals
on England’s rormiFicaTions*—a big vopcr, this. It would be a good
idea if you could let me have a short article on the subject for the
Tribune by Wednesday® (for it’s not till Wednesday that I have to
send the thing off from here).

Salut.
Your
K. M.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII,
Moscow, 1929 Published in English for the first

time

89
ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

[Manchester, about 23 July 1860]
Dear Moor,

You shall have the article on rortirication® if I can possibly
manage it, but under no circumstances will you be able to get it by
the first post.

What do you make of Kinglake’s reveLations?© It wouldn’t be a
bad thing at all if the magnificent magnanimity of the Prince
Regent' in Baden-Baden'? turned out to be nothing more than a
pauvre® stereotype of the Villafranca affair and Francis Joseph to

2 Palmerston’s speech in the House of Commons on 23 July 1860 (The Times,
No. 23680, 24 July 1860). - ® 25 July - < About 24 July, Engels wrote the article
‘British Defences’. -4 F. Engels, ‘British Defences’. - ¢ Engels means Kinglake’s
speech in the House of Commons on 12 July 1860 on Napoleon I1I's policy vis-a-vis
Italy (The Times, No. 23671, 13 July 1860). - { William, Prince of Prussia - & poor
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be the genuinely ‘magnanimous man’. Your princes, by the way,
would seem after all to have realised that this time their heads are
at stake; not that that is going to save them.

Just now I am reading Ulloa’s Guerre d’indépendance de Ultalie
1848/49. Of all the military scribblings that have come my way
(by prorEssionaL wriTers) this is the most idiotic and slovenly. His
criticism is so much hot air, the facts are distorted or not properly
known and invariably flung together in a jumble. This Ulloa, who
was a captain in the Neapolitan artillery in 1848, has called himself
‘general’ ever since Plon-Plon took him under his wing. This gang
pullulates with mysterious generals. Moreover, if this specimen is
anything to go by, the Neapolitan officers must really be a rotten
lot.

If Garibaldi doesn’t make a move soon,'” things may turn out
badly for him, unless the business in Naples goes well, wich
doesn’t seem likely by the look of it. No doubt there’ll be a few
more defections before Milazzo and Messina, but the prospects for
an expedition to the Continent may deteriorate. The navy won't
place any obstacles in his way for, after all, they have no wish to
fight Italians, but there certainly seems to be a rabid gang within
the Neapolitan army who might resist along with the foreigners,
nor can G. afford a defeat. If he had 10,000 reliable men he
could, of course, finish the whole thing off in three days. He must
now have between 5,000 and 6,000 men, not counting the
Sicilians, of course.

Enclosed five pounds; it may enable you to glve poor Eccarius a
bit of extra help.

Your
F. E.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, . . . .
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and Published in English for the first
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition, tme
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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90
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,} 25 July [1860]

Dear Engels,

The £5 arrived. Ditto the article.?

I shall send you the Report on rortirications.” Did you see
Urquhart’s lamentations on the subject in the latest Free Press of 4
Jury?© If you would care to write about it in English, and this would
seem to be most apposite, you should send the thing here when it is
finished. I would then see what could be done with publishers, or at
worst get it into a revue or a weekly.'™

What Kinglake said was correct, as is borne out by the absurd
manner in which the Moniteur reported his speech.”

Salut.

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zui- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stutt- Published in English for the first

gart, 1913 time

91

MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

{London,] 29 July [1860]

Dear Engels,

Enclosed herewith the final nonsuit from the High Court.* It
would be useless to go on to the Supreme Tribunal. It would

a F. Engels, ‘British Defences'. - P Report of the Commissioners appointed to consider the
Defences of the United Kingdom; together with the Minutes of Evidence and Appendix; also
Correspondence relative to a Site for an Internal Arsenal, London, 1860. - ¢ ‘Mr.
Urquhart on the Invasion of England’, The Free Press, Vol. VIII, No. 7, 4 July
1860. - ¢ See this volume, p. 173. - ¢ Le Moniteur universel, No. 197, 15 July 1860.
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simply add to the costs. It's imperative that I now send Weber his
32 talers 3 silver groschen and 6 pfennigs so that the chap can let
me have the documents (including his indictment) by return. I
need them for the pamphlet,® which will be ready for my wife to
copy (and she’ll do it quickly) within the next 8-10 days.

What is to be done next (I mean in the newspapers)?

A lawsuit like this (note, e.g., the deplorable tone, reminiscent of
newspaper polemics, of the High Court’s findings) is something I
have not come across before. These Prussian curs need a thorough
hiding. It’s a good thing, by the by, that they’ve supplied me with
‘material’.

Nevertheless, the craven rabble in the High Court did see fit to
disallow Mr Vogt's insinuations about ‘extortion’, etc.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

Eccarius has been lodging a few doors away from us for nearly
three weeks now and is feeling better.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zuwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stutt- . .
gart, 1913 Published in English for the first
time
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ENGELS TO MARX

IN LONDON

Manchester, 1 August [1860]
7 Southgate

Dear Moor,

Encl. £5, F/L 12596 for the expenses. Lupus absolutely insisted
on standing £4 of it. So, here we have the celebrated High Court
of the Miller of Sanssouci'™ I should like to know what its
decisions and reasoning would have been, had a Prussian official
been treated in this way instead of you.

It would be quite useless to set the Supreme Tribunal in motion;
but might you not seek an opinion from a rirst raTe Prussian rawyer?

a K. Marx, Herr Vogt.
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Their muddled argument shows quite plainly that the rascals
have been manipulated by the Ministry itself. They've no wish for
a lawsuit that would create a scandal and might upset the drowsy
harmony of universal ‘ministerialism’. Moreover, Schleinitz himself
would be convicted in the person of the National-Zeitung.

Your enclosure returned herewith. But now press on a tout prix*
with the pamphlet” and publishing arrangements! If possible, I
shail do something further for you on Caribaldi next week.

You might inquire from the Tribune whether they would like to
have a series of 4 or 5 articles on RIFLED FIRE ARMS, INCLUDING ALL THE
LaTEsT IMPROVEMENTs—1 won't do the thing on spec.*"

Your
F. E.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stutt- . . . .
gart, 1913 Published in Enghish for the first
time
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MARX TO J. M. WEBER

IN BERLIN

London, 2 August 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park,
Haverstock Hill

Sir,

I regret that, having been out of town for a few days, I did not
receive your letter untl today.*”® I enclose the sum of 32
Reichstalers, and, while tendering my best thanks for your careful
attention to my affairs to date, would request you to go ahead with
the appeal in the Supreme Tribunal. Though I do not expect to be
successful, no stone should be left unturned in the endeavour to
obtain justice. Legally the argument put forward by the High
Court appears to me to be quite untenable.

a at all costs - P K. Marx, Herr Vogt. - © Engels wrote the article ‘Garibaldi’s
Movements’.
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I should be exceedingly grateful if you would send me by return
your petition of 21.6.60 or, should the latter have to remain on
the files for the time being, ask your secretary to make a summary
of the charges contained therein (along with a list of the
documents supporting the individual charges) and remit me the
same.

I have, Sir, the honour to be

Your obedient Servant
Dr Karl Marx

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, , X . .
Moscow, 1934 Ifubhshed in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER

[London,] 4 August [1860]
Dear Frederick,

Have sent the £5 to Weber.

I am getting on with the pamphlet® as fast as I can. What
hinders me somewhat is the inability to write on certain days when
my state of health is particularly “orrible’.

I've decided, by the by, to go on to the Supreme Tribunal
officials. They are now on vacation. Before they sit again, my
pamphlet will have appeared (and with it my critique of the
Prussian proceedings to date). We won’t let the chaps off without a
tremendous scandal.

Write something about Garibaldi for me by Wednesday.

Salut.

Your
K. M.
First published in Der Briefwechsel zwischen Printed according to the original
F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stuugart, . . . .
lglgng e A Published in English for the first

time

2 K. Marx, Herr Vogt. - b In the original: ‘0klich’ instead of ‘ekelig’. - ¢ 8 August.
Engels wrote the article ‘Garibaldi’s Movements’.
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95
ENGELS TO JENNY MARX®®
IN LONDON

Manchester, 15 August 1860

Dear Mrs Marx,

I shall do the article,® tant bien que mal® if 1 possibly can. Today
Siebel has landed me with a young fellow from Barmen, which
means I can’t do anything; however, 1 shall probably get down to it
tomorrow. By the way, it’s irresponsible on Moor’s part not even
to answer my questions concerning Siebel.*™ For ten days now I've
been putting off writing to S., and he might at least let me know
what I am to tell the fellow. It’s absurd, too, that nothing has yet
been done about publishers; heaven knows how long negotiations
will eventually take. Then, what with the notoriously dilatory
methods of German printers, we’ll find that we've arrived, piano
ma sano, in the year 1861 and there’ll be no one to blame but Mr
Moor himself, with his thoroughness and his failure either to do
anything about publishers himself, or to put Siebel in a position to
do something. Meanwhile, things will be in full swing everywhere
in Europe, and the public will have lost all interest in who exactly
belonged to the original Brimstone Gang,*” how the pamphlet Zur
Warnung® came into being, or what is and is not true in Techow’s
letter.®® We're forever producing truly splendid things, but take
care to see that they never appear on time, and so they are all
flops.

An immediate riposte to Vogt three sheets long would, arrer avi,
have been of far greater value than anything that has since been
done. Insist for all you're worth on something being done—and
done immediately—about a publisher, and on the pamphlet¢ being
finished at long last. Otherwise, we shall wreck all our chances and
ultimately find ourselves without any publisher at all.

But now for something comical—a great secret, however, that
mustn’t go beyond the four walls of No. 9 Grafton Terrace. Just
imagine! That ridiculous Siebel, arriving in Barmen, goes and falls
head over heels in love with a philistine girl,* becomes engaged and
intends to marry very shortly and settle down to a life of

4 ‘The Sick Man of Austria’ - b for better or worse - ¢ slowly but surely - 9 Herr
Vogt - € Reinhilde von Hurter
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domesticity in B. What a creennorn! He’s ashamed to tell me
and doesn’t know that I know about it; but he’s written and
told someone else here under the seal of etc., etc. It’s going to
be a jolly nice marriage indeed if the affair isn’t broken off
again.

Please give Moor and the vounc Lapies my warm regards,

Yours
F. Engels
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . . . .
Moscow, 1929 I?ubhshed in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ]. M. WEBER**

IN BERLIN
London, 20 August 1860

Sir,

About a fortnight ago I requested you to let me have a copy of
the charges preferred by you to which the High Court ruling was
an answer.” I must now repeat that request since, without such a
copy, 1 am unable to comprehend certain points in the High
Court document.

I have, Sir, the honour to be

Your most obedient Servant,

Dr K. Marx
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXV, . . i .
Moscow, 1934 Published in English for the first

time

2 See this volume, p. 178.
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97
MARX TO BERTALAN SZEMERE

IN PARIS
London, 21 August 1860

My dear Sir,

I was most agreeably surprised on receiving the few lines you
were so friendly to address to me.

My own silence is easily accounted for. For a long time after the
arrival of your last letter, I was labouring under the most heavy
and distressing liver-complaint, a complaint which almost disables
you from writing. Later on, I was told by some acquaintance of
mine, that you sojourned at London, so that I was not sure
whether any letter addressed to Paris was likely to find you.

Great events, as you justly remark, have come to pass, but of all
things the most dangerous that, in my opinion, could happen to
Europe, would be a war between the legitimate counterrevolution,
seated at Warsaw, and the illegitimate counterrevolution seated at the
Tuileries. Stll, we must take the situation as it is, and make the
best of it. If Garibaldi, whose real intentions I have ascertained
from private letters communicated to me, has momentaneously
been forced to strike his own flag, I hope that in the coming
spring the occasion will offer of separating once for all the cause
of nationalities from the cause of French counterrevolution.

I have one thing to ask of you. Kossuth has in the latter times
worked hard to reconquer his lost influence in the United States. 1
intend baffling his manoeuvres, and would therefore feel much
obliged, if you would communicate to me, so soon as possible, and as
circumstantially as possible, the late adventures of that mock-hero.
He has been (or is) at Paris; what was he doing there? He has
been at Turin; what was he about? Perhaps, you could also add
some curiously grotesque details of his first appearance in Italy,
during the war of 1859.%

With the events before us, it is of the highest importance, that
on the one hand the good understanding between the German
party of liberty and the Hungarians should be raised above every
doubt—and I shall soon have the occasion of speaking (not by
word of mouth, but by print?) to Germany on this point; that on

a Marx means his book, Herr Vogt.
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the other hand Kossuth, the would-be representative of the
Hungarian Nation, should be disavowed on both sides.

Here at London 1 still live, and shall continue to live, in my old
house, 9 Grafton Terrace, Maitland Park, Haverstock Hill. If you
visit again London, I hope you will not again forget my address.
Mrs Marx, moreover, was very disappointed in missing the
occasion of making the personal acquaintance of a man whose
great intellectual powers she has already become familiarised with
by his writings.

Yours truly
A. Williams

First published, in the language of the Reproduced from the original
original (English), in Revue d’histoire com-
parée, t. IV, No. 1-2, Budapest, 1946

98
MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 27 August 1860

Dear Engels,

You can attribute my long silence to the persistently frightful
state of ‘my liver, as a result of which I have to devote every spare
moment to work.

I wrote to Siebel re publishers asout ten days ago ** and await his
reply. The long delay is due partly to my relative inability to work
and partly to the fact that it was not till recently that I had all the
available material. By the by, I believe that, with the exception of
the Italian affair®”® (Austria’s craving for intervention was a
Bonapartist figment), nothing more is going to happen this year
(write someThing about Garibaldi. What do you think of Bangya’s
friend Turr?*”), so there’ll be an interim period during which
pamphlets of this kind will still be readable.

The enclosed letter from Schily will tickle you very much. Let me
have it back. Today 1 sent Schily your Nice, Savoy, etc.

Asour a fortnight ago I sent Dr Zimmermann (formerly
chairman of a Prussian Municipal Court) a letter, in which I put to.
him questions relating to my case (questions of form).* However,
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he deemed it necessary to confer with other brethren of the same
craft in Berlin. No doubt I shall get his written opinion in the
course of this week. I shan’t allow the Prussians to get off so
lightly.

I'm in a great fix over money.

Mr Weydemeyer’s journal® is already at an end; ie. he has
resigned from the editorial board and intends to go to New York
as a survivor. However, his colleague® is going to make the paper
pay by selling it to a political party. Weydemeyer has at last come
to realise that he’s too honest for American journalism.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

How’s business in Manchester? India? Home MaRKeT?

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . i . X
Moscow,l1929 4 Ifubhshed in English for the first
time
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 29 August 1360

Dear Engels,

Is there still an opening for Eccarius with the tailor in
Manchester? If so, he must leave here as he’s fit for work again
(he’s still living out here), business in London is bad and he would,
besides, have to go back to the sweatshop.®

The wherewithal to send him up there with his ramiy is heing
procured down here.

For your information, I should tell you that I believe he is
suffering from a disease of the spinal cord. His wife is a revolting
creature, a curious amalgam of aspirations after respectability
(cuurcawarpens paucnTER) and Irishness. Her housekeeping is sloven-

a Stimme des Volkes - b Julius Standau - ¢ See this volume, p. 172.
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ly. As for him, his energy is of the passive kind—not at all active,
particularly since the disease has grown worse. From the outset,
therefore, he ought not to be cossetted in Manchester, should he
come up there. For the thumbscrew will have to be applied to him,
otherwise she will get ideas into her head.

I must have something about Garibaldi soon. That’s the only
thing that interests the Yankees.”"”

Today a letter arrived from my Berlin lawyer® containing his
petition to the Supreme Tribunal. You shall have it later. He
himself hasn’t properly grasped the point about the flysheet and
Blind"; however, he’s taken in the rest pretty well.

Salut.

Your
K. M.

First published abridged in Der Briefwech- Printed according to the original
sel zwischen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2,
Stuttgart, 1913 and in full in: Marx and
Engels, Works, First Russian Edition,
Vol. XXII, Moscow, 1929
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 1 September 1860

Dear Engels,

Herewith a letter from Weydemeyer.

Secondly, a letter from my lawyer.¢ You should send me back
the latter. Clearly the chap hasn’t grasped the point about the
flysheet and I'd let him have further information on the subject in
the unlikely event of the Supreme Tribunal’s referring the case
back to the Municipal Court for an actual hearing. Here we have
one of the beauties of Prussian jurisprudence. I have now been
through five provisional courts to obtain ‘bureaucratic permission’
actually to conduct the lawsuit. Such things could only happen in
the ‘enlightened State’ of Prussia.

2 J. M. Weber - b See this volume, pp. 23, 42, 59-63. - ¢ See previous letter.
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It is now three o’clock, so I don’t suppose your Garibaldi article®
will arrive today. I wouldn’t BothErR you so much about the affair if
it wasn’t for the fact that, during the elections, the.Yankees are
reading nothing about foreign affairs save for the melodramatic
events in Italy.*” Aside from that, articles on the narvest and Trape
at most, on which subjects one cannot, of course, decently write
more than once a week.?®

Your
K. M.

La Moise’s® general is ‘Sauernheimer’, appointed General of the
‘Bristlers’® by Abt. Package received (Thursday).?"

First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed according to the original
Works, First Russian Edition, Vol. XXII, . X . i
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MARX TO ENGELS

IN MANCHESTER
[London, after 2 September, 1860]

Dear Frederick,

I should be very glad if you could send me the Guardians.

I thought I had acknowledged receipt of the £5 in my last
letter.? Have received a letter from Gumpert, dated Scotland.
More anon. o

Salut.
Your

K. M.

Have not heard anything from Siebel yet.
The next turn of events will, I think, be Piedmont contra
Mazzini.

First published in Der Briefwechsel zwi- Printed according to the original
schen F. Engels und K. Marx, Bd. 2, Stutt-

gart, 1913 Published in English for the first

time
@ ‘Garibaldi’'s Progress’ - P Sibylle Hess - ¢ See this volume, p. 71.-4 See previous
letter.
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102
MARX TO FERDINAND LASSALLE

IN AACHEN

London, 7 September 1860
9 Grafton Terrace, Maidand Park,
Haverstock Hill

Dear Lassalle,

I was delighted to hear from you again at last, although sorry
that you should have no better news for me as regards your
health. I myself am still suffering from my liver complaint; not as
painful as gout (nor as distinguished, at least in English eyes), but
perhaps even more disruptive when it comes to brain-work.

There are two main reasons for postponing the publication of
my anti-Vogt piece,” aside from my being necessarily engaged on
more urgent work. These are:

1. T wanted to wait until the end of the lawsuit against the
National-Zeitung, but have now decided not to.

The lawsuit has passed through the following stages: First the
Public Prosecutor® and then the Chief Public Prosecutor< dis-
missed the action, because ‘no public interest’ would be served by ex
officio intervention. Next came the civil action. The Municipal
Court issued a ‘ruling’ to the effect that the action be dismissed,
because the defamatory passages were merely (which, N.B., is
incorrect) ‘quoted’. The High Court declared the Municipal Court’s
argument to be mistaken, but arrived at the same conclusion,
because the libellous passages neither did nor could refer to me
(this the court proves by dint of ‘misquoting’), the National-Z. had
no intention to insult, etc. The very style of the ‘ruling’ is enough
to betray the fellows’ embarrassment. Now we have reached the
Supreme Tribunal. Thus, 1 have now so far improved my
knowledge of Prussian justice as to know that it is up to the
officers of the judiciary whether a private individual gets a public
hearing at all. For all these rulings are mere ‘preliminaries’ aimed
at precluding any sort of encounter between myself and the
Nat.-Z. in open court. In his letters Legal Counsellor Weber, who
appears to know nothing about my friendly relations with the

2 Herr Vogt - ® Lippe - ¢ Schwarck
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Prussian government, throws up his hands in dismay at these
‘inexplicable’ rulings.

As you know, I instituted the lawsuit against the Nat.-Z. before I
was in possession of Vogt’s book.* However, I was on the right
track, for the Nat.-Z., with commendable tact, had picked out
all—but really all—the actionable libels (I am speaking here of
calumnies within the meaning of the Code, not mere abuse by the
fellows, which I did not wish to attack in court) from Vogts
concoction and had even, in some cases, added to their sting. But
on every single count I found myself in the position, not of
demanding that my opponent provide proof that it was true, but of
myself being able to provide proof that it was false. The only
exception was the matter of hundreds of threatening letters sent
to Germany for the purpose of extorting money. In this instance,
of course, it was the N.-Z’s business to get friend Vogt to send
them one of those threatening letters.

Hence the courts realised that, as soon as the case came up in
open court, the verdict must go against the N.-Z., and this, not to
mention a legal victory for me, would indeed be ‘contrary to the
public interest’. The ‘Supreme Tribunal’ will find some other
subterfuge. But in this way the Prussians are at any rate supplying
me with material whose pleasing repercussions in the London
press will soon be brought home to them!

2. The real snag just now is the question of a publisher.

The thing can’t very well appear in Prussia since various
passages relating to Stieber, etc., would lay the publisher open to
prosecution. My negotiations in Hamburg, etc., have so far been
of no avail. Either the chaps want to have nothing to do with it, or
else they take the liberty of laying down conditions as to the tone
and contents of the piece, to which I cannot, of course, agree.
O. Meissner would have taken the thing, had he not previously
published Demokratische Studien, to which, besides yourself and
Griin, Vogt, along with his whole clan, Bamberger, Simon, etc.,
contributed.

The best thing would be to get the thing printed over here and
distributed on the Continent by some German bookseller here (as
Vogt did from Geneva). But, unlike Vogt, 1 have no Bonapartist
subsidies, with which to get the pamphlet of some 12 to 15 sheets
printed in this country.

. So that’s how matters stand. As you will have gathered, my
attitude towards Vogt is not as mild as German publishers would

2 Mein Prozess gegen die Allgemeine Zeitung, Geneva, 1859.
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wish it to be vis-a-vis the Herr Professor. I treat him en canaille
and as a figure of fun, i.e. in accordance with his deserts.

Masses of inquiries have reached me from Switzerland and
America about the publication of the scrawl.

My wife sends her kind regards. For months I have avoided
Freiligrath, not wanting to have a disagreeable encounter with
him; nor, at a crucial moment, could I relish the cowardly hedging
(on account of his business connection with James Fazy, who is his
principal). {But what I thought particularly unseemly was the way
he continued to consort with Blind on an intimate footing, after 1
had shown him legal documents proving that Blind had, under
incriminating circumstances, extracted from Wiehe, the com-
positor, a false deposition for publication in the Allgemeine Zeitung
relative to the flysheet Zur Warnung.*'’t Nevertheless, in the
eyes of the world we are ‘friends’ just as we have always been. But
intercourse between our families has been completely broken off.
As you know, my wife is of a determined disposition.

I hope you will soon send better news of yourself.

Salut.

Your
K. M.
First published in: F. Lassalle. Nachgelas- Printed according to the original
sene Briefe und Schriften, Bd. 111, Stuttgart- . . . .
Berlin, 1999 ’ Published in English for the first
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MARX TO ENGELS
IN MANCHESTER
[London,] 13 September 1860

Dear Engels,

I hope to get an article from you for Saturday.” If at all possible.
Herewith Zimmermann’s legal opinion on the questions I put to
him.< (To be returned to me next week.)

4 like dirt - b 15 September - ¢ See this volume, pp. 182-83.
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Also, for your amusement, a copy of a letter given to me by
Eccarius.

Your
K. M.
First published in: Marx and Engels, Printed a